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Single copies of the current Consumer Action Handbook are available by writing 
Handbook, Federal Citizen Information Center, Pueblo, CO 81009, or by calling 
1-888-878-3856. The Handbook can also be viewed and ordered online at  
www.ConsumerAction.gov.

The 2009 Consumer Action Handbook will be current through summer 2010. 
To place your name on a mailing list to receive the 2010 Handbook, please call 
1-888-878-3256. For information that is updated weekly, visit the Consumer Action 
website at www.ConsumerAction.gov.
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Advertising, Inc., for their help in developing this edition of the Consumer Action 
Handbook. We would also like to thank Marietta Jelks, the Consumer Action 
Handbook Manager, for her work on this edition of the Handbook.

We need your help to keep the Handbook up-to-date. Please report any changes 
to Handbook Update, Federal Citizen Information Center, 1800 F Street, NW,  
Rm. G-142, Washington, DC 20405 or e-mail action.handbook@gsa.gov.



As a savvy consumer, you should always be on the alert for shady deals and scams. To avoid becoming 
a victim, keep these things in mind: 

1.	 A deal that sounds too good to be true usually is!  Be wary of promises to fix your credit problems  
(p. 13), low-interest credit card offers (p. 12), deals that let you skip credit card payments (p. 12),  
work-at-home job opportunities (p. 16), risk-free investments (p. 35), and free travel (p. 43).

2.	 Don’t share personal information with someone you don’t trust. Learn how to recognize fraud by 
following the advice on page 2. 

3.	 Beware of payday and tax refund loans. Interest rates on these loans are usually excessive. Even  
a cash advance on a credit card may be a better option. For more information, see page 14.

4.	 Real estate agents represent the seller, not the buyer. When buying, consider hiring an agent or  
lawyer to represent you (p. 21).

5.	 Home improvement (p. 24) and auto repairs (p. 9) are the subjects of frequent complaints. Getting  
a second opinion can help prevent costly mistakes and enable you to make better decisions. 

6.	 Think twice before you rent-to-own. Interest rates on rent-to-own purchases can be very high. If  
you miss a payment, you could end up with nothing. Consider buying second-hand at a thrift shop  
or through ads in your local newspaper. 

7.	 Be cautious of Buy Here, Pay Here lots. If you decide to buy a car from a used car lot, be sure to read 
all of the papers before you sign. Don’t sign contracts that allow the dealership to change the finance 
rate AFTER you leave the lot. 

8. 	Don’t buy under stress. Avoid making big-ticket purchases during times of duress (e.g., coping with  
a death or debt).

Quick Consumer Tips

i

Part I —Be A Savvy Consumer
Read this section for advice before you make a 
purchase. To quickly locate specific topics and 
information, look in the Table of Contents  
(p. ii) and the Index (p. 169).

Part II —Filing A Complaint
Turn to this section for suggestions on 
resolving consumer problems. The sample 
complaint letter on page 55 will help you 
present your case.

Part III —Key Consumer 
Information Resources
Look here for a list of public resources and 
contact information.

Part IV —Consumer Assistance 
Directory
Here you’ll find contact information for 
corporate offices, consumer organizations, 
trade groups, government agencies and more.

Tips For Using This Handbook

A searchable version of this Handbook is available online at  
www.ConsumerAction.gov and in Spanish at www.Consumidor.gov.Visit Us Online



To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60)
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Buyer Beware
Before You Buy

To avoid problems and make better decisions, use this 
checklist BEFORE you make a purchase.

•	 Decide in advance exactly what you want and what 
you can afford. 

•	 Do your research. Ask family, friends and others you 
trust for advice based on their experience. Gather 
information about the seller and the item or service 
you are purchasing.

•	 Review product test results and other information 
from consumer experts. See General Resources in 
Part III (p. 56) or check the Handbook Index (p. 169) 
for specific information.

•	 Get advice and price quotes from several sellers. 

•	 Make sure that the seller has all appropriate 
licenses. Doctors, lawyers, contractors and other 
service providers must register with a state or local 
licensing agency (p. 130).

•	 Check out a company’s complaint record with your 
local consumer affairs office (p. 130) and Better 
Business Bureau (p. 65).

•	 Get a written copy of guarantees and warranties. 

•	 Get the seller’s refund, return and cancellation 
policies. 

•	 Ask whom to contact if you have a question  
or problem. 

•	 Read and understand any contract or legal 
document you are asked to sign. Make sure there 
are no blank spaces. Insist that any extras you are 
promised be put in writing.

•	 Consider paying by credit card. If you have a 
problem, you can dispute a charge made on your 
credit card (p. 11).

•	 Don’t buy on impulse or under pressure. This 
includes donating to charity. 

Service Contracts and 
Extended Warranties

Service contracts or “extended warranties” can add 
hundreds to your purchase price and are rarely worth 
the cost. Some duplicate warranty coverage you get 
automatically from a manufacturer or dealer. Ask these 
questions before you agree to one of these contracts:

•	 Does the dealer, the manufacturer, or an 
independent company back the service contract?

•	 How are claims handled? Who will do the work and 
where it will be done? 

•	 What happens to your coverage if the dealer or 
administrator goes out of business?

•	 Do you need prior authorization for repair work?

•	 Are there any situations when coverage can 
be denied? You may not have protection from 
common wear and tear, or if you fail to follow 
recommendations for routine maintenance.

Product Safety Recalls

Before you buy a used vehicle or other second-hand 
product, check the websites listed below to be sure it 
hasn’t been recalled for safety reasons. Some recalls 
ban the sale of an item while others ask consumers to 
return the item for replacement or repair. Sometimes, a 
seller provides a part that reduces the danger of using 
the product.

If you’re buying a product for a child, be especially 
vigilant. Each year, there are about 400 recalls of 
children’s products such as toys, clothing and jewelry. 
Check the websites in the “Check Here For Recalls” 
box for the latest safety recalls. You can also  
sign up for free e-mail notifications at  
www.cpsc.gov/cpsclist.aspx. It could save a child’s life.

Before you spend another dollar, invest a few minutes reading this section of the Handbook to help you make 
smart choices and avoid scams.

1 To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60)To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 00)

Part I – Be A Savvy Consumer

Check Here For Recalls
•	 www.recalls.gov lists government-initiated 

recalls, which are gathered from federal 
agencies.

•	 www.pueblo.gsa.gov lists both government  
and industry-initiated recalls.

•	 www.nhsta.gov lists recalls and safety  
information on vehicles and equipment.



Identifying and Stopping Fraud

Look for these warning signs to avoid fraud:

• 	You are asked for your bank account or credit  
card number. 

•	 Someone you don’t know offers you the chance  
to receive a credit card, loan, prize, lottery or other 
valuable item, but asks you for personal data to  
claim it.

•	 The solicitation looks like a government document 
and suggests contest winnings or unclaimed assets 
are yours for a small fee. (The government doesn’t 
solicit money from citizens.)

•	 Someone you don’t know asks you to send money 
to claim a prize, lottery, credit card, loan, or other 
valuable offer.

• 	An unknown caller claiming to be a lawyer or in law 
enforcement offers to help you get your money back 
(for a fee).

• 	The deal is only good “for today” or a short period  
of time.

•	 A “repair person” suddenly finds a dangerous  
defect in your car or home.

•	 You are given little or no time to read a contract.

• 	A sale item is suddenly unavailable but a “much 
better item” is available for slightly more money. 

•	 Someone is trying to scare you into purchasing 
credit protection plans.

To learn more about avoiding identity theft and  
fraud, go to page 37.

After You Buy

Even careful buyers can run into unforeseen problems 
later on. To minimize them, follow these steps after  
you buy.

•	 Save all papers that you get with your purchase. 
Keep all contracts, sales receipts, canceled checks, 
owner’s manuals and warranty documents. 

•	 Read and follow product and service instructions. 
The way you use or take care of a product might 
affect your warranty rights.

BANKING
ATM/Debit Cards

With a debit card and personal identification number 
(PIN), you can use an Automated Teller Machine 
(ATM), to withdraw cash, make deposits, or transfer 
funds between accounts. Some ATMs charge a fee 
if you are not a member of the ATM network or are 
making a transaction at a remote location.

Retail purchases can also be made with a debit card. 
You enter your PIN or sign for the purchase. Some 
banks charge customers a fee for debit card purchases 
made with a PIN. Although a debit card looks like a 
credit card, the money for the purchase is transferred 
immediately from your bank account to the store’s 
account. When you use a debit card, federal law also 
does not give you the right to stop payment. You must 
resolve the problem with the seller. 

If you suspect your debit card has been lost or stolen, 
call the card issuer immediately. While federal law 
limits your liability for a lost or stolen credit card to 
$50, your liability for unauthorized use of your ATM 
or debit card can be much greater, depending on how 
quickly you report the loss. 

www.USA.gov www.pueblo.gsa.gov 2

Quick Tips For Avoiding Fraud
Don’t give out personal information.  
Be suspicious of anyone you don’t know who 
asks for your Social Security number, credit card 
number, bank account number, password or other 
personal data. 

Don’t be intimidated.  
Be suspicious of callers who want you to 
immediately provide or verify personal information. 
Tell them you’re not interested and hang up.

Monitor your accounts.  
Review bank and credit card statements carefully. 
Report unauthorized transactions to your financial 
institution immediately.

Use a shredder.  
Tear or shred credit offers you receive in the mail,  
bank statements, insurance forms and other 
papers with personal information.
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Fraud Alert
Be on the lookout for these common scams:

Fake Check Scams – you discover the check is 
worthless after you’ve deposited it and wired money 
back to the crook.

Sweetheart Swindles – criminals befriend you 
in online chat rooms or dating sites then request 
money as a favor, accident or travel expenses. 

Auctions – beware of fraudulent sellers and bogus 
merchandise.

Lotteries – don’t fall for foreign lotteries. They’re 
illegal to play and may be a scam.

Advance Fee Loans and Credit – it’s illegal for 
telemarketers to charge a fee in advance for help 
getting a loan.



•	 If you report a debit card missing before it is used, 
you are not responsible for any unauthorized 
withdrawals. 

•	 Your liability is limited to $50 if you report the loss 
within two business days after you realize your debit 
card is missing and to $500 if you report the loss 
between two and 60 days. 

•	 If you have not reported an unauthorized use of a 
debit or ATM card within 60 days after your bank 
mails the statement documenting the unauthorized 
use, you could lose all the money in your bank 
account as well as the unused portion of your line of 
credit established for overdrafts.

Check the policies of your card issuer. Some offer 
more generous limits on a voluntary basis. 

Prepaid Cards

Prepaid cards issued by banks and other government-
regulated organizations are a new way for consumers 
to make payments and conduct other financial 
transactions. There are plenty of situations where a 
prepaid card might be the most convenient choice, but 
be sure you understand the key terms and conditions 
BEFORE you buy. Ask these questions when you are 
considering a prepaid card:

•	 What are the possible fees associated with using  
the card?

•	 Where can the card be used (online, at ATMs, 
outside the U.S.)?

Reputable distributors of prepaid cards will give you 
the terms and conditions in writing or have them 
available on their website. If you don’t understand how 
your card works, ask for help where you purchased 
it, from your employer (if it’s a payroll card), or by 
contacting the customer service number on the card. 

While the federal government does not guarantee 
the same protections for all prepaid cards, many 
“branded” cards voluntarily carry protections that are 
the same as credit and debit cards. Cards with a major 
credit card brand logo provide consumer protections, 
such as replacing lost or stolen cards and re-crediting 
money after unauthorized use of the card. 

To obtain these benefits, you must follow the instructions 
for registering and activating your card. Be sure to record 
your card information, including the customer service 
telephone number on the back of the card, so you can get 
a replacement if yours is lost or stolen. 

If you have a problem with a prepaid card, first contact 
the customer service number. If the problem still isn’t 
resolved, you may want to file a complaint with the 
proper authorities:

•	 For cards issued by retailers, contact the FTC  
(p. 121). You may also file a complaint with your  
local consumer protection office (p. 130).

•	 For cards issued by national banks, contact the 
Comptroller of the Currency (p. 118).

•	 For cards issued by state banks, contact the  
FDIC (p. 121) or state banking authority (p. 147).

Savings And Checking

When it comes to finding a safe place to put your 
money, there are a lot of options. Savings accounts, 
checking accounts, certificates of deposit and money 
market accounts are popular choices. Each has 
different rules and benefits that fit different needs. 
When choosing the one that is right for you, consider:

Minimum deposit requirements. Some accounts 
can only be set up with a minimum dollar amount. If 
your account goes below the minimum, the bank may 
not pay you interest on the money you deposited and 
you may be charged extra fees.

Limits on withdrawals. Can you take money out 
whenever you want? Are there any penalties for  
doing so?

Interest. How much (if anything) is paid and when? 
Daily, monthly, quarterly, yearly? To compare rates 
offered locally to those from financial institutions 
around the nation, visit www.bankrate.com.

To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60).3

Protect Your PIN
Beware of shoulder surfers. Be suspicious of 
anyone lurking around an ATM or watching over 
your shoulder while you use your card. Some thieves 
even use binoculars or cameras to steal your PIN. 
If you suspect criminal activity, walk away and use a 
different ATM.



Deposit insurance. Make sure your bank is a member 
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 
This organization protects the money in your checking 
and savings accounts, certificates of deposit and IRA 
accounts up to $250,000. For more information, see 
page 121 or visit www.fdic.gov.

Credit unions. A credit union is a nonprofit, 
cooperative financial institution owned and run by its 
members. Like the FDIC does for banks, the National 
Credit Union Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF) insures 
a person’s savings up to $250,000. 

Convenience. How easy is it to put money in and take 
it out? Are there branches or ATM machines close to 
where you work and live? Can you bank by phone or 
Internet? 

If you are considering a checking account or another 
type of account with check-writing privileges, add 
these items to your list of things to think about:

Number of checks. Is there a maximum number  
of checks you can write per month without incurring  
a charge?

Account and check fees. Is there a monthly fee for 
the account or a charge for each check you write? 

Holds on checks. Is there a waiting period for  
checks to clear before you can withdraw the money 
from your account? 

Overdrafts. If you write a check for more money than 
you have in your account, what happens? You may be 
able to link your checking account to a savings account 
to protect yourself. 

Bounced checks. It’s your responsibility to have 
sufficient funds in your account to cover checks that 
you write. Your bank will charge you for insufficient 
funds.  Bounced checks can also blemish your credit 
record, so you may want to talk to your bank about 
overdraft protection.

Unsolicited Checks And  
Credit Offers 

If you cash an unsolicited check you’ve received in 
the mail, you could be agreeing to pay for products 

or services you don’t want or need. In addition, 
those “guarantees” for credit cards or loans, without 
consideration of credit history, are probably a scam. 
Legitimate lenders never guarantee credit. For more 
information on how to identify fraudulent solicitations, 
see page 121 or visit www.ftc.gov. 

Legitimate offers of credit often come in the form of 
“convenience checks,” which credit card companies 
enclose with your monthly statement. However, these 
convenience checks may carry higher fees, a higher 
interest rate and other restrictions. If you don’t want 
them, be sure to shred the checks to protect yourself 
from dumpster divers and identity thieves.

Contact the proper regulatory agency below.

Type of 
Institution

Regulatory 
Agency

State chartered banks  
and trust companies 

Regulated by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance 

Corporation (p. 121) and  
by state banking  

authorities (p. 147).

Banks with National  
in the name or N.A.  

after the name 

Regulated by the 
Comptroller of Currency, 
U.S. Department of the 

Treasury (p. 118).

Federal savings and  
loans and Federal  

savings banks

Regulated by the Office 
of Thrift Supervision, 

Department of the  
Treasury (p. 118).

Federally chartered  
credit unions

Regulated by the 
National Credit Union 

Administration (p. 122).

www.USA.gov www.pueblo.gsa.gov 4

Payroll And General Purpose 
Spending Cards
Payroll and General Purpose Spending Cards can 
be very useful for those who want to budget their 
money and for those who don’t have a checking 
account or credit card.

General Purpose Spending Cards, which may 
be purchased by consumers, typically charge 
a monthly maintenance fee and could charge 
additional fees for adding funds to the card and/or 
making purchases or getting cash.

Payroll Cards are similar to General Purpose 
Spending Cards except that they are provided 
by employers in place of paychecks. Payroll 
Cards typically allow a certain number of ATM 
withdrawals without charge to the  cardholder and 
usually do not assess fees for purchases.
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Car and Driver (www.caranddriver.com) and  
Edmunds automotive books and network  
(www.edmunds.com). For more information, visit  
www.where-can-I-buy-a-car-online.com.

•	 Research the dealer’s price for the car and options. 
It’s easier to get the best price when you know what 
the dealer paid for a vehicle. The dealer invoice 
price is available on a number of websites and in 
printed pricing guides. Consumer Reports offers 
the wholesale price:  this figure factors in dealer 
incentives from a manufacturer and is a more accurate 
estimate of what a dealer is paying for a vehicle.

•	 Find out if the manufacturer is offering rebates  
that will lower the cost. For more information, visit  
www.carsdirect.com and www.autopedia.com/html/
Rebate.html.

•	 Get price quotes from several dealers. Find out if 
the amounts quoted are the prices before or after 
rebates are deducted.

•	 Avoid low-value extras such as credit insurance, 
extended warranties, auto club memberships, rust 
proofing and upholstery finishes. You do not have to 
purchase credit insurance in order to get a loan. See 
Service Contracts and Extended Warranties (p. 1) 
and Credit Insurance (p. 9).

Buying A Used Car 

•	 Learn what rights you have when buying a used car. 
Contact your state or local consumer protection 
office (p. 130).

•	 Find out in advance what paperwork you will need  
to register a vehicle. Contact your state’s motor 
vehicle department. 

•	 Check prices of similar models using the NADA 
Official Used Car Guide (www.nadaguides.com) 
published by the National Automobile Dealer 
Association (p. 64) or the Kelly Blue Book  
(www.kbb.com). These guides are usually available 
at local libraries.

•	 Research the vehicle’s history. Ask the seller for 
details concerning past owners, use, and  
maintenance. Next, find out whether the car has been 
damaged in a flood, involved in a crash, been labeled 
a lemon, or had its odometer rolled back. The vehicle 
identification number (VIN) will help you do this.

•	 Your state motor vehicle department can research 
the car’s title history. Inspect the title for “salvage,” 
“rebuilt,” or similar notations. 

5 To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60)

CARS
Whether you are buying or leasing a vehicle, these 
tips will help you get the best deal and avoid 
problems.

•	 Decide what kind of vehicle best suits your needs 
and budget. 

•	 Check out the seller. For car dealers, check with 
your state or local consumer protection agency  
(p. 130) and Better Business Bureau (p. 65). If you’re 
buying from an individual, check the title to make 
sure you’re dealing with the vehicle owner. 

•	 Take a test drive. Drive at different speeds and check 
for smooth right and left turns. On a straight stretch, 
make sure the vehicle doesn’t pull to one side.

•	 Handle trade-ins and financing separately from 
your purchase to get the best deal on each. Get a 
written price quote before you talk about a trade-in 
or dealer financing.

•	 Shop in advance and compare financing options 
at your credit union, bank or finance company. 
Look at the total finance charges and the Annual 
Percentage Rate (APR), not just the monthly 
payment.

•	 Read and understand every document you  
are asked to sign. 

•	 Don’t take possession of the car until all  
paperwork is final.

• 	Choose an auto insurance policy that is right  
for you (p. 27).

Buying A New Car

Do your research first and compare vehicles. Four  
key resources that offer vehicle performance, service 
and safety information are:  
Consumer Reports (www.consumerreports.org), 
Motor Trend (www.motortrend.com),  



•	 The websites www.carfax.com and  
www.autocheck.com sell information on the  
history of vehicles gathered from state motor  
vehicle departments and other sources. These 
reports are helpful but do not guarantee a vehicle  
is accident-free. 

•	 The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 
(www.nhtsa.dot.gov) lists VINs of its crash-test 
vehicles and will let you search an online database of 
manufacturer service bulletins.

•	 The Center for Auto Safety (www.autosafety.org) 
provides information on safety defects, recalls,  
and lemons, as well as service bulletins.

•	 Visit www.safetyforum.com for a free online  
search of its database of lemons registered by 
previous owners.

•	 Make sure any mileage disclosures match the 
odometer reading on the car. 

•	 Check the warranty. If a manufacturer’s warranty  
is still in effect, contact the manufacturer to make 
sure you can use the coverage. 

•	 Ask about the dealer’s return policy. Get it in  
writing and read it carefully.

•	 Have the car inspected by your mechanic. Talk  
to the seller and agree in advance that you’ll  
pay for the examination if the car passes  
inspection, but the seller will pay if  
significant problems are discovered.  
A qualified mechanic should check  
the vehicle’s frame, tires, air bags and 
under-carriage, as well as the engine.

•	 Examine dealer documents carefully.  
Make sure you are buying – not  
leasing – the vehicle. Leases use  
terms such as a “balloon payment”  
and “base mileage” disclosures.

Dealer Versus  
Private Party Purchases

In general, buying from a dealer is a safer option 
because you are dealing with an institution, which 
means you are better protected by law. The Federal 
Trade Commission requires dealers to post a  
Buyer’s Guide in the window of each used car or 
truck on their lot. This Guide specifies whether the 
vehicle is being sold “as is” or with a warranty, and 
what percentage of repair costs a dealer will pay 
under the warranty. Keep in mind that private sellers 
generally have less responsibility than dealers for 
defects or other problems. FTC rules do not apply  
to private-party sales.

Expect to pay higher prices at a dealer than if you 
buy from an individual. Many dealers inspect their 
cars and provide an inspection report with each 
car. However, this is no substitute for your own 
inspection. Some dealers provide limited warranties, 
and most sell extended warranties. Watch out for 
dealer warranties that are “powertrain” warranties 
only, and not “bumper-to-bumper,” full-coverage 
warranties. It’s best to compare warranties that are 
available from other sources.

Some dealers provide “certified” cars. This  
generally means that the cars have had a more 
thorough inspection and come with a limited 
warranty. Prices for certified cars are generally 
higher. Be sure to get a list of what was inspected 
and what is covered under the warranty.

Purchasing a car from a private seller may save 
you money, but there are risks. The car could be 
stolen, damaged or still under a finance agreement. 
If a private seller lies to you about the condition of 
the vehicle, you may sue the individual if you have 
evidence and you can find him. An individual is  
very unlikely to give a written warranty.

www.USA.gov www.pueblo.gsa.gov 6

GOVERNMENT FUEL ECONOMY WEB PAGES
•	 www.epa.gov/emissweb  

is a green vehicle guide that  
can help you identify vehicles  
that are fuel-efficient and have  
clean-running engines. 

•	 Go to www.fueleconomy.gov to  
compare the miles-per-gallon ratings  
of different vehicle models manufactured  
since the mid-1980s. 

•  Use www.fueleconomy.gov/feg/save 
money.shtml to calculate annual fuel  
estimates.

Replace Tired Tires
Check the tread for wear. While the legal limit is  
           2/32 of an inch of tread depth, consider  
               replacing tires when the tread reaches  
                  4/32-inch depth. The small difference  
	      in tread can make a big difference in 
                      braking distance. Buy tires that fit. 
	        Find the size and type of tire  
	         recommended by the manufacturer  
	         of your vehicle. 

                        Maintain proper pressure.  
                        Keeping your tires properly inflated  
                       will improve gas mileage and  
	       increase the life of your tires.

B
an

king
C

ars
C

red
it

E
ducation

E
m

p
loym

en
t

Food
H

ealthcare
H

ousing
Insurance

In
tern

et
Investing

P
hon

es
Id

en
tity

S
hopp

ing
Telem

arket
Travel

T
V

U
tilities

W
ills

Ind
ex



Leasing

When you lease, you pay to drive someone else’s 
vehicle. Monthly payments for a lease may be lower 
than loan payments, but at the end of the lease you 
have no ownership or equity in the car. To get the 
best deal, follow these advice points in addition to the 
general suggestions for buying a car (p. 5).

•	 To help you compare leasing versus owning, the 
Consumer Leasing Act requires leasing companies 
to give you information on monthly payments and 
other charges. Check out www.leaseguide.com, 
www.leasecompare.com and www.leasesource.com 
for information on leases and current deals.

•	 Consider using an independent agent rather than 
the dealer. You might find a better deal. Most 
financial institutions that offer auto financing also 
offer leasing options.

•	 Ask for details on wear and tear standards. Dings 
that you regard as normal wear and tear could be 
billed as significant damage at the end of your lease.

•	 Find out how many miles you can drive in a year. Most 
leases allow 12,000 to 15,000 miles a year. Expect a 
charge of 10 to 25 cents for each additional mile.

•	 Check the manufacturer’s warranty. It should cover 
the entire lease term and the number of miles you are 
likely to drive.

•	 Ask the dealer what happens if you give up the car 
before the end of your lease. There may be extra fees 
for doing so. 

•	 Ask what happens if the car is involved in an accident.

•	 Get all the terms in writing. Everything included with 
the car should be listed on the lease to avoid being 
charged for “missing” equipment later.

The Federal Reserve Board of Governors offers a 
consumer guide to auto leasing at www.federalreserve.
gov/pubs/leasing/.

Recalls, Lemon Laws  
And Secret Warranties

Sometimes a manufacturer makes a design or 
production mistake on a motor vehicle. A service 
bulletin notifies the dealer of the problem and how 
to resolve it. Because these free repairs are not 
publicized, they are called “secret warranties.” The 
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 
(www.nhtsa.dot.gov) maintains a database of service 
bulletins filed by manufacturers.

If you have a problem with a vehicle that is a safety hazard, 
check whether the manufacturer has recalled your vehicle. 
Click on Recalls at www.nhtsa.dot.gov or call NHTSA at 
1-800-424-9393. Hazards that aren’t listed should be 
reported to your dealer, the manufacturer of the vehicle 
(p. 61), and NHTSA. If a safety-related defect exists, 
the maker must fix it at no cost to you – even if your 
warranty has expired. 

To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60).7

Curb stoning occurs when a dealer has an inferior or 
damaged car he can’t sell on his lot. He gives the car 
to a salesperson to sell through the classifieds, as if 
it were a private party sale. A title history report will 
show that the title recently changed hands and may 
reveal that it is a lemon or an otherwise branded car. 
Be suspicious if the seller’s name is different from the 
name on the title. 

Title washing occurs when scam artists try to sell a 
salvage vehicle by concealing its history of damage 
from a buyer. Although a vehicle’s title should show if 
it has been damaged or salvaged, some states do not 
document titles in the same way as other states. By 
moving a vehicle and its title through several different 
states, con artists try to “wash” out the title branding of 
salvage or damage. The best way to avoid this trick is 
to buy only from reputable dealers and/or to get a title 
guarantee in writing.

Credit and Sublease Brokers
Con artists often prey on people who have bad credit and 
who cannot get car loans. “Credit brokers” promise to get 
a loan for you in exchange for a high fee. In many cases, the 
“broker” takes the fee and disappears. “Sublease brokers” 
charge a fee to arrange for you to “sublease” or “take 
over” someone else’s car lease or loan. Such deals usually 
violate the original loan or lease agreement. Your car can be 
repossessed even if you’ve made all of your payments. You 
also might have trouble insuring your car.

Beware!  
Dealers Posing as Individuals
Some dealers pretend to be private sellers to  

avoid legal obligations and to sell problematic 
cars to unsuspecting buyers. Be wary: if an ad 

gives only a mobile number or specifies a time to 
call, if the same number appears in several ads, 

or the seller wants to bring the car to you  
or meet you somewhere.

Beware! 
Curb Stoning & Title Washing



If you have a vehicle with a unique problem that just 
never seems to get fixed, you may have a lemon. Some 
states have laws concerning lemons that require a 
refund or replacement if a problem is not fixed within a 
reasonable number of tries or you haven’t been able to 
use your vehicle for a certain number of days. Contact 
your state or local consumer protection office (p. 130) 
to learn whether you have such protections and what 
steps you must take to get your problem solved. If you 
believe your car is a lemon:

•	 Give the dealer a list of the  
problems every time you bring  
it in for repairs.

•	 Get and keep copies of the  
repair orders listing the  
problems, the work done,  
and the dates that the car was  
in the shop.

•	 Contact the manufacturer, as  
well as the dealer, to report the  
problem. Check your owner’s  
manual or the directory for the  
auto manufacturer (p. 61). 

•	 Help other consumers  
avoid purchasing your  
lemon by registering it at  
www.safetyforum.com.

The Center for Auto Safety (p. 125)  
gathers information and complaints 
concerning safety defects, recalls,  
service bulletins and state lemon laws. 

Renting

Federal law does not cover short-term car and truck 
rentals, but some state laws do. Contact your state  
or local consumer protection office (p. 130) for 
information or to file a complaint.

•	 Ask in advance if there are any charges besides  
the stated rental fee. There may be an airport 
surcharge or drop-off fees, insurance fees, fuel 
charges, mileage fees, taxes, additional-driver  
fees, underage-driver fees, and equipment rental 
fees (for items such as ski racks and car seats). 

•	 Ask if the rental company checks the driving records 
of customers when they arrive at the counter. If so, 
you could be rejected even if you have a confirmed 
reservation.

•	 Check in advance to be sure you aren’t duplicating 
insurance coverage. If you’re traveling on business, 
your employer may have insurance that covers 
accidental damage to the vehicle. You might 
also have coverage through your personal auto 
insurance, a motor club membership, or the credit 
card you use to reserve the rental.

•	 Carefully inspect the vehicle and its tires before renting.

•	 Check refueling policies and charges.

•	 Ask the rental company if a deposit is required.  
If so, ask for a clear explanation of the deposit  
refund procedures.

www.USA.gov www.pueblo.gsa.gov 8

Choose a Safe Vehicle
Crash tests can help you determine how well a vehicle will protect  
you in a crash. Here are different organizations that perform crash 
tests and rate vehicles: 

•	 The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration  
(www.nhtsa.dot.gov). Each year, NHTSA crashes vehicles 
head-on into a wall and bashes them broadside to test their ability 
to protect their occupants. NHTSA focuses on evaluating vehicle 
restraints such as air bags and safety belts.

•	 The Insurance Institute for Highway Safety (www.hwysafety.org). 
A different test by the IIHS uses offset-frontal car crashes to assess 
the protection provided by a vehicle’s structure.

•	 Consumers Union. Consumer Reports’ annual auto issue rates 
vehicles in terms of overall safety. Its safety score combines  
crash test results with a vehicle’s accident avoidance  
factors – emergency handling, braking, acceleration,  
and even driver comfort.

To find out whether a manufacturer has recalled a car for  
safety defects, contact NHTSA (p. 119). If a vehicle has  
been recalled, ask the dealer for proof that the defect has  
been repaired. Used vehicles should also have a current  
safety inspection sticker if your state requires one.
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Repairs

Whenever you take a vehicle to the shop:

•	 Choose a reliable repair shop. Family, friends or an 
independent consumer rating organization should 
be able to help you. Look for shops that display 
various certifications that are current. You should 
also check out the shop’s record with your state or 
local consumer protection office (p. 130) or Better 
Business Bureau (p. 65). 

•	 Describe the symptoms. Don’t try to diagnose  
the problem.

•	 Make it clear that work cannot begin until you have a 
written estimate and you give your okay. Never sign a 
blank repair order. If the problem can’t be diagnosed 
on the spot, insist that the shop contact you for 
authorization once the trouble has been found.

•	 Ask the shop to keep the old parts for you.

•	 Follow the warranty instructions if a repair is  
covered under warranty.

•	 Get all repair warranties in writing.

•	 Keep copies of all paperwork.

Some states, cities and counties have special laws 
that deal with auto repairs. For information on the laws 
in your state, contact your state or local consumer 
protection office (p. 130). A consumer guide to Auto 
Repair is available at http://ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/
consumer/autos/aut13.pdf.  

Vehicle Repossessions 

When you borrow money to buy a car or truck, the 
lender can take your vehicle back if you miss a  
payment or in some other way violate the contract.  
You should also be aware that the lender: 

•	 Can repossess with cause without advance notice

•	 Can insist you pay off the entire loan balance in 
order to get the repossessed vehicle back

•	 Can sell the vehicle at auction

•	 Might be able to sue you for the difference between 
the vehicle’s auction price and what you owe

•	 Cannot break into your home or physically threaten 
someone while taking the vehicle

If you know you’re going to be late with a payment, 
talk to the lender to try to work things out. If you and 
the lender reach an agreement, be sure you get the 
agreement in writing. Contact your state or local 
consumer protection office (p. 130) to find out whether 
your state gives you any additional rights.

CREDIT
 
Like everything else you buy, it pays to comparison 
shop for credit. For up-to-date interest rate reports on 
mortgages, auto loans, credit cards, home equity loans, 
and other banking products, visit www.bankrate.com. 
For a listing of credit cards, visit www.cardtrak.com.

The Equal Credit Opportunity Act protects you when 
dealing with anyone who regularly offers credit, 
including banks, finance companies, stores, credit 
card companies and credit unions. When you apply for 
credit, a creditor may not:

•	 Ask about or consider your sex, race, national origin 
or religion

•	 Ask about your marital status or your spouse – 
unless you are applying for a joint account or relying 
on your spouse’s income, or you live in a community 
property state (Arizona, California, Idaho, Louisiana, 
Nevada, New Mexico, Texas or Washington)

•	 Ask about your plans to have or raise children

•	 Refuse to consider public assistance income or 
regularly received alimony or child support

To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60).9

Beware: Credit Insurance
When you take out a loan for a big purchase, a 
salesperson may try to sell you credit insurance. 
Your credit card company may also encourage you 
to purchase credit insurance. The coverage may be 
promoted as a way for you to protect yourself if your 
property is damaged or lost. Other credit insurance 
offers promise to make loan payments if you are laid 
off, become disabled or die. It is almost always better 
to buy regular property, life or disability insurance 
instead of credit insurance.



•	 Refuse to consider income because of your sex or 
marital status or because it is from part-time work  
or retirement benefits

You Have The Right To: 

•	 Have credit in your birth name, your first name and 
your spouse’s last name, or your first name and a 
combined last name;

•	 Have a co-signer other than your spouse if one  
is necessary;

•	 Keep your own accounts after you change your 
name, marital status or retire, unless the creditor has 
evidence you are unable or unwilling to pay;

•	 Know why a credit application is rejected – the 
creditor must give you the specific reasons or tell 
you where and how you can get a copy of the credit 
report they used to determine their rejection, if you 
ask within 60 days;

•	 Have accounts shared with your spouse reported  
in both your names;

•	 Know how much it will cost to borrow money.

For additional information on credit, see Buying 
a Home (p. 21) and Cars (p. 5). Other sources of 
information include the HUD Housing Counseling 
Clearinghouse at 1-888-466-3487, the FTC (p. 121),  
and the National Consumer Law Center (p. 128).

You have the right to a FREE annual Credit Report.  
(See “FREE CREDIT REPORTS” box p. 11)

Credit Cards

Chances are, you’ve received “pre-approved” credit 
card offers in the mail. Examine the fine print carefully 
before you accept any offer for a credit or charge card. 
Look for:

•	 The Annual Percentage Rate (APR). If the 
interest rate is variable, how is it determined  
and when can it change?

•	 The periodic rate. This is the interest rate used 
to figure the finance charge on your balance each 
billing period.

•	 The annual fee. While some cards have no annual 
fee, others expect you to pay an amount each year 
for being a cardholder.  

•	 The grace period. This is the number of days  
you have to pay your bill before finance charges 
start. Without this period, you may have to pay 
interest from the date you use your card or when  
the purchase is posted to your account. 

•	 The finance charges. Most lenders calculate 
finance charges using an average daily account 
balance, which is the average of what you owed  
each day in the billing cycle. Look for offers that  
use an adjusted balance, which subtracts your 
payment from your beginning balance. This  
method usually has the lowest finance charges.  
Stay away from offers that use the previous  
balance in calculating what you owe; this method 
has the highest finance charges. Also, don’t forget  
to check if there is a minimum finance charge.

•	 Other fees. Ask about special fees when you  
get a cash advance, make a late payment, or go  

www.USA.gov www.pueblo.gsa.gov 10

Lost and Stolen  
Credit Cards
Immediately call the card issuer  
when you suspect a credit  
or charge card has been  
lost or stolen. 

Once you report the loss  
or theft of a card, you  
have no further  
responsibility for  
unauthorized charges.  
In any event, your  
maximum liability  
under federal law  
is $50 per card.
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over your credit limit. Some companies charge  
a monthly fee regardless of whether you use  
your card.

The Fair Credit and Charge Card Disclosure Act 
requires credit and charge card issuers to include  
this information on credit applications. The Federal  
Trade Commission (p. 121) offers a wide range of  
free publications on credit and consumer rights 
at www.ftc.gov. The Federal Reserve Board (p. 121) 
provides a free brochure on choosing a credit card  
and a guide to credit protection laws at  
www.federalreserve.gov. 

Comparing Cards

•	 Bank Rate (www.bankrate.com) provides free credit 
card tips and information.

•	 Consumer Action (www.consumer-action.org) has 
a site that features credit card surveys of interest 
rates, fees and other terms from dozens of credit 
cards, as well as free brochures and guides on 
choosing and using credit cards.

•	 Card Web (www.cardweb.com) lists credit cards and 
offers e-mail newsletters for consumers, frequently 
asked questions and online credit card calculators.

•	 Card Ratings (www.cardratings.com) lists and 
reviews credit cards, and offers tips and credit  
card calculators.

Complaints

To complain about a problem with your credit card 
company, call the number on the back of your card 
and try to resolve the problem. If you fail to resolve the 
issue, ask for the name, address and phone number of 
its regulatory agency. See the chart on page 4 to find 
the best federal or state regulatory agency to contact.

To complain about a credit bureau, department store 
or other Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(FDIC) insured financial institution, write to the 
Consumer Response Center (p. 121). You may also  
file a complaint at www.ftc.gov. 

Credit Card Billing Disputes 

Under the Fair Credit Billing Act, you have the right to 
dispute charges on your credit card you didn’t make, are 
incorrect, or for goods or services you didn’t receive.

•	 Send a letter to the creditor within 60 days of the 
postmark of the bill with the disputed charge. 

•	 Include your name and account number, the date 
and amount of the disputed charge, and a complete 
explanation of why you are disputing the charge.

•	 To ensure it’s received, send your letter by certified 
mail, with a return receipt requested.

•	 The creditor or card issuer must acknowledge your 
letter in writing within 30 days of receiving it and 
conduct an investigation within 90 days. You do 
not have to pay the amount in dispute during the 
investigation.

•	 If there was an error, the creditor must credit your 
account and remove any fees. 

•	 If the bill is correct, you must be told in writing what 
you owe and why. You must pay it along with any 
related finance charges.

If you don’t agree with the creditor’s decision, file 
an appeal with the Office of the Comptroller of the 
Currency (p. 121).

Credit Reports And Scores

A credit report contains information on where you 
work and live, how you pay your bills, and whether 
you’ve been sued, arrested, or filed for bankruptcy. 
Consumer Reporting Agencies (CRAs) gather 
this information and sell it to creditors, employers, 
insurers, and others. The most common type of CRA 
is the credit bureau. There are three major credit 
bureaus:  Equifax: 1-800-685-1111 or www.equifax.com 
– fraud alert 1-888-766-0008; Experian: 1-888-397-3742 
or www.experian.com – fraud alert 1-888-397-3472; 
TransUnion: 1-800-916-8800 or www.transunion.com – 
fraud alert 1-800-680-7289. 

FICO 

The information in your credit report is used to 
calculate your FICO score, a number generally 
between 300 and 850. The higher your score, the less 
risk you pose to creditors. A high score, for example, 
makes it easier it is for you to obtain a loan, rent an 
apartment, or lower your insurance rate. Your FICO 
score is available from www.myfico.com for a fee.  
Free credit reports do not contain your credit score, 
although you can purchase your credit score when  
you request your free annual credit report through 
www.annualcreditreport.com.

Tips For Building A Better Credit Score

To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60).11

FREE CREDIT REPORTS
You can request a free credit report every year from 
the three major credit reporting agencies – Equifax, 
Experian and TransUnion.  You may want to request 
your credit reports one at a time every four months so 
you can monitor your credit throughout the year, without 
having to pay for a report. (If you ask the credit bureaus 
directly, they will charge you a fee to obtain your 
report.) To order your free report, you must go through 
www.annualcreditreport.com or call 1-877-322-8228.
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•	 Pay your bills on time. Delinquent payments and 
collections negatively impact your score.

•	 Keep balances low on credit cards and other 
“revolving credit.” High outstanding debt lowers 
your score.

•	 Apply for and open new credit accounts only as 
needed. Don’t open an account just to have a better 
credit mix; it probably won’t raise your score.

•	 Pay off debt instead of moving it around. Owing the 
same amount, but having fewer open accounts may 
lower your score.

You don’t rebuild your credit score; you rebuild your 
credit history. Time is your ally in improving credit. 
There is no “quick fix” for a bad credit score, so 
suspect any deals that offer you a fast, easy solution.

Negative Credit Information  
In Your Credit Report

Negative information concerning your use of credit 
can be kept in your credit report for seven years. A 
bankruptcy can be kept for 10 years, and unpaid tax 
liens for 15 years. Information about a lawsuit or an 
unpaid judgment against you can be reported for 
seven years or until the statute of limitations runs  
out, whichever is longer. Inquiries remain on your 
report for two years.

Anyone who denies you credit, housing, insurance, 
or a job as a result of a credit report must give you the 
name, address, and telephone number of the credit 
reporting agency that provided the report. Under the 
Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA), you have the right 
to request a free report within 60 days if a company 
denies you credit based on the report. 

If there is inaccurate or incomplete information in your 
credit report:

•	 Contact both the credit reporting agency and the 
company that provided the information to the CRA.

•	 Tell the CRA in writing what information you believe 
is inaccurate.

Under The Fair Credit Reporting Act, the information 
provider is required to investigate and report the 
results to the CRA. If the information is found to be 
incorrect, it must notify all nationwide CRAs to correct 
your file. If the investigation does not solve your 
dispute, ask that your statement concerning the 
dispute be included in your file. A notice of your 
dispute must be included anytime the CRA reports  
the negative item. 

If the information is accurate, only time, hard work,  
and a personal debt repayment plan will improve  
your credit report. Credit repair companies advertise 
that they can erase bad credit for a hefty fee. Don’t 
believe it.

Under the Credit Repair Organizations Act, credit 
repair companies can’t require you to pay until they 
have completed promised services. They must also 
give you:

•	 A copy of the “Consumer Credit File Rights Under 
State and Federal Law” before you sign a contract;

•	 A written contract that spells out your rights  
and obligations;

•	 Three days to cancel without paying any fees.

Some credit repair companies promise to help you 
establish a whole new credit identity. You can be 
charged with fraud if you use the mail or telephone 
to apply for credit with false information. It is also 
a federal crime to make false statements on a loan 
or credit application, to give a false Social Security 
number, or to obtain an Employer Identification 
Number from the Internal Revenue Service under  
false pretences.

If you have lost money to a credit repair scam, contact 
your state or local consumer affairs office (p. 130).

Dealing With Debt 

The Fair Debt Collection Practices Act applies to 
those who collect debts owed to creditors for  
personal, family and household debts – these include 
car loans, mortgages, charge accounts and money 
owed for medical bills. A debt collector is someone 
hired to collect money you owe. 

Beware: Offers to Skip a Payment
If your credit company invites you to skip a monthly 
payment without a penalty, it is not doing you a favor. 
You will still owe finance charges on your unpaid 
balance. And interest could be adding up on any 
purchases you make after the due date you skipped.

Beware: Teaser Rates
Some cards are advertised with very low introductory 
interest rates called teasers. The rate is good for a 
short period of time. If you know you can pay what you 
owe while the low rate is in effect, it could be a good 
deal. But if the teaser time runs out and you still owe 
money, you could end up paying a higher rate than you 
might have without the special introductory rate. Just 
one late payment could also cancel the teaser rate.
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Debt Management Assistance
Several national nonprofit organizations also 
provide information and assist people with debt 
problems.

•	 American Consumer Credit Counseling. Visit  
www.consumercredit.com or call 800-769-3571.

•	 InCharge Institute of America. Visit  
www.incharge.org or call 1-800-565-8953.

•	 Money Management International.  
Visit www.moneymanagement.org  
or call 1-866-899-9347.

•	 Myvesta. Visit www.myvesta.org  
or call 1-800-680-DEBT.

Within five days after a debt collector first contacts  
you, the collector must send you a notice that  
tells you the name of the creditor, how much you  
owe, and what action to take if you believe you  
don’t owe the money.

If you owe the money or part of it, contact the  
creditor to arrange for payment.

If you believe you don’t owe the money, contact the 
creditor in writing and send a copy to the collection 
agency with a letter telling them not to contact you.  
A debt collector may not:

•	 Contact you at unreasonable times, for example, 
before 8 a.m. or after 9 p.m., unless you agree;

•	 Contact you at work if you tell the debt collector your 
employer disapproves;

•	 Contact you after you write a letter telling them to 
stop, except to notify you if the collector or creditor 
plans to take a specific action;

•	 Contact your friends, relatives, employer or others, 
except to find out where you live and work;

•	 Harass you through threats to harm you, profane 
language or repeated telephone calls;

•	 Make any false statement, or claim that you will  
be arrested;

•	 Threaten to have money deducted from your 
paycheck or to sue you, unless the collection agency 
or creditor intends to do so and it is legal.

To file a complaint, contact your state or local 
consumer protection agency (p. 130) and the Federal 
Trade Commission (p. 121).

Out of Control Debt

Counseling services are available to help people 
budget money and pay bills. Credit unions, 
Cooperative Extension offices, military family service 
centers and religious organizations are among those 
that may offer free or low-cost credit counseling. 

Local, nonprofit agencies that provide educational 
programs on money management and help in 
developing debt payment plans operate under the 
name Consumer Credit Counseling Service (CCCS). 
They are members of the National Foundation for 
Credit Counseling (NFCC). See page 167 for contact 
information to locate the agency closest to you.

Typically, a counseling service will negotiate lower 
payments with your creditors and then make the 
payments using money you send to them each month. 
The cost of setting up this debt-management plan is 
paid by the creditor, not you. Ask these questions to 
find the best counselor for you:

•	 What services do you offer? Look for an organization 
that offers budget counseling and money management 
classes as well as a debt-management plan. 

•	 Do you offer free information? Avoid organizations 
that charge for information or make you provide a lot 
of details about your problem first.

•	 What are your fees? Are there set-up and/or monthly 
fees? A typical set-up fee is $10. If you’re paying a lot 
more, you could be the one getting set up. 

•	 How will the debt management plan work? What 
debts can be included in the plan and will you get 
regular reports on your accounts?

To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60).13

Alert:  “Debt Relief” may be 
code for Bankruptcy
The Federal Trade Commission cautions 
consumers to read between the lines when 
faced with ads in newspapers or telephone 
directories that promise debt relief. This 
relief may actually be bankruptcy. Catch 
phrases that are commonly used:

“Consolidate your bills into one 
monthly payment without borrowing.”

“Keep your property.”

“Stop credit harassment, foreclosures, 
repossessions and garnishments.”

“Wipe out your debts! Consolidate 
your bills!”

 “Use the protection and assistance 
provided by federal law. For once let  
the law work for you.”



Payday And Tax Refund Loans
Payday loans are illegal in some states. Recent 
changes in the law for payday lenders have also 
made payday loans illegal for members of the 
military. With a typical payday loan, you might 
write a personal check for $115 to borrow $100 for 
two weeks, until payday. The annual percentage 
rate (APR) in this example is 390 percent!  If you 
can repay the loan quickly, it may not appear such 
a bad deal. But if you can’t pay off the loan quickly, 
that relatively small loan can grow into a large 
amount of debt. At 390 percent, a $100 loan will 
become $490 in a year and $2,401 in two years.

Another high cost way to borrow money is a tax 
refund loan. This type of credit lets you get an 
advance on a tax refund – for a fee. APRs as high 
as 774% have been reported. If you are short of 
cash, avoid both of these loans by asking for more 
time to pay a bill or seeking a traditional loan. Even 
a cash advance on your credit card may cost less.

•	 Ask if the counselor can get creditors to lower or 
eliminate interest and fees. If the answer is yes, 
contact your creditors to verify this.

•	 Ask what happens if you can’t afford to pay. If an 
organization won’t help you because you can’t afford 
to pay, go somewhere else for help.

•	 Will your counselor help you avoid future problems? 
Getting a plan for avoiding future debt is as 
important as solving the immediate debt problem.

•	 Ask for a contract. All verbal promises should be in 
writing before you pay any money.

•	 Are your counselors accredited or certified? 
Legitimate credit counseling firms are affiliated  
with the National Foundation for Credit Counseling 
(p. 167) or the Association of Independent Consumer 
Credit Counseling Agencies. 

Check with your local consumer protection agency  
(p. 130) and the Better Business Bureau (p. 65) to see  
if any complaints have been filed about the counseling 
service you’re considering.

If you have concerns about approved credit  
counseling agencies or credit counseling providers, 
please contact the U.S. Trustee Program, visit  
www.usdoj.gov/ust or call 202-514-4100.

Personal Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy generally is considered the debt 
management option of last resort because the results 
are long lasting and far reaching. The Bankruptcy 
Abuse and Prevention Act of 2005 established more 
stringent rules for consumers and attorneys. 

The filing process may be difficult for debtors:

•	 Debtors must file documents including itemized 
statements of monthly net income, proof of income 
(pay stubs) for the last 60 days, and tax returns for 
the preceding year (four years for Chapter 13).

•	 Debtors must take a pre-filing credit counseling 
and post-filing education course to have debts 
discharged.

•	 Debtors face increased filing fees, plus fees for 
credit counseling/education.

•	 The bankruptcy petition and process are more 
complicated, so it’s very difficult to file without  
an attorney.

The filing process for lawyers:

•	 An attorney’s signature on a petition certifies that 
the attorney has performed reasonable investigation 
into circumstances giving rise to the petition.

•	 Attorneys must carefully review documents such as 
tax returns and pay stubs, as well as ask clients for 
credit reports.

•	 Attorneys are more apprehensive about sanctions.

LOANS

Home Equity Loans

A home equity loan could be a smart way to pay 
off high-interest debt or pay for home repairs. But 
consider carefully before taking out a home equity 
loan. If you are unable to make payments on time,  
you could lose your home.

Home equity loans can either be a revolving line 
of credit or a lump sum. Revolving credit lets you 
withdraw funds when you need them. A lump sum  
is a one-time, closed-end loan for a particular  
purpose, such as remodeling or tuition. Apply for a 
home equity loan through a bank or credit union first. 
These loans are likely to cost less than those offered 
by finance companies.

Please see the Housing section (p. 21) for helpful 
information about buying, leasing, renting or  
repairing a home.

Installment Loans

Before you sign an agreement for a loan to buy a 
house, a car or other large purchase, make sure you 
fully understand all the lender’s terms and conditions, 
including: 

•	 The dollar amount you are borrowing;

•	 The payment amounts and when they are due;

www.USA.gov www.pueblo.gsa.gov 14
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•	 Work Study. The Federal Work-Study Program 
(FWS) is a federally funded source of financial 
assistance used to offset financial education costs. 
Students who qualify earn money by working on 
campus while attending school. The money does not 
have to be repaid.

•	 Loans. Funds that are borrowed and must be repaid 
with interest. As a general rule, educational loans 
have more favorable terms and interest rates than 
traditional consumer loans.

•	 Scholarships. Offered by the school, local/
community organizations, private institutions and 
trusts, scholarships do not have to be repaid and  
are generally awarded based on specific criteria.

To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60).15

Federal Student Aid
Many helpful publications are available at  
www.studentaid.ed.gov/pubs or you can  
call 1-800-433-3243.

www.dl.ed.gov  
The federal government’s direct loan 
website includes a servicing center.

www.bls.gov/oco   
The U.S. Department of Labor’s 
Occupational Outlook Handbook 
provides information on various 
careers and their earning potential.

www.edu.gov  
The U.S. Department of Education 
offers several financial aid guides 
for consumers.

www.nasfaa.org  
The National Association 
of Student Financial Aid 
Administrators provides a “Cash  
for College Guide” with advice,  
tips and information on financing 
your education.

Diploma Mills
If you’re ever tempted by an e-mail or ad claiming 
you can “earn a degree based on life experience,” 
don’t fall for it. Any company that offers degrees 
for a flat fee and requires little course work is a 
diploma mill. If your school is not recognized as an 
accredited institution by the Secretary of Education, 
you may not be able to receive financial aid and 
employers won’t recognize it. To check on a school’s 
accreditation by the Department of Education, visit  
www.ope.ed.gov/accreditation or search the 
Council for Higher Education Accreditation’s  
database at www.chea.org/search. 

•	 The total finance charge, including all interest  
and fees you must pay to get the loan;

•	 The Annual Percentage Rate (APR), the rate of 
interest you will pay over the full term of the loan;

•	 Penalties for late payments;

•	 What the lender will do if you can’t pay back the loan;

•	 Penalties if you pay the loan back early.

The Truth in Lending Act requires lenders to give you 
this information so you can compare different offers.

FINANCING YOUR EDUCATION
Paying for College 101

There’s no way around it. A college education is 
expensive, especially if you or your child goes to a 
private school. How much it will cost depends on the 
school you choose. Once you’ve narrowed your choice 
of schools, contact them to find out how much the 
total cost will be and what scholarships and financial 
aid are available. 

High schools often hold free seminars on choosing 
and paying for college. Another source of information 
on financial assistance from both private and 
government sources is www.finaid.org. This site also 
offers calculators that can help you figure out how 
much school will cost, how much you need to save, 
and how much aid you will need.

Many state governments have created programs 
to make it easier for families to save for 
the education of their children. Visit 
www.collegesavings.org for links to 
information on the various state 
programs, such as 529 plans.

Student Financial Aid

Student Financial Aid is available from 
a wide variety of sources including 
the federal government, individual 
states, directly from colleges and 
universities, as well as from numerous 
other public and private agencies and 
organizations. Whatever the source, 
all forms of college aid fall into four 
basic categories:

•	 Grants. Gift aid that does not 
have to be repaid and is generally 
awarded according to financial 
need.
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Federal Student Aid Information Center

The Federal Student Aid Information Center (FSAIC) 
can answer your federal student financial aid 
questions and can give you all the help you need for 
free. You can also use the FSAIC automated response 
system to find out if your Free Application for Federal 
Student Aid (FAFSA) application has been processed 
and to request a copy of your Student Aid Report 
(SAR). For FSAIC contact information, see page 111.

EMPLOYMENT
 
Times have changed with job-searching, and there are 
numerous websites now available that post jobs for 
private industry. Many companies also offer a way to 
apply online. However, these sites and new methods 
do not replace traditional and proven job-hunting 
approaches such as networking, personal contacts, 
business organizations and interviewing.

Employment Agencies

If you’re looking for a job, you may come across ads 
from employment agencies that promise wonderful 
opportunities. While some companies honestly want 
to help you, others are more interested in taking your 
money. Be wary of:

•	 Promises to get you a job and a guaranteed income;

•	 Upfront fees, even when you are guaranteed a  
refund if you are dissatisfied;

•	 Employment agencies whose ads read like job ads;

•	 Promotions of “previously undisclosed” government 
jobs. All federal jobs are announced to the public at 
www.usajobs.opm.gov.

Get a copy of the employment agency contract and 
review it carefully before you pay any money. Check 
with your local consumer protection agency (p. 130) 
and the Better Business Bureau (p. 65) to see if any 
complaints have been filed about a company. 

The Federal Trade Commission (p. 121) sues 
businesses that fraudulently advertise employment 
openings and guarantee job placement. Contact the 
FTC if you have a complaint.

Work-At-Home Companies

Not all work-at-home opportunities deliver on their 
promises. Some classic work-at-home schemes are 
medical billing, envelope stuffing and assembly or 
craftwork. Ads for these businesses say, “Be part 
of one of America’s Fastest Growing Industries. 
Earn thousands of dollars a month from your home!” 
Legitimate work-at-home program sponsors should 
tell you, in writing, what’s involved in the program  
they are selling. Here are some questions you might 
ask a promoter:

Beware: Scholarship and  
Financial Aid Scams
Scholarships and financial aid do not require upfront 
fees. While there are legitimate companies who 
will help guide you through the financial aid and 
college application process for a fee, disreputable 
companies may ask you for money up-front and 
provide nothing in return. Red flags to watch out for 
include the following:

A “money-back guarantee” to secure a scholarship. 
Don’t believe it. Unscrupulous companies attach 
conditions that make it impossible to get the refund. 

“Secret scholarships.” If a company claims to have 
inside knowledge of scholarship money, they’re 
lying. Information on scholarships is available freely 
to the public. Ask your librarian or school counselor.

Telling students they’ve been selected as “finalists” 
for awards.  If they ask for an up-front fee, head for 
the nearest exit. 

Asking for a student’s checking account to “confirm 
eligibility.” If they want bank account information 
or your credit card number to confirm or reserve a 
scholarship, it’s a scam.

Quoting a relatively small “monthly” or “weekly” fee. 
Then asking for authorization to debit your checking 
account for an unspecified length of time. Ongoing 
fees are a sure sign of a scam.

Unsolicited offers. Whether it’s an e-mail, phone 
call, or it arrived in your mailbox, if you didn’t request 
the information, ignore the offer.



•	 What tasks will I have to perform? (Ask the  
program sponsor to list every step of the job.)

•	 Will I be paid a salary or will my pay be based  
on commission?

•	 Who will pay me?

•	 When will I get my first paycheck?

•	 What is the total cost of the work-at home program, 
including supplies, equipment and membership 
fees? What will I get for my money?

The answers to these questions may help you determine 
whether a work-at-home program is appropriate for your 
circumstances and whether it is legitimate.

Multi-Level Marketing 

Some multilevel marketing plans are legitimate. 
However, others are illegal pyramid schemes. In 
pyramids, commissions are based on the number 
of distributors recruited. Most of the product sales 
are made to these distributors, not to consumers in 
general. The underlying goods and services, which 
vary from vitamins to car leases, serve only to make 
the schemes look legitimate. Most people end up with 
nothing to show for their money except the expensive 
products or marketing materials they were pressured 
to buy.

If you’re thinking about joining what appears to be a 
legitimate multilevel marketing plan, take time to learn 
about the plan.

•	 What is the company’s track record?

•	 What products does it sell?

•	 Does it sell products to the public-at-large?

•	 Does it have the evidence to back up the claims  
it makes about its product?

•	 Is the product competitively priced?

•	 Is it likely to appeal to a large customer base?

•	 How much does it cost to join the plan?

•	 Are monthly minimum sales required to earn  
a commission?

•	 Will you be required to recruit new distributors to 
earn your commission?

Net-Based Business Opportunities

The Federal Trade Commission says that many 
Internet business opportunities are scams that 
promise more than they can possibly deliver. The 
companies lure would-be entrepreneurs with false 
promises of big earnings for little effort. Some tips to 
finding a legitimate opportunity:

•	 Consider the promotion carefully. 

•	 Study the business opportunity’s franchise 
disclosure document. 

•	 Get earnings claims in writing and compare them 
with the experience of previous franchise and 
business opportunity owners.  

•	 Visit previous franchise and business opportunity 
owners in person, preferably at their place of business. 

•	 Check out the company with the local consumer 
protection agency (p. 130) and Better Business 
Bureau (p. 65). See if there is any record of 
complaints. 

•	 If the business opportunity involves selling products 
from well-known companies, verify the relationship 
with the legal department of the company whose 
merchandise would be promoted. 

•	 Consult an attorney, accountant or other business advisor 
before you put any money down or sign any papers. 

•	 Take your time. Promoters of fraudulent business 
opportunities are likely to use high-pressure 
sales tactics to get you to buy in. If the business 
opportunity is legitimate, it will still be around when 
you’re ready to decide.

To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60).17
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FOOD AND NUTRITION
Healthy Food Choices

To help you make healthy food choices, the federal 
government posts dietary guidelines at www.health.
gov/dietaryguidelines. Federal regulations also require 
many foods to identify fat content, fiber and nutrients 
on their labels.

Food Safety

Food safety in the home revolves around three main 
functions:  food storage, food handling and cooking.  
Most experts agree that practicing a few simple rules 
focused on cleaning, separating, cooking and chilling 
can prevent most food borne illness in the home. 
The website www.foodsafety.gov is your gateway 
to government food safety information, including 
publications you can download or request. You can 
also visit www.recalls.gov for the latest food safety 
alerts and recalls.

For more information, here are some additional 
resources:

•	 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (p. 112);

•	 FDA’s Food Information and Seafood Hotline  
1-800-332-4010;

•	 Partnership for Food Safety Education at  
www.fightbac.org, the online resource for Fight 
BAC! With food safety and safe food handling 
information;

•	 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services  
(p. 111);

•	 USDA Food Safety and Inspection Service,  
www.fsis.usda.gov;

•	 USDA Meat and Poultry Hotline 1-888-674-6854.

Weight Loss 

The only proven way to help you lose weight is to  
burn more calories than you consume. If you need  
to lose weight, talk with your doctor about the 
options that are best for you. Most health experts 
agree that the best and safest way to lose weight is 
to modestly cut calories, eat a balanced diet, and 
exercise. People usually do best when they reduce 
their usual calorie intake or increase the calories 
they use by 500–1,000 per day. This allows you to eat 
enough for good nutrition yet lose about one to two 
pounds a week. Steer clear of harmful tactics such  
as smoking, fasting, purging, or abusing laxatives.

Avoid fad diets and other weight loss programs that 
promise fast results or limit your food choices. Ask 
yourself the following:

•	 How does the product or service work? Does the 
program emphasize diet, exercise or a combination 
of both?

•	 How much will it cost? Ask for an itemized list that 
includes membership fees and fees for weekly 
visits. Ask if there are extra fees for diagnostic 
tests, food, dietary supplements, or other products 
in the program.

•	 How well does it work? Ask to see the studies that 
back up success claims. Look for how many people 
completed the program, how much weight they 
lost, and how long they kept the weight off.

www.USA.gov www.pueblo.gsa.gov 18

Food for Thought
Check out these resources for advice, tips and 
education on food shopping and nutrition:

•	 U.S. Department of Agriculture (p. 106);

•	 The Food and Drug Administration  
(p. 112);

•	 Nutrition.gov (www.nutrition.gov);

•	 MedlinePlus (Click on F for Food or  
N for Nutrition at www.nlm.nih.gov/
medlineplus);

•	 The Nutrition Source (www.hsph.
harvard.edu/nutritionsource)



•	 What are the risks? Get details about possible side 
effects. Check with your doctor before you take 
prescriptions, over-the-counter weight loss drugs,  
or dietary supplements. Diets that require drastic 
food restriction should be under the supervision of  
a physician.

•	 How many calories will you eat each day? For diets 
under 1500 calories, be sure to check with your 
doctor to make sure you get all your nutrients.

•	 What are the staff qualifications? Ask about their 
training and experience.

•	 What type of attention will you receive? Will you get 
individual counseling or group support? How often?

Complaints concerning fraudulent weight loss claims 
should be directed to the Federal Trade Commission 
(p. 121).

HEALTH CARE
 
For information on healthcare plans, see page 27.

Thousands of resources are now available to help 
you make health care decisions. Be wary of websites 
sponsored by companies that are trying to sell you a 
particular treatment. It’s better to contact reputable 
associations or visit sites run by government agencies 
and recognized organizations such as the Mayo Clinic 
or the American Medical Association (AMA). This 
information should complement, not replace, what 
you receive from a doctor. Here are some sites that are 
generally recognized as reliable information sources:

HealthierUS.gov, HealthFinder.gov and 
MedlinePlus (www.medlineplus.gov) provide 
information on health issues, health care programs, 
and organizations.

Intelihealth (www.intelihealth.com) offers 
information and advice from the Harvard  
Medical School.

HealthMetrix Research, Inc.  
(www.MedicareNewsWatch.com) offers a quick 
reference to programs available in your local area.

Mayo Clinic (www.mayoclinic.com) offers an index  
of diseases and much more.

Medical Library Association (www.mlanet.org)  
links to websites suggested by librarians.

Mental Help Net (www.mentalhelp.net) links to a 
broad range of mental health topics.

Choosing A Doctor

When searching for a doctor, dentist or other 
healthcare professional:

•	 Find out whether they are licensed in your state. 
A state or local occupational and professional 
licensing board will be able to give you this 
information (p. 130).

•	 Research whether they are board-certified in the 
appropriate specialty. Visit www.ama-assn.org and 
www.abms.org for more information.

•	 Ask how often they have done the procedure you 
need and their success rate. You may be able to 
find some of this information on the Internet. For 
example, the Center for Disease Control reports the 
success rates and number of procedures performed 
by fertility clinics at www.cdc.gov. Some states 
collect and post data on the success of heart-bypass 
surgery.

•	 Check whether there have been any complaints or 
disciplinary actions taken. Visit www.docboard.org and 
www.healthcarechoices.org for more information. 
There are also pay-for-use sites with similar 
information including www.QuestionableDoctors.org, 
www.Docinfo.org, and www.checkbook.org.

Visit www.healthfinder.gov for more advice on 
identifying providers.

Filing A Complaint

If you have a complaint about the medical services you 
received from a physician, you may file a complaint 
with your State Medical Board. For a complete 
directory from the Federation of State Medical Boards, 
visit www.fsmb.org/directory_smb.html. You can also 
call the Federation at 817-868-4000 to get the phone 
number of your state medical board.

To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60).19

Be Informed:  Risks of Weight  
Loss Surgery
Surgical procedures for weight loss should be 
considered carefully and only after you and a doctor have 
looked at all the options. Risks and complications include 
bleeding, deep vein thrombosis, infections, marginal 
ulcers, pulmonary problems, spleen injury, stenosis, 
vomiting, dumping syndrome, nutritional deficiencies, 
gallstones and even death. It is NOT cosmetic surgery. 
The National Institutes of Health has helpful information 
and has set minimum requirements for recommending 
these types of surgery, along with other important 
information, at www.nih.gov.



Choosing A Healthcare Facility 

Report cards on the Internet can help you compare 
health care facilities. Three private websites that rate 
hospitals based on information collected from Medicare 
records and other sources are www.usnews.com,  
www.checkbook.org, and www.healthgrades.com. 

The Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare 
Organizations (JCAHO) accredits hospitals, as well 
as nursing homes and other health care organizations. 
Specially trained investigators assess whether these 
organizations meet set standards. At www.jcaho.org, 
you can check on a local facility, including how it 
compares with others. JCAHO also accepts consumer 
complaints. You can post a complaint on its website or 
call 1-800-994-6610.

If you are looking for a nursing home or other assisted 
living facility, these organizations can help.

•	 Nursing Home Compare, operated by the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services, will 
help you compare the facilities in many states. Go 
to www.medicare.gov/nhcompare/home.asp or call 
1-800-MEDICARE (633-4227).

•	 Eldercare Locator (www.eldercare.gov) provides 
information and referral services for those seeking 
local and state support resources for the elderly.  
See page 112.

•	 The American Association of Homes and Services 
for the Aging (www.aahsa.org) is a trade group that 
represents many nonprofit facilities (p. 164).

•	 The Assisted Living Federation of America  
(www.alfa.org) represents both for-profit and non-
profit assisted-living facilities. Phone: 703-691-8100.

•	 The Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation 
Facilities (www.carf.org) gives its seal of approval to 
qualifying facilities. Phone: 1-888-281-6531.

Prescription Drugs 

Pharmacies may charge widely different prices  
for the same medicine, so it is a good idea to  
comparison shop.

•	 Ask your physician and pharmacist if a generic drug 
may be appropriate. Generics usually cost less than 
brand name drugs. Many insurance companies use a 
multi-tier co-payment plan for prescription drugs. Be 
sure to ask before filling the prescription.

•	 Consider using a mail-order or online pharmacy, 
especially if you will be taking a drug for a long time. 
They often charge less.

An increasing number of consumers are replacing a 
trip to the pharmacy with a trip on the Internet. While 
there are online pharmacies that provide legitimate 
prescription services, there are also some questionable 
sites that make buying medicines online risky. Do 
business only with a licensed U.S. pharmacy. Check 
with the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy 
to determine if the site is licensed and in good 
standing. Visit www.nabp.net or call 847-698-6227.

An online pharmacy should offer you access to a 
registered pharmacist who can answer any questions 
you might have about drug interactions, side effects 
and other safety precautions. Be wary of sites that:

•	 Sell drugs without a prescription;

•	 Sell drugs not approved by the FDA;

•	 Advertise quick cures;

•	 Tell stories of “amazing results.”

If you suspect a site is not a licensed pharmacy,  
report it and any complaints to the U.S. Food and  
Drug Administration (p. 112) at www.fda.gov/oc/
buyonline/buyonlineform.htm.
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Examine Your Local  
Medical Facilities
Get statistics on medical  
facilities at these sources:

www.hcup.ahrq.gov – is a free  
on-line query system that provides  
access to health statistics and information on 
hospital stays at the national, regional, and state level.

www.usa.gov – offers information on health 
facilities in your area and health by age group.

www.aha.org – is the website of the American 
Hospital Association.

www.citizen.org – links to a public interest 
organization that provides information on medical 
board disciplinary actions.



Want to know the side effects of a particular 
medication? Curious whether a drug has been 
approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration? 
For answers to these questions and other information 
on approved prescription, over-the-counter and 
discontinued drugs, visit www.accessdata.fda.gov/
scripts/cder/drugsatfda. For general drug information, 
you can also contact the FDA (p. 112).

Medicare Prescription  
Drug Coverage

Medicare offers prescription drug coverage to help  
you get the prescription drugs you need. Everyone  
with Medicare can join a drug plan to get this 
coverage. If you aren’t sure if a drug plan is approved 
by Medicare, call 1-800-MEDICARE (1-800-633-4227). 
All drug plans approved by Medicare may use this seal 
on their materials:

Like other insurance, if you decide not to enroll in a 
drug plan when you are first eligible, you may pay a 
penalty if you choose to join later. If you have limited 
income and resources, you may get extra help to cover 
prescription drugs for little or no cost.

For more information, contact the Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (p. 112). 

 
HOUSING

 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD, p. 114) funds housing counseling 
agencies throughout the country. These organizations 
can give you advice on buying a home, renting, 
defaults, foreclosures, credit issues and reverse 
mortgages. To contact the agency nearest you, call 
1-800-569-4287 or visit www.hud.gov. Homeowners 
with problems that could result in default of their 
mortgage or foreclosure on their property are 
encouraged to contact a HUD-approved housing 
counseling agency immediately.

If, in your housing search, you believe you are being 
discriminated against on the basis of your race, color, 
nationality, religion, sex, familial status, or disability, 
contact HUD’s Office of Fair Housing (p. 114).

Buying A Home

Buying a home is one of the most complex financial 
decisions you’ll ever make.  In addition to the financial 
and legal issues involved, real estate agents and 
lenders may not be acting in your best interests.

•	 Real estate agents represent the seller, not the 
buyer. Consider hiring a buyer’s agent who works 
for you, not the seller. 

•	 Get prices on other homes. Knowing the price of 
other homes in a neighborhood will help you avoid 
paying too much.

•	 Have the property inspected. Use a licensed home 
inspector to carefully inspect the property before 
agreeing to buy it.

Mortgages

When shopping for a home mortgage, make sure you 
obtain all of the relevant information:

•	 Research current interest rates. Check the real 
estate section of your local newspaper, use the 
Internet, or call at least six lenders for information. 

•	 Check the rates for 30-year, 20-year and 15-year 
mortgages. You may be able to save thousands of 
dollars in interest charges by getting the shortest-
term mortgage you can afford.

•	 Ask for details on the same loan amount, loan 
term, and type of loan from multiple lenders so 
that you can compare the information. Be sure 
to get the Annual Percentage Rate (APR), which 
takes into account not only the interest rate but 
also points, broker fees, and other credit charges 
expressed as a yearly rate.

•	 Ask whether the rate is fixed or adjustable. The 
interest rate on adjustable rate mortgage loans 
(ARMs) can vary a great deal over the lifetime of 
the mortgage. An increase of several percentage 
points might raise payments by hundreds of dollars 
per month.

•	 If a loan has an adjustable rate, ask when and how 
the rate and loan payment could change.

•	 Find out how much down payment is required. 
Some lenders require 20 percent of the home’s 
purchase price as a down payment. But many 
lenders now offer loans that require less. In these 
cases, you may be required to purchase private 
mortgage insurance (PMI) to protect the lender if 
you fall behind on payments.

•	 If PMI is required, ask what the total cost of the 
insurance will be. How much will the monthly 
mortgage payment be when the PMI premium is 
added and how long you will be required to carry 
PMI?

•	 Ask if you can pay off the loan early and if there  
is a penalty for doing so.

To call or write an organization, use the directory (p. 60).21



There is a long list of sources for mortgages loans:  
mortgage banks, mortgage brokers, banks, thrifts and 
credit unions, home builders, real estate agencies and 
Internet lenders. 

Reverse Mortgages

A reverse mortgage is a special type of home loan  
for homeowners over the age of 62 that lets you 
convert the equity in your home into cash. The 
homeowner does not have to pay back the loan and 
interest for as long as you live in your home. The  
loan and interest is repaid only when the homeowner 
dies, sells their home or permanently moves out of 
their home. These mortgages can help homeowners 
who are house-rich, but cash-poor, stay in their  
homes and meet their financial needs. 

There are three types of reverse mortgages:  
federally-insured reverse mortgages, proprietary 
reverse mortgages and single-purpose reverse 
mortgages. As with any mortgage it is important  
to be a savvy consumer and shop for the best deal. 

For more information on reverse mortgages, check the 
directory for the following resources:

•	 The Federal Trade Commission (p. 121);

•	 The Department of Housing and Urban  
Development (p. 114) ;

•	 AARP (p. 125);

The Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA) 
requires lenders to give you information on all closing 
costs and escrow account practices. Any business 
relationships between the lender and closing service 
providers or other parties to the transaction must 

Type of 
Mortgage

Fixed rate and adjustable-rate mortgages are the two main types of mortgages, but 
there is a wide variety of other mortgage products available. Below are pros and cons 
of just a few of the mortgage products you may want to consider.

Pros Cons

Fixed-rate mortgage No surprises. The interest rate stays the same 
over the entire term, usually 15, 20 or 30 years.

If interest rates fall, you could be stuck paying  
a higher rate.

Adjustable-rate (ARM) or 
variable-rate mortgage

Usually offers a lower initial rate of interest  
than fixed-rate loans.

After an initial period, rates fluctuate over the  
life of the loan. When interest rates rise, 
generally so do your loan payments.

FHA (Federal Housing 
Administration) loan

Allows buyers who may not qualify for a home 
loan to obtain one. Low down payment. 

The size of your loan may be limited.

VA loan
Guaranteed loans for eligible veterans, active 
duty personnel and surviving spouses. Offers 
competitive rates, low or no down payments.

The size of your loan may be limited.

Balloon mortgage
Usually a fixed rate loan with relatively low 
payments for a certain period of time  
(about 5-7 years).

After an initial period, the entire balance of  
the loan is due immediately. This type of loan  
is risky.

Interest-only
Borrower pays only the interest on the loan,  
in monthly payments, for a fixed term  
(about 5-7 years).

After an initial period, the balance of the loan is 
due. This usually means much higher payments, 
paying a lump sum or refinancing.

www.USA.gov www.pueblo.gsa.gov 22

Beware: Double Dipping
If you’re working with a broker, the National Consumer 
Law Center (p. 128) recommends you demand to know 
how much the broker is making from the lender as well 
as from any fees you might be paying. It’s best to get 
this information upfront and in writing. Avoid a broker 
who is double-dipping — getting a fat premium from 
the lender, as well as fees from you.
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Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)

Division of Supervision and Consumer Protection
Consumer Response Center
2345 Grand Boulevard, Ste. 100
Kansas City, MO 64108
Toll free: 1-877-275-3342
TTY: 1-800-925-4618 (Toll free)
Fax: 703-812-1020
www.fdic.gov
https://www4.fdic.gov/STARSMAIL/index.asp, 
Online Consumer Assistance Form
FDIC responds to questions about federal deposit 
insurance coverage and handles complaints and 
inquiries about FDIC-insured state banks that are not 
members of the Federal Reserve System.

Federal Maritime Commission

Federal Maritime Commission (FMC)
Office of the Secretary
Office of Consumer Affairs & Dispute  
   Resolution Service
800 North Capitol St., NW
Washington, DC 20573
202-523-5807
Fax: 202 275-0059
E-mail: Complaints@fmc.gov
www.fmc.gov
FMC is the regulatory agency overseeing ocean 
carriers and certain other entities, operating in 
the waterborne foreign commerce of the U.S.  
FMC assists consumers engaged in disputes 
with transporting carriers, ocean transportation 
intermediaries and cruise operators.

Federal Reserve System

Federal Reserve Consumer Help
PO Box 1200
Minneapolis, MN 55480
Toll free: 1-888-851-1920 (8am-6pm, CT)
TTY: 1-877-766-8533 (Toll free) (8am-6pm, CT)
Fax: 1-877-888-2520 (Toll free)
E-mail: consumerhelp@federalreserve.gov
www.federalreserveconsumerhelp.gov
The Federal Reserve Board has consolidated its 
consumer channels to allow for more efficient 
investigation of complaints about state member 
banks.

Federal Trade Commission (FTC)

Federal Trade Commission
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Consumer Response Center
600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20580
Toll free: 1-877-382-4357
TTY: 1-866-653-4261 (Toll free)
www.ftc.gov
www.OnGuardOnline.gov, Internet fraud protection
The FTC works for the consumer to prevent 
fraudulent, deceptive, and unfair business practices 
in the marketplace and to provide information to 
help consumers spot, stop, and avoid them. To file 
a complaint or to get free information on consumer 
issues, visit the website or call the toll-free numbers 
above. The FTC records Internet, telemarketing, 
identity theft, and other fraud-related complaints 
in Consumer Sentinel, a secure, online database 
available to hundreds of civil and criminal law 
enforcement agencies in the U.S. and abroad.

General Services Administration

Federal Citizen Information Center
Federal Citizen Information Center (FCIC)
1800 F Street, NW
Room G-142
Washington, DC 20405
For Catalog Orders:  Send your name  
and address to Catalog, Pueblo, CO 81009
202-501-1794
Toll free: 1-800-333-4636
Fax: 202-501-4281
www.USA.gov, the U.S. government’s official web 
portal
www.pueblo.gsa.gov, FCIC homepage
www.ConsumerAction.gov, consumer information 
and tips
www.info.gov, citizen services
www.kids.gov, USA.gov for kids
www.GobiernoUSA.gov, USA.gov in Spanish
www.consumidor.gov, consumer information in 
Spanish
FCIC publishes the free, quarterly Consumer 
Information Catalog, which lists more than 200 free 
and low-cost Federal booklets on a wide variety of 
consumer topics, and maintains a family of websites 
to help provide free, timely and useful information 
to citizens. Consumers can get the information they 
need in three ways: through printed publications, 
by calling toll-free 1-800-FED-INFO (333-4636), or by 
visiting www.USA.gov, the U.S.government’s official 
web portal.
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Surplus Federal Property Sales
1800 F Street, NW
Washington, DC 20405
Toll free: 1-800-488-3111
www.gsa.gov, GSA homepage
gsaauctions.gov, GSA online auctions
GSA helps federal agencies dispose of unneeded 
property by selling directly to the public. They sell 
personal property, real estate, and vehicles to the 
public. For more information, visit www.gsa.gov and 
click “For Citizens.” The GSA Auctions® e-tool offers 
the general public the opportunity to bid electronically 
on many federal assets. The auctions are completely 
web-enabled, allowing all registered participants to 
bid on a single item or multiple items (lots) within 
specified timeframes. To access GSA Auctions, visit 
gsaauctions.gov.

National Archives and Records Administration

8601 Adelphi Rd.
College Park, MD 20740-6001
Toll free: 1-866-272-6272
TTY: 301-837-0482
Fax: 301-837-0483
E-mail: inquire@nara.gov
www.archives.gov
NARA is an independent federal agency that helps 
preserve our nation’s history by overseeing the 
management of all federal records.

National Council on Disability (NCD)

Director of Communications
1331 F St., NW,
Suite 850
Washington, DC 20004
202-272-2004
TTY: 202-272-2074
Fax: 202-272-2022
E-mail: ncd@ncd.gov
www.ncd.gov
The National Council on Disability is an independent 
federal agency making recommendations to the 
President and Congress on policies affecting 
Americans with disabilities. NCD works to empower 
individuals with disabilities and to promote equal 
opportunity.

National Credit Union Administration

National Credit Union Administration (NCUA)
1775 Duke St.
Alexandria, VA 22314-3428
703-518-6300
Toll free: 1-800-827-9650 (Fraud Hotline)
E-mail: pacamail@ncua.gov
www.ncua.gov
NCUA is the federal agency that charters and 
supervises federal credit unions and insures savings 
in federal and most state-chartered credit unions 
across the country through the National Credit Union 
Share Insurance Fund.

National Labor Relations Board

Division of Information
1099 14th St., NW
Washington, DC 20570-0001
202-273-1991
Toll free: 1-866-667-6572
TTY: 1-866-315-6572
Fax: 202-273-1789
www.nlrb.gov
The NLRB conducts elections to determine whether 
or not employees want union representation and 
investigates and remedies unfair labor practices by 
employers and unions.

Office of Personnel Management (OPM)

1900 E Street, NW
Washington, DC 20415
202-606-1800
TTY: 202-606-2532
E-mail: general@opm.gov
www.opm.gov
OPM manages the civil service of the federal 
government, coordinates the recruitment of new 
government employees, and manages their health 
insurance and retirement benefits programs. It also 
provides resources for locating student jobs, summer 
jobs, scholarships, and internships.

GSA, continued
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Small Business Administration (SBA)

409 3rd Street, SW, Suite 7600
Washington, DC 20416
202-205-6740
Toll free: 1-800-827-5722 (Information)
TTY: 704-344-6640
Fax: 202-481-6190
E-mail: answerdesk@sba.gov
www.sba.gov
The SBA helps Americans start, build, and grow 
businesses through an extensive network of field 
offices and partnerships with public and private 
organizations. For the office nearest you, look under 
“U.S. Government” in your telephone directory.

Social Security Administration

Office of Public Inquiries
2555 Windsor Park Bldg.
6401 Security Blvd.
Baltimore, MD 21235
Toll free: 1-800-772-1213
www.socialsecurity.gov
The Social Security Administration provides 
retirement, survivors and disability benefits, as well 
as administers Supplemental Security Income (SSI) 
payments. To report Social Security or SSI fraud,  
call toll free: 1-800-269-0271.

Surface Transportation Board (STB)

Department of Transportation
395 E Street, SW
Washington, DC 20423-0001
202-245-0245
TTY: 1-800-877-8339
www.stb.dot.gov
The STB resolves railroad rate and service disputes 
and reviews proposed railroad mergers. The STB is
decisionally independent, although it is 
administratively affiliated with the Department of 
Transportation.

Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation

Customer Contact Center
PO Box 151750
Alexandria, VA 22315-1750
Toll free: 1-800-400-7242
TTY: 1-800-877-8339
Fax: 202-326-4047 or 202-326-4147
www.pbgc.gov
www.pbgc.gov/about/contact.html
The Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation protects 
the retirement incomes of workers in private sector 
defined pension benefit plans. 

Railroad Retirement Board

844 North Rush St.
Chicago, IL 60611-2092
312-751-7139
Toll free: 1-800-808-0772 (Helpline)
TTY: 312-751-4701
www.rrb.gov/default.asp
The Railroad Retirement Board is an independent 
agency in the executive branch of the Federal 
Government. The Board’s primary function is to 
administer comprehensive retirement-survivor and 
unemployment-sickness benefit programs for the 
nation’s railroad workers and their families, under 
the Railroad Retirement and Railroad Unemployment 
Insurance Acts.

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)

Office of Investor Education and Advocacy
100 F Street, NE
Washington, DC 20549-0213
202-551-6551
Toll free: 1-800-732-0330
Fax: 202-772-9295
E-mail: help@sec.gov
www.sec.gov/investor.shtml, Investor information
www.sec.gov/complaint.shtml, Complaint form
The SEC’s Office of Investor Education and Advocacy 
provides a variety of services to help individuals 
address the problems and questions they may face as 
an investor. OIEA’s investor website above contains an 
extensive collection of free information on investing 
wisely and avoiding fraud.
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U.S. Postal Service

Vice President and Consumer Advocate
475 L’Enfant Plaza, SW
Room 10427
Washington, DC 20260-2200
202-268-2282
Toll free: 1-800-275-8777
TTY: 1-877-889-2457
www.usps.gov
The US Postal Service Consumer Advocate listens to 
the voice of the customer and amplifies the message 
to postal management. Through proactive external 
messaging, the Consumer Advocate also channels 
information from the Postal Service to customers on 
postal policy and procedures and on ways to get the 
most from their Post Office.

United States Postal Inspection Service
Criminal Investigations Service Center
ATTN: Mail Fraud
222 S. Riverside Plaza, Suite 1250
Chicago, IL 60606-6100
Toll free: 1-877-876-2455
postalinspectors.uspis.gov/
If you believe you have been the victim of a crime 
involving the U.S. mail or need assistance with postal-
related problems of a law enforcement nature, you 
should contact your nearest Postal Inspection Service 
office. Addresses and telephone numbers can be 
found in the government pages of your telephone book 
or by visiting the Postal Inspection Service website.
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AARP
601 East St., NW
Washington, DC 20049
Toll free: 1-888-687-2277
TTY: 1-877-434-7598 (Toll free)
www.aarp.org
AARP is committed to addressing 
those consumer problems and 
issues that especially impact the  
financial security of people  50 years 
and older. Through advocacy at the 
federal and state levels, AARP works 
to make the marketplace safer for 
all consumers. AARP also employs 
a variety of strategies to help AARP 
members protect themselves from 
fraud and deceptive practices.

Alliance Against Fraud
1701 K St., NW, Suite 1200
Washington, DC 20006
202-835-3323
Fax: 202-835-0747
E-mail: info@nclnet.org
www.fraud.org/aaft/aaftinfo.htm
The Alliance, coordinated by the 
National Consumers League, is a 
coalition of public interest groups, 
trade associations, labor unions, 
businesses, law enforcement 
agencies, educators, and consumer 
protection agencies. AAF members 
promote efforts to educate the public 
about telemarketing and Internet 
fraud and how to shop safely by 
phone and online.

American Council on 
Consumer Interests (ACCI)
555 East Wells St., # 1100
Milwaukee, WI 53202
414-276-6445
Fax: 414-276-3349
E-mail: info@consumerinterests.org
www.consumerinterests.org

These organizations define their missions as consumer assistance, protection and/or advocacy.  
The descriptions below are based on information they provided.

The type of service provided by each organization varies. Those that assist individuals with problems 
are specified. The others do not assist consumers with individual complaints, but they may be interested 
in hearing from consumers about problems, issues and trends in connection with their advocacy and 
consumer education activities.  

Most, though not all, distribute consumer education and information materials. Where informational  
or educational materials are offered, there may be a charge; contact the organization to find out.

ACCI is the leading consumer 
policy research and education 
organization consisting of a world-
wide community of researchers, 
educators and related professionals.

American Council on Science 
and Health (ACSH)
New York, NY 10023-5860
212-362-7044
Fax: 212-362-4919
E-mail: acsh@acsh.org
www.acsh.org
A nonprofit public education group, 
ACSH provides consumers with 
up-to-date scientifically sound 
information on the relationship 
between human health and 
chemicals, foods, lifestyles, and the 
environment. Booklets and special 
reports on a variety of topics are 
available.

Center for Auto Safety (CAS)
1825 Connecticut Ave., NW, Ste. 330
Washington, DC 20009
202-328-7700
www.autosafety.org
CAS advocates on behalf of 
consumers in auto safety and 
quality, fuel efficiency, emissions, 
and related issues. For advice 
on specific problems, CAS 
requests that consumers write a 
brief statement of the problem or 
question, including the year, make 
and model of the vehicle. Mail it 
with a stamped self-addressed 
envelope to the address above.

Center for Science in the 
Public Interest (CSPI)
1875 Connecticut Ave., NW, Ste. 300
Washington, DC 20009
202-332-9110
Fax: 202-265-4954
E-mail: cspi@cspinet.org
www.cspinet.org
A nonprofit, membership 
organization, CSPI conducts 
research, education, and advocacy 
on nutrition, health, food safety and 
related issues, and publishes the 
monthly Nutrition Action Healthletter 
as well as other consumer 
information materials.

Consumers’ Checkbook 
Magazine
1625 K St., NW, 8th Floor
Washington, DC 20006
202-347-7283
Toll free: 1-800-213-7283
Fax: 202-347-4000
E-mail: info@checkbook.org
www.checkbook.org
The Center for the Study of Services 
is an independent, nonprofit 
consumer organization. The 
organization’s purpose is to provide 
consumers with information to 
help them get high quality services 
and products at the best possible 
prices. Consumers CHECKBOOK 
evaluates the quality and prices of 
service firms and stores. The Center 
also provides help to consumers 
shopping for vehicles and 
healthcare, through the publications: 
CarBargains, LeaseWise, Cardeals, 
The Guide to Health Plans for Federal 
Employees, Guide to Top Doctors, and 
Consumers’ Guide to Hospitals.
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Certified Financial Planner 
Board of Standards
1425 K St., NW, Ste. 500
Washington, DC 20005
202-379-2200
Toll free: 1-888-237-6275
Fax: 202-379-2299
E-mail: mail@cfpboard.org
www.cfp.net
Certified Financial Planner Board  
of Standards is a nonprofit  
regulatory organization that fosters 
professional standards in personal 
financial planning. The CFP Board 
works to ensure that the public 
values, has access to, and benefits 
from competent financial planning. 
The CFP Board certifies financial 
planners who meet its requirements 
by granting use of these marks, 
CFP,® CERTIFIED FINANCIAL 
PLANNER™ and CFP (with  
flame logo).

Coalition Against Insurance 
Fraud
Washington, DC 20005
202-393-7330
Toll free: 1-800-835-6422
Fax: 202-318-9189
E-mail: info@insurancefraud.org
www.InsuranceFraud.org
The Coalition Against Insurance 
Fraud is a national alliance of 
consumer groups, government 
agencies, and insurance companies 
dedicated to combating all forms of 
insurance fraud through advocacy 
and public information. It conducts 
research, develops public education 
programs and provides information 
on how to avoid becoming a victim 
of insurance fraud.

Congress Watch
Washington, DC 20003
202-546-4996
Fax: 202-547-7392
E-mail: congresswatch@citizen.org
www.citizen.org/congress
An arm of Public Citizen, Congress 
Watch works for consumer-related 
legislation, regulation, and policies 
in such areas as health and safety, 
and campaign financing, and has 
publications available on the issues 
with which it deals.

Consumer Action
221 Main St., Suite 480
San Francisco, CA 94105
415-777-9635 (Consumer Complaints)
213-623-8327 (Hotline)
TTY: 415-777-9456
Fax: 415-777-5267
E-mail: info@consumer-action.org
www.consumer-action.org
An education and advocacy 
organization specializing in credit, 
finance, and telecommunications 
issues, Consumer Action offers a 
multi-lingual consumer complaint 
hotline, free information on its 
surveys of banks and long-distance 
telephone companies, and consumer 
education materials in as many as 
eight languages. Community-based 
organizations can receive these free 
publications in bulk.

Consumer Federation of 
America (CFA)
1620 I St., Suite 200
Washington, DC 20006
202-387-6121
Fax: 202-265-7989
E-mail: cfa@consumerfed.org
www.consumerfed.org
CFA is a consumer advocacy 
and education organization. It 
currently represents consumer 
interests on issues such as, 
telephone service, insurance and 
financial services, product safety, 
indoor air pollution, health care, 
product liability, and utility rates. It 
develops and distributes studies of 
various consumer issues, as well 
as consumer guides in book and 
pamphlet form. In addition, CFA 
publishes several newsletters.

Consumer Reports
Yonkers, NY 10703-1057
914-378-2000
Fax: 914-378-2900
www.consumerreports.org
Consumer Reports® is published by 
Consumers Union (CU), an expert, 
independent nonprofit organization 
whose mission is to work for a 
fair, just, and safe marketplace for 
all consumers and to empower 
consumers to protect themselves. 
To achieve this mission, we test, 

inform, and protect. To maintain 
our independence and impartiality, 
CU accepts no outside advertising, 
no free test samples, and has no 
agenda other than the interests of 
consumers. See also: Consumers 
Union.

Consumers for World Trade 
(CWT)
1001 Connecticut Ave., N.W., Suite 1110
Washington, DC 20036
202-293-2944
Fax: 202-293-0495
E-mail: cwt@cwt.org
www.cwt.org
A nonprofit organization, CWT 
supports trade expansion and 
liberalization to promote economic 
growth and increase consumer 
choice and price competition in the 
marketplace. Various publications 
are available.

Consumers Union
101 Truman Ave.
Yonkers, NY 10703-1057
914-378-2000
Fax: 914-378-2900
www.consumersunion.org
Consumers Union (CU), publisher 
of Consumer Reports, is an 
independent, nonprofit testing and 
information organization serving only 
consumers. CU is a comprehensive 
source for unbiased advice about 
products and services, personal 
finance, health and nutrition, and 
other consumer concerns. Since 
1936, their mission has been to test 
products, inform the public, and 
protect consumers. CU’s Advocacy 
Offices provide tools to consumers 
to make their concerns heard by 
government and industry. They 
also testify before Federal and state 
legislative and regulatory bodies, 
petition government agencies, 
emphasizing a national grass roots 
approach on behalf of consumers. 
See also: Consumer Reports.

Consumer Policy Institute
914-378-2455
Fax: 914-378-2928
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Washington DC Office
1101 17th St. NW, Suite 500
Washington, DC 20036
202-462-6262
Fax: 202-265-9548
 
Southwest Regional Office
506 West 14th, Suite A
Austin, TX 78701-1643
512-477-4431 
Fax: 512-477-8934
 
West Coast Regional Office
1535 Mission St.
San Francisco, CA 94103-2512 
415-431-6747 
Fax: 415-431-0906

Families USA
1201 New York Ave. NW,
Suite 1100
Washington, DC 20005
202-628-3030
Fax: 202-347-2417
E-mail: info@familiesusa.org
www.familiesusa.org
A national, nonprofit membership 
organization committed to 
comprehensive reform of health and 
long-term care, Families USA works 
to educate and mobilize consumers 
on healthcare issues. Families USA 
develops and distributes reports and 
other materials on health and long-
term care issues.

The Federation of American 
Consumers and Travelers 
(FACT)
318 Hillsboro Ave.
PO Box 104
Edwardsville, IL 62025
Toll free: 1-800-872-3228
Toll free: 1-877-444-3228
Fax: 618-656-5369
E-mail: cservice@usafact.org
www.usafact.org
FACT is a national not-for-profit 
consumer group that provides 
help to individuals and small 
associations. FACT provides non-
biased and non-partisan weekly 
Eye-on-Washington Reports direct 

from the nation’s capitol, no-strings-
attached Disaster Aid, continuing 
education scholarships, community 
and classroom grants, assistance 
for small business owners, travel 
discounts, and a Consumer  
Hotline/Library.

Funeral Consumers Alliance
33 Patchen Rd.
South Burlington, VT 05403
802-865-8300
Toll free: 1-800-765-0107
Fax: 802-865-2626
E-mail: info@funerals.org
www.funerals.org
Funeral Consumers Alliance is a 
nonprofit educational organization 
protecting a consumer’s right to 
choose a dignified, meaningful, 
affordable funeral. In addition to 
informing the public about their 
available options and rights, FCA 
will assist in mediating complaints. 
There are more than 100 local 
affiliates around the country,  
many of which work for better 
legislation, conduct funeral price 
surveys, and counsel members and 
the general public.

HALT: An Organization of 
Americans for Legal Reform
1612 K St. NW, Suite 510
Washington, DC 20006
202-887-8255
Toll free: 1-888-367-4258
Fax: 202-887-9699
E-mail: halt@halt.org
www.halt.org
HALT’s mission is to enable 
Americans to handle their legal 
affairs affordably, equitably, and 
simply. HALT publishes a series of 
self-help legal manuals, operates 
a legal information clearinghouse, 
and advocates for legal reforms 
which will benefit consumers.

Health Research Group (HRG)
1600 20th St., NW
Washington, DC 20009
202-588-1000
E-mail: pcmail@citizen.org
www.citizen.org/hrg

A division of Public Citizen, HRG 
works for protection against unsafe 
foods, drugs, medical devices, 
and workplaces, and advocates 
for greater consumer control over 
personal health decisions.  A 
monthly Health Letter and a  
monthly letter on prescription  
drugs are available.

Hearing Loss Association  
of America
7910 Woodmont Ave., Suite 1200
Bethesda, MD 20814
301-657-2248
TTY: 301-657-2249
Fax: 301-913-9413
E-mail: info@hearingloss.org
www.hearingloss.org
The Hearing Loss Association of 
America is a nonprofit serving 
the interests of consumers with 
hearing loss through self help, 
advocacy and education. It offers 
publications on: hearing aids, 
cochlear implants, assistive listening 
devices, Americans with Disabilities 
Act, employment, travel, lip-reading, 
education, parenting, medical 
research, psychological stress and 
telephone and television strategies. 
Hearing Loss Association of 
America holds annual conventions, 
fundraising walks, and publishes 
Hearing Loss Magazine.

Jump$tart Coalition for 
Personal Financial Literacy
Washington, DC 20006
202-466-8604
Toll free: 1-888-453-3822
Fax: 202-223-0321
E-mail: info@jumpstartcoalition.org
www.jumpstart.org
The Coalition’s direct objective is to 
encourage curriculum enrichment 
to ensure that basic personal 
financial management skills are 
attained during the K-16 educational 
experience.

Consumers Union, continued
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National Association 
of Consumer Agency 
Administrators (NACAA)
Two Brentwood Commons, Suite 150
750 Old Hickory Blvd.
Brentwood, TN 37027
615-371-6125
Toll free: 1-866-729-6222
Fax: 615-369-6225
E-mail: nacaa@nacaa.net
www.nacaa.net
An association of the administrators 
of local, state, and Federal 
Government consumer protection 
agencies, NACAA provides training 
programs, public policy studies 
and conferences, professional 
publications, and other member 
services.

National Coalition for 
Consumer Education
1701 K St., NW, Suite 1200
Washington, DC 20006
202-835-3323
Fax: 202-835-0747
www.nclnet.org
NCCE is a coalition coordinated by 
the National Consumers League. It 
develops and provides educational 
materials and resources to consumer 
educators through a network of 
state coordinators. The coalition 
sponsors LifeSmarts, a game-show 
competition open to all teens in the 
9th through 12th grade.

National Community 
Reinvestment Coalition 
(NCRC)
727 15th St., NW, Suite 900
Washington, DC 20005-2112
202-628-8866
Fax: 202-628-9800
E-mail: member@ncrc.org
www.ncrc.org
NCRC was founded in 1990 with 
the goal of ending discriminatory 
banking practices and increasing  
the flow of private capital and credit 
into underserved communities 
across the country.

National Consumer Law Center 
(NCLC)
Seven Winthrop Square, 4th Floor
Boston, MA 02111-1245
617-542-8010
Fax: 617-542-8028
E-mail: consumerlaw@nclc.org
www.consumerlaw.org
NCLC is an advocacy and research 
organization focusing on the 
needs of low-income and elderly 
consumers. Limited resources 
prevent the organization from 
responding to individual inquiries. 
The Center publishes Surviving 
Debt: A Guide for Consumers. NCLC 
Reports, a newsletter on consumer 
law developments that is published 
24 times a year.

The National Consumer 
Protection Technical  
Resource Center
1155 21st St. NW, Suite 202
Washington, DC 20036
Toll free: 1-877-808-2468
Fax: 202-331-9334
E-mail: info@smpresource.org
www.smpresource.org
The Center is funded by the U.S. 
Administration on Aging to support 
community based Senior Medicare 
Patrol Programs (SMP). The 
SMP projects utilize the skills and 
expertise of retired professionals to 
educate and empower communities 
to take an active role in the detection 
and prevention of healthcare fraud 
and abuse, with a focus on the 
Medicare and Medicaid programs.

National Consumers League
1701 K St., NW, Suite 1200
Washington, DC 20006
202-835-3323
Fax: 202-835-0747
www.nclnet.org
Founded in 1899, the mission of the 
NCL is to protect and promote social 
and economic justice for consumers 
and workers. The league is a 
nonprofit membership organization 
working for health, safety, and 
fairness in the marketplace and 
workplace. Current principal issue 
areas include consumer fraud, 

food and drug safety, fair labor 
standards, child labor, healthcare, 
e-commerce, financial services and 
telecommunications. The league 
promotes consumer education 
through outreach to high school 
students and provides information 
to consumers through publications, 
media outreach and multiple  
websites.

National Council on the  
Aging (NCOA)
Washington, DC 20036
202-479-1200
Toll free: 1-800-424-9046
TTY: 202-479-6674
Fax: 202-479-0735
E-mail: info@ncoa.org
www.ncoa.org
NCOA is the nation’s first association 
of organizations and professionals 
dedicated to promoting the dignity, 
self-determination, well being, and 
contributions of older persons.

National Fraud Information 
Center/Internet Fraud Watch
1701 K St., NW, Suite 1200
Washington, DC 20006
Fax: 202-835-0747
www.fraud.org
NFC/IFW assists consumers with 
recognizing and filing complaints 
about telemarketing and Internet 
fraud. A project of the National 
Consumers League, the hotline 
provides consumers with information 
to help them avoid becoming 
victims of fraud and in reporting 
telemarketing and Internet fraud to 
law enforcement. Spanish-speaking 
counselors are available.

Public Citizen, Inc.
1600 20th St., NW
Washington, DC 20009
202-588-1000
E-mail: pcmail@citizen.org
www.citizen.org
A national, nonprofit membership 
organization representing consumer 
interests through lobbying, litigation, 
research, and publications, Public 
Citizen represents consumer 
interests in the areas of product 



129
Provided financial support for the publication  
of the Consumer Action Handbook.

National Consumer Organizations

liability, healthcare delivery, safe 
medical devices and medications, 
open and ethical government, and 
safe and sustainable energy use.

Society of Consumer Affairs 
Professionals in Business 
(SOCAP)
675 North Washington St., Suite 200
Alexandria, VA 22314
703-519-3700
Fax: 703-549-4886
E-mail: socap@socap.org
www.socap.org
SOCAP provides training, 
conferences and publications to 
encourage and promote effective 
communication and understanding
among business, government 
and consumers; and to define 
and advance the consumer affairs 
profession.

U.S. Public Interest Research 
Group (U.S. PIRG)
218 D St., SE,
First Floor
Washington, DC 20003-1900
202-546-9707
Fax: 202-546-2461
E-mail: uspirg@pirg.org
www.uspirg.org
U.S. PIRG is the national lobbying 
office for the state public interest 
research groups. The PIRGs are 
consumer and environmental 
advocacy groups that address 
issues such as, bank fees, identity 
theft, credit bureau abuses, clean 
air and clean water, right to know, 
campaign finance reform, and 
various other issues. U.S. PIRG  
does not handle individual 
consumer complaints directly but 
measures complaint levels to gauge 
the need for remedial legislation.
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State, County and City Consumer Protection Offices

City, county and state consumer offices offer a variety of important services. They might mediate 
complaints, conduct investigations, prosecute offenders of consumer laws, license and regulate 
professionals, provide educational materials and advocate in the consumer interest. 

An advantage of contacting a city or county government office is that they are familiar with local businesses 
and local ordinances. If there is not a consumer office in your local area, contact your state consumer 
office. State offices are familiar with state laws and look for statewide patterns of problems. 

To save time, call before sending a written complaint. Ask if the office handles the type of complaint you 
have and if complaint forms are provided. Many offices distribute consumer materials specifically geared 
to state laws and local issues. Ask if any information is available on your problem.

This list is arranged in alphabetical order by state name. 

Alabama

State Offices

Consumer Affairs Section
Office of the Attorney General
11 South Union St.
Montgomery, AL 36130
334-242-7335
Toll free: 1-800-392-5658 (AL)
Fax: 334-242-2433
www.ago.state.al.us

Alaska

State Offices

Consumer Protection Unit
Office of the Attorney General
1031 West 4th Ave., Suite 200
Anchorage, AK 99501-5903
907-269-5100
Toll free: 1-888-576-2529
Fax: 907-276-8554
www.law.state.ak.us

Arizona

State Offices

Consumer Protection and 
Advocacy Section
Office of the Attorney General
1275 West Washington St.
Phoenix, AZ 85007
602-542-5025
602-542-5763 (Consumer  
   Information and Complaints)
Toll free: 1-800-352-8431 (AZ)
Fax: 602-542-4085
www.azag.gov

Consumer Protection
Office of the Attorney General
400 West Congress South Bldg., 
Suite 315
Tucson, AZ 85701
520-628-6504
Toll free: 1-800-352-8431 (AZ)
Fax: 520-628-6530
E-mail: consumerinfo@azag.gov
www.azag.gov

County Offices

Greenlee County Attorney’s 
Office
PO Box 1717
Clifton, AZ 85533
928-865-4108
Fax: 928-865-4665
www.azag.gov

Coconino County Attorney’s 
Office
110 East Cherry Ave.
Flagstaff, AZ 86001
928-779-6518
Toll free: 1-800-559-9289
Fax: 928-679-8201
www.coconino.az.gov/ca.aspx

Pinal County Attorney’s Office
PO Box 887
Florence, AZ 85232
520-866-6271
Toll free: 1-800-208-6897
Fax: 520-866-6423
E-mail:	pinalcountyattorney@ 
	 co.pinal.az.us
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/
Departments/Countyattorney/
Pages/Home.aspx

Gila County Attorney’s Office
1400 East Ash St.
Globe, AZ 85501
928-425-3231, ext. 8630
Fax: 928-425-3720
www.azag.gov

Navajo County Attorney’s Office
PO Box 668
Holbrook, AZ 86025
928-524-4026
Fax: 928-524-4244
www.azag.gov

Mohave County Attorney’s Office
PO Box 7000
315 North Fourth St. (Zip: 86401)
Kingman, AZ 86402-7000
928-753-0719
Fax: 928-753-2669
www.co.mohave.az.us/depts/
attorney/attorney_default.asp

Santa Cruz County Attorney’s 
Office
2150 North Congress Dr., Ste 201
Nogales, AZ 85621
520-375-7780
Fax: 520-375-7793
www.co.santa-cruz.az.us/county_
attorney/

La Paz County Attorney’s Office
1320 Kofa Ave.
Parker, AZ 85344
928-669-6118
Fax: 928-669-2019
www.azag.gov

Yavapai County Attorney’s Office
255 East Gurley
Yavapai County Courthouse
Prescott, AZ 86301
928-771-3344
Fax: 928-771-3110
www.azag.gov
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Graham County Attorney’s Office
800 West Main
Graham County Courthouse
Safford, AZ 85546
928-428-3620
Fax: 928-428-7200
www.azag.gov

Apache County Attorney’s Office
PO Box 637
St. Johns, AZ 85936
928-337-7560
Fax: 928-337-2427
www.azag.gov

Yuma County Attorney’s Office
250 West Second St., Suite G
Yuma, AZ 85364
928-817-4300
Fax: 928-817-4301
www.co.yuma.az.us/atty/

Arkansas

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Office of the Attorney General
323 Center St., Suite 200
Little Rock, AR 72201
501-682-2007
501-682-2341 (Consumer Hotline)
Toll free: 1-800-482-8982  
   (Consumer Hotline)
Toll free: 1-800-448-3014  
   (Crime Victims Hotline)
Toll free: 1-888-382-1222  
   (Do Not Call Program)
TTY: 501-682-6073
Fax: 501-682-8118  
   (Consumer Division)
E-mail: oag@arkansasag.gov
www.arkansasag.gov

California

State Offices

Bureau of Automotive Repair
California Department of Consumer 
Affairs
10240 Systems Pkwy.
Sacramento, CA 95827
Toll free: 1-800-952-5210 (CA)
TTY: 916-322-1700 
Fax: 916-255-1369
www.autorepair.ca.gov

Office of the Attorney General
PO Box 944255
Public Inquiry Unit
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
916-322-3360
Toll free: 1-800-952-5225 (CA)
TTY: 916-324-5564
Fax: 916-323-5341
E-mail: piu@doj.ca.gov
www.caag.state.ca.us

California Department of 
Consumer Affairs
1625 North Market Blvd.
Sacramento, CA 95834
Toll free: 1-800-952-5210 (CA)
TTY: 916-322-1700 
E-mail: dca@dca.ca.gov
www.dca.ca.gov

County Offices

Consumer and Environmental 
Protection Unit
Solano County Distict Attorney’s 
Office
675 Texas Street, Suite 4500
Fairfield, CA 94533
707-784-6800
Fax: 707-784-7986
www.co.solano.ca.us/depts/da/

Consumer & Environmental 
Protection Division
Fresno County District Attorney’s 
Office
1250 Van Ness Ave., 2nd Floor
Fresno, CA 93721
559-488-3156
559-488-3836
Fax: 559-488-1852
www.co.fresno.ca.us

Los Angeles County Department 
of Consumer Affairs
500 West Temple St., Room B-96
Los Angeles, CA 90012-2706
213-974-1452
Toll free: 1-800-593-8222 (L.A. County)
TTY: 213-626-0913
Fax: 213-687-0233
E-mail: dca@dca.lacounty.gov
dca.lacounty.gov

Contra Costa County District 
Attorney’s Office
900 Ward Street, 4th Floor
Martinez, CA 94553
925-957-8604
Fax: 925-646-4683
www.co.contra-costa.ca.us/

Consumer Fraud Unit
Stanislaus County District 
Attorney’s Office
832 12th Street, 3rd Floor
Modesto, CA 95354
209-525-5550
Fax: 209-525-5545
www.stanislaus-da.org

Consumer Affairs Division
Napa County District  
Attorney’s Office
PO Box 720
931 Parkway Mall
Napa, CA 94559
707-253-4211
707-253-4059 (Hotline)
Fax: 707-253-4041
www.co.napa.ca.us/

Consumer & Environmental Unit
San Mateo County District 
Attorney’s Office
400 County Center, 3rd Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063
650-363-4651 (Consumer  
   Complaint Line)
650-363-4636
Fax: 650-363-4873

Consumer Protection Division
Monterey County District Attorney’s 
Office
PO Box 1131
Salinas, CA 93902
831-755-5070
Fax: 831-755-5068
www.co.monterey.ca.us

San Diego County District 
Attorney’s Office
330 W. Broadway, Suite 750
San Diego, CA 92101
619-531-4070
Fax: 619-531-4481
www.sdcda.org
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Consumer and Environmental 
Protection Unit
San Francisco County District 
Attorney’s Office
732 Brannan St.
San Francisco, CA 94103
415-551-9595 (Hotline)
Fax: 415-551-9504
www.sfdistrictattorney.org

Consumer Protection Unit
Santa Clara County District 
Attorney’s Office
West Wing, 4th Floor
70 West Hedding St.
San Jose, CA 95110
408-792-2880
408-299-7400
Fax: 408-279-8742
E-mail:	webmaster@ 
	 da.co.santa-clara.ca.us
www.santaclara-da.org

Economic Crime Unit
Consumer Fraud Department
1050 Monterey St., Room 223
County Government Center
San Luis Obispo, CA 93408
805-781-5856
Fax: 805-781-1173
www.slocounty.ca.gov/DA/

Consumer Protection Unit
Marin County District Attorney’s 
Office
Hall of Justice, Room 130
San Rafael, CA 94903
415-499-6495
Fax: 415-499-3719
E-mail: consumer@co.marin.ca.us/da
www.co.marin.ca.us

Consumer/Environmental 
Protection Unit
Orange County District Attorney’s 
Office
401 Civic Center Dr. W.
Santa Ana, CA 92701
714-648-3600
Fax: 714-648-3636
orangecountyda.com

Consumer Protection Unit
Santa Barbara County District 
Attorney’s Office
1112 Santa Barbara St.
Santa Barbara, CA 93101
805-568-2300
Fax: 805-568-2453

Division of Consumer Affairs
Santa Cruz County District 
Attorney’s Office
701 Ocean St., Room 200
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
831-454-2050
TTY: 831-454-2123
Fax: 831-454-2694
www.co.santa-cruz.ca.us

Consumer Mediation Section
Ventura County District Attorney’s 
Office
800 South Victoria Ave.
Ventura, CA 93009
805-654-3110
Fax: 805-648-9255
www.ventura.org/vcda

City Offices

Criminal Division
Kern County District Attorney’s 
Office
1215 Truxtun Ave., 4th Floor
Bakersfield, CA 93301
661-868-2340
Fax: 661-868-2700
E-mail: dacriminal@co.kern.ca.us
www.co.kern.ca.us/da/criminal.asp

Los Angeles City Attorney’s 
Office
200 North Main St.
800 City Hall East
Los Angeles, CA 90012
213-978-8100
Fax: 213-978-8312
www.lacity.org/atty

Consumer and Environmental 
Protection Unit
1200 Third Ave., Suite 700
San Diego, CA 92101-4106
619-533-5600
Fax: 619-533-5504
E-mail: cepu@sandiego.gov
www.sandiego.gov/cityattorney

Consumer Protection, Fair 
Housing & Public Rights Division
Santa Monica City Attorney’s Office
1685 Main St., Room 310
Santa Monica, CA 90401
310-458-8336
Fax: 310-395-6727
E-mail: consumer@smgov.net
www.smgov.net

Colorado

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Colorado Attorney General’s Office
1525 Sherman St., 7th Floor
Denver, CO 80203-1760
303-866-5079
Toll free: 1-800-222-4444
Fax: 303-866-4916

AARP ElderWatch
A program with the Colorado 
Attorney General and the AARP 
Foundation that is fighting elder 
financial abuse and fraud through 
information, education, referrals and 
consumer advocacy.
1301 Pennsylvania, #280
Denver, CO 80203
303-222-4444, option 2
Toll free: 1-800-222-4444, option 2
Fax: 303-831-6217
E-mail: aarpelderwatch@aarp.org
www.aarpelderwatch.org

County Offices

Economic Crime Division
El Paso and Teller Counties District 
Attorney’s Office
105 East Vermijo, Suite 300
Colorado Springs, CO 80903-2083
719-520-6002
Fax: 719-520-6164
dao.elpasoco.com

Economic Crime Unit
Denver District Attorney’s Office
201 West Colfax Ave., Dept 801
Denver, CO 80202
720-913-9179
Fax: 720-913-9177
www.denverda.org

Weld County District Attorney’s 
Office
915 Tenth Street, PO Box 1167
Greeley, CO 80632
970-356-4010
Fax: 970-352-8023
www.co.weld.co.us/departments/

Pueblo County District  
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Attorney’s Office
701 Court
Pueblo, CO 81003
719-583-6000
Fax: 719-583-6666
www.co.pueblo.co.us/district_
attorney/

Connecticut

State Offices

Department of Consumer 
Protection
165 Capitol Ave.
Hartford, CT 06106
860-713-6050
Fax: 860-713-7243
www.ct.gov/dcp

City Offices

Director of Consumer Protection
City of Middletown
PO Box 1300
245 deKoven Dr.
Middletown, CT 06457-1300
860-344-3491
TTY: 860-344-3521
Fax: 860-344-3561
E-mail:	phil.cacciola@ 
	 cityofmiddletown.com
www.cityofmiddletown.com

Delaware

State Offices

Fraud and Consumer Protection 
Division
Office of the Attorney General
820 North French St.
Carvel State Office Building
Wilmington, DE 19801
302-577-8600
Toll free: 1-800-220-5424
Fax: 302-577-6499
E-mail:	consumer.protection@ 
	 state.de.us
www.attorneygeneral.delaware.gov

District of Columbia

District of Columbia only 
Offices

Office of Consumer Protection
Office of the Attorney General for 
the District of Columbia
941 N. Capitol Street NE
Washington, DC 20002
202-442-4615
Fax: 202-478-9296
www.dcra.dc.gov

District of Columbia Offices

Department of Consumer and 
Regulatory Affairs
Government of the District of 
Columbia
941 North Capitol St., NE
Washington, DC 20002
202-442-4400
202-727-1000 (Citywide Call Center)
Fax: 202-442-9445
E-mail: dcra@dc.gov
www.dcra.dc.gov

Office of Consumer Protection
Department of Consumer & 
Regulatory Affairs
941 N Capitol Street NE
Washington, DC 20002
202-442-4400
202-442-4615
Fax: 202-478-9296
www.dcra.dc.gov

Florida

State Offices

Economic Crimes Division
Office of the Attorney General
PL-01 The Capitol
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050
850-414-3600
Toll free: 1-866-966-7226 (FL)
TTY: 1-800-955-8771 (Toll free)
Fax: 850-488-4483
www.myfloridalegal.com

Florida Dept. of Agriculture and 
Consumer Services
Division of Consumer Services
2005 Apalachee Pkwy.
Tallahassee, FL 32301
850-488-2221
Toll free: 1-800-435-7352 (FL)
Fax: 850-410-3839
www.800helpfla.com

Multi-State Litigation and 
Intergovernmental Affairs
Office of the Attorney General
PL-01 The Capitol
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050
850-414-3300
Toll free: 1-866-966-7226 (FL)
TTY: 1-800-955-8771 (Toll free)
Fax: 850-410-1630
www.myfloridalegal.com

Regional Offices

Economic Crimes Division
Office of the Attorney General
110 SE 6th St.
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301-5000
954-712-4600
Fax: 954-712-4658
www.myfloridalegal.com/consumer

Economic Crimes Unit
Office of the Attorney General
1300 Riverplace Blvd., Ste. 405
Jacksonville, FL 32207
904-348-2720
Fax: 904-858-6918

Economic Crimes Division
Office of the Attorney General
135 West Central Blvd., Suite 1000
Orlando, FL 32801
407-999-5588
Fax: 407-245-0365
www.myfloridalegal.com

Economic Crimes Division
Office of the Attorney General
3507 East Frontage Rd., Suite 325
Concourse Center 4
Tampa, FL 33607-1795
813-287-7950
Fax: 813-281-5515
www.myfloridalegal.com

Economic Crimes Division
Office of the Attorney General
1515 North Flagler Dr., Suite 900
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
561-837-5000
Fax: 561-837-5109
www.myfloridalegal.com
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County Offices

Pinellas County Office of 
Consumer Protection
15251 Roosevelt Blvd., Suite 209
Clearwater, FL 33760
727-464-6200
TTY: 727-464-6088
Fax: 727-464-6129
E-mail: consumer@co.pinellas.fl.us
www.pinellascounty.org/consumer

Broward County Consumer 
Affairs Division
115 South Andrews Ave., A460
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301
954-357-5350
Fax: 954-765-5309
E-mail: consumer@broward.org
www.broward.org/consumer

Miami-Dade County Consumer 
Services Department
140 West Flagler St., Suites 901-904
Miami, FL 33130
305-375-1250
E-mail: consumer@miamidade.gov
www.miamidade.gov/csd

Office of the State Attorney for 
Miami-Dade County
Economic Crime Division
1350 NW 12th Ave.
Miami, FL 33136-2111
305-547-0671
Fax: 305-547-0717
www.miamisao.com

Pasco County Consumer Affairs 
Division
7530 Little Rd., Suite 140
New Port Richey, FL 34654
727-847-8106
727-847-8110 (Info. Code Compliance)
Fax: 727-847-8191
E-mail: drjones@pascocountyfl.net
www.pascocountyfl.net

Orange County Consumer  
Fraud Unit
PO Box 1673
415 North Orange Ave.
Orlando, FL 32802
407-836-2490
Fax: 407-836-1210
E-mail: fraudhelp@sao9.org
www.orangecountyfl.net

Hillsborough County Consumer 
Protection Agency
8900 North Armenia Ave., Ste 226
Tampa, FL 33604-1072
813-903-3430
Fax: 813-903-3432
www.hillsboroughcounty.org/
consumerprotection

Palm Beach County Division of 
Consumer Affairs
50 South Military Trail
West Palm Beach, FL 33415
561-712-6600
Toll free: 1-800-852-7362
Fax: 561-712-6610
www.pbcgov.com/consumer

Georgia

State Offices

Governor’s Office of Consumer 
Affairs
Two Martin Luther King, Jr. Dr., 
Suite 356
Atlanta, GA 30334
404-656-3790
Toll free: 1-800-869-1123  
   (GA and Outside Atlanta)
Fax: 404-651-9018
consumer.georgia.gov

Hawaii

State Offices

Office of Consumer Protection
Department of Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs
345 Kekuanaoa St., Room 12
Hilo, HI 96720
808-933-0910
Fax: 808-933-8845
www.hawaii.gov/dcca

Office of Consumer Protection
Department of Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs
235 South Beretania St., Room 801
Honolulu, HI 96813-2419
808-586-2636
Fax: 808-586-2640
www.hawaii.gov/dcca/ocp

Office of Consumer Protection
Dept of Commerce and Consumer 
Affairs
1063 Lower Main St., Ste C-216
Wailuku, HI 96793
808-984-8244
Fax: 808-243-5807
www.hawaii.gov/dcca/ocp

Idaho

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Idaho Attorney General’s Office
650 West State St.
Boise, ID 83720-0010
208-334-2424
Toll free: 1-800-432-3545 (ID)
Fax: 208-334-4151
www.ag.idaho.gov

Illinois

State Offices

Consumer Fraud Bureau
1001 East Main St.
Carbondale, IL 62901
618-529-6400
Toll free: 1-800-243-0607 (Hotline)
TTY: Toll free 1-877-785-9339 (IL)
Fax: 618-529-6416
E-mail: ag_consumer@atg.state.il.us
www.illinoisattorneygeneral.gov

Consumer Fraud Bureau
100 West Randolph, 12th Floor
Chicago, IL 60601
312-814-3000
Toll free: 1-800-386-5438 (IL)
TTY: 312-814-3374
Fax: 312-814-2549
E-mail: ag_consumer@atg.state.il.us
www.illinoisattorneygeneral.gov

Governor’s Office of Citizens 
Action
222 South College, Room 106
Springfield, IL 62706
217-782-0244
Toll free: 1-800-642-3112 (IL)
Fax: 217-524-4049
E-mail: governor@illinois.gov
www.illinois.gov
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County Offices

Consumer Fraud Division
Cook County State Attorney’s Office
69 West Washington, Suite 3130
Chicago, IL 60602
312-603-8600
312-603-8700 (Consumer Line)
Fax: 312-603-9830
E-mail:	consumer@ 
	 cookcountygov.com
www.statesattorney.org/consumer_
fraud.htm

Consumer Fraud Bureau
Office of the Attorney General
500 South Second St.
Springfield, IL 62706
217-782-1090
Toll free: 1-800-243-0618 (IL)
TTY: 217-785-2771 or  
   Toll Free 1-877-844-5461(IL)
Fax: 217-782-1097
E-mail: ag_consumer@atg.state.il.us
www.illinoisattorneygeneral.gov

City Offices

Chicago Department of 
Consumer Services
Richard J. Daley Center
50 West Washington, Room 208
Chicago, IL 60602
312-744-4006
TTY: 312-744-9385
Fax: 312-742-8700
www.cityofchicago.org/
ConsumerServices

City of Des Plaines Consumer 
Protection Office
1420 Miner St., 6th Floor
Des Plaines, IL 60016
847-391-5488
Fax: 847-391-5378
E-mail:	consumerprotection@ 
	 desplaines.org
www.desplaines.org

Indiana

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Office of the Attorney General
302 West Washington St.
Indiana Government Center South
Indianapolis, IN 46204
317-232-6330
Toll free: 1-800-382-5516  
   (Consumer Hotline)
Fax: 317-232-4393
www.indianaconsumer.com

County Offices

Marion County Prosecuting 
Attorney’s Office
251 E Ohio St., Suite 160
Indianapolis, IN 46204
317-327-3522
Fax: 317-327-5409
www.indygov.org

Iowa

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Office of the Iowa Attorney General
Hoover Building
1305 East Walnut St., 2nd Floor
Des Moines, IA 50319
515-281-5926
Toll free: 1-888-777-4590 (IA)
Fax: 515-281-6771
E-mail: consumer@iowa.gov
www.IowaAttorneyGeneral.org

Kansas

State Offices

Consumer Protection &  
Antitrust Division
Office of the Attorney General
120 SW 10th, 2nd Floor
Topeka, KS 66612-1597
785-296-3751
Toll free: 1-800-432-2310 (KS)
TTY: 785-291-3767
Fax: 785-291-3699
E-mail: cprotect@ksag.org
www.ksag.org

County Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Johnson County District  
Attorney’s Office
100 North Kansas Ave.
Johnson County Courthouse
Olathe, KS 66061
913-715-3003
Fax: 913-715-3040
www.da.jocogov.org

Consumer Fraud & Economic 
Crime Division
Office of the District Attorney
535 North Main St., 1st Floor
Wichita, KS 67203-3747
316-660-3600
Toll free: 1-800-432-6878 (KS)
Fax: 316-383-4638
E-mail: consumer@sedgwick.gov
www.sedgwickcounty.org/da

Kentucky

State Offices

Office of Consumer Protection
Office of the Attorney General
1024 Capital Center Dr., Suite 200
Frankfort, KY 40601
502-696-5389
Toll free: 1-888-432-9257 (KY)
Fax: 502-573-8317
E-mail: attorney.general@ag.ky.gov
www.ag.ky.gov

Kentucky Office of the  
Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division
8911 Shelbyville Road
Frankfort, KY 40601
1024 Capital Center Drive   
Louisville, KY 40222
502-696-5389
502-429-7134 (Jefferson County)
Toll free: 888-432-9257
Fax: 502-429-7129
E-mail: decker@ag.ky.gov
ag.ky.gov
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Louisiana

State Offices

Consumer Protection Section
Office of the Attorney General
PO Box 94005
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9005
225-326-6400
Toll free: 1-800-351-4889
Fax: 225-326-6499
www.ag.state.la.us

County Offices

Jefferson Parish District 
Attorney’s Office
Economic Crime Unit
200 Derbigny St.
Gretna, LA 70053-5894
504-368-1020
Fax: 504-361-2996

Maine

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Office of the Attorney General
Six State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333
207-626-8800
Toll free: 1-800-436-2131  
   (Consumer Protection)
Fax: 207-626-8812
E-mail:	consumer.mediation@ 
	 maine.gov
www.maine.gov/ag

Bureau of Consumer Credit 
Protection
35 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333-0035
207-624-8527
Toll free: 1-800-332-8529 (ME)
TTY: 1-888-577-6690 (Toll free)
Fax: 207-582-7699
www.credit.maine.gov

Maryland

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Office of the Attorney General
200 Saint Paul Place, 16th Floor
Baltimore, MD 21202-2021
410-528-8662 (Consumer Complaints)
410-576-6550 (Consumer Information)
410-528-1840 (Health Advocacy Unit)
Toll free: 1-888-743-0023
Toll free: 1-877-261-8807  
   (Health Advocacy Unit)
TTY: 410-576-6372 (MD)
Fax: 410-576-7040
E-mail: consumer@oag.state.md.us
www.oag.state.md.us/consumer

Regional Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Maryland Attorney Generals’ Office
44 North Potomac Street, Suite 104
Hagerstown, MD 21740-5684
301-791-4780
TTY: 410-576-6372 (Baltimore office)
Fax: 301-791-7178
www.oag.state.md.us/consumer

Consumer Protection Division
Eastern Shore Branch Office
Office of the Attorney General
201 Baptist St., Suite 30
Salisbury, MD 21801-4976
410-713-3620
410-576-6300 (Baltimore office)
Toll free: 1-888-743-0023  
   (Baltimore office)
TTY: 410-576-6372
Fax: 410-713-3621
www.oag.state.md.us

County Offices

Howard County Office of 
Consumer Affairs
6751 Columbia Gateway Dr.
Columbia, MD 21046
410-313-6420
Fax: 410-313-6453
E-mail:	rgbowman@ 
	 howardcountymd.gov
www.howardcountymd.gov

Montgomery County Office of 
Consumer Protection
100 Maryland Ave., Suite 330
Rockville, MD 20850
240-777-3636
TTY: 240-777-3679
Fax: 240-777-3768
www.montgomerycountymd.gov/
consumer

Massachusetts

State Offices

Consumer Protection and 
Antitrust Division
Office of the Attorney General
One Ashburton Place
Boston, MA 02108
617-727-8400 (Consumer Hotline)
TTY: 617-727-4765
Fax: 617-727-3265
www.mass.gov/ago

Executive Office of Consumer 
Affairs and Business Regulation
Ten Park Plaza, Suite 5170
Boston, MA 02116
617-973-8700 (General Information)
617-973-8787 (Consumer Hotline)
Toll free: 1-888-283-3757 (MA)
TTY: 617-973-8790
Fax: 617-973-8798
E-mail: consumer@state.ma.us
www.mass.gov/Consumer

Southern Massachusetts Division
Office of the Attorney General
105 William St.
New Bedford, MA 02740
508-990-9700
Fax: 508-990-8686
www.mass.gov/ago

Western Massachusetts Division
Office of the Attorney General
1350 Main St., 4th Floor
Springfield, MA 01103-1629
413-784-1240
TTY: 617-727-4765 (Boston office)
Fax: 413-784-1244
www.mass.gov/ago
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Central Massachusetts Division
Office of the Attorney General
One Exchange Place
Worcester, MA 01608
508-792-7600
617-727-8400
Fax: 508-795-1991
www.mass.gov/ago

County Offices

Norfolk District Attorney’s Office
Consumer Protection Division
45 Shawmut Rd.
Canton, MA 02021
781-830-4800
Fax: 781-830-4801
www.mass.gov/da/norfolk

Franklin County
Northwestern District  
Attorney’s Office
13 Conway St.
Greenfield, MA 01301
413-774-3186
Fax: 413-773-3278
E-mail:	Janice.Garrett@ 
	 Massmail.state.ma.us

Hampshire County
North Western District  
Attorney’s Office
One Gleason Plaza
Northampton, MA 01060
413-586-9225
Fax: 413-584-3635

Berkshire County Consumer 
Advocates, Inc.
150 North St., Room 34
Pittsfield, MA 01201
413-443-9128
Toll free: 1-800-540-9128  
   (Berkshire County)
Fax: 413-496-9225
E-mail:	berkshire.advocates@ 
	 yahoo.com

Consumer Council of  
Worcester County
484 Main St., 2nd Floor
Worcester, MA 01608-1690
508-754-1176
Toll free: 1-800-545-4577
Fax: 508-754-0203
www.wcac.net

City Offices

Mass PIRG Consumer  
Action Center
44 Winter St., 4th Floor
Boston, MA 02108
781-335-0280
Fax: 781-340-3991
www.masspirg.org

City of Boston Consumer  
Affairs & Licensing
One City Hall Plaza,
Room 817
Boston, MA 02201
617-635-3834
Fax: 617-635-4174
E-mail: MOCAL@cityofboston.gov
www.cityofboston.gov/
consumeraffairs

Cambridge Consumers’ Council
831 Massachusetts Ave.
Cambridge, MA 02139
617-349-6150
TTY: 617-349-6112
Fax: 617-349-6148
E-mail:	Consumer@ 
	 CambridgeMA.gov
www.ci.cambridge.ma.us/
Consumer

Greater Fall River/New Bedford 
residents contact:
One Government Center
Fall River, MA 02722
508-324-2672
Fax: 508-324-2626
www.ago.state.ma.us

Consumer Protection Program
Haverhill Community Action, Inc.
145 Essex St.
Haverhill, MA 01832
978-373-1971
Fax: 978-373-8966
www.ago.state.ma.us

Cape Cod residents contact:
Consumer Assistance Council, Inc.
149 Main St.
Hyannis, MA 02601
508-771-0700
Toll free: 1-800-867-0701 (MA)
Fax: 508-771-3011
E-mail: cac@capecod.net
www.consumercouncil.com

Consumer Protection Program
Greater Lawrence Community 
Action Council, Inc.
305 Essex St.
Lawrence, MA 01840
978-681-4990
Fax: 978-681-4949

Middlesex Community College 
Law Center
33 Kearney Square
Lowell, MA 01852-1987
978-656-3342
Fax: 978-441-1794
E-mail:	lawcenter@ 
	 middlesex.mass.edu
www.middlesex.mass.edu/
lawcenter

Medford Consumer Advisory 
Commission
90 Main St.
Medford, MA 02155
781-393-2460
www.ago.state.ma.us

Consumer Assistance Office – 
Metro West, Inc.
209 West Central St.
Natick, MA 01760
508-651-8812
Fax: 508-647-0661
E-mail: consumermw@conversent.net
www.consumermetrowest.org

Newton-Brookline Consumer 
Office
1000 Commonwealth Ave.
Newton City Hall
Newton Centre, MA 02459
617-796-1292
TTY: 617-796-1089
Fax: 617-796-1293
E-mail: consumer@newtonma.gov
www.ci.newton.ma.us

South Shore Community Action 
Council, Inc.
265 South Meadow Rd.
Plymouth, MA 02360
508-747-7575, ext. 226
Fax: 508-746-5140
E-mail: lmtilley@sscac.org

Revere Consumer Affairs Office
150 Beach St.
Revere, MA 02151
781-286-8114
Fax: 781-485-2788
E-mail: jellis@revere.org
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Mayor’s Office of Consumer 
Information
36 Court St.
City Hall
Springfield, MA 01103-1699
413-787-6437
Fax: 413-787-7781
E-mail: moci@springfieldcityhall.com
www.springfieldcityhall.com

Michigan

State Offices

Office of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division
PO Box 30213
Lansing, MI 48909
517-373-1140
Toll free: 1-877-765-8388
Fax: 517-241-3771
www.michigan.gov/ag

County Offices

Macomb County Consumer 
Protection Department
Office of the Prosecuting Attorney
One South Main St., 3rd Floor
Macomb County Administration Bldg.
Mt. Clemens, MI 48043
586-469-5350
Fax: 586-469-5609

City Offices

Consumer Advocacy
18100 Meyers Rd., Suite 105
NWAC
Detroit, MI 48235
313-224-1000
313-224-6995 (Complaints)
Fax: 313-224-1476
E-mail:	andersonst.cadtwr@ 
	 seniors.ci.detroit.mi.us
www.ci.detroit.mi.us/Departments/
ConsumerAffairs/tabid/1476/
Default.aspx

Minnesota

State Offices

Consumer Services Division
Attorney General’s Office
445 Minnesota St.
1400 Bremer Tower
St. Paul, MN 55101
651-296-3353
Toll free: 1-800-657-3787
TTY: 651-297-7206 or 1-800-366-4812  
   (Toll free)
Fax: 651-282-2155
E-mail: attorney.general@state.mn.us
www.ag.state.mn.us

County Offices

Citizen Information Hotline
Hennepin County Attorney’s Office
C-2000 County Government Center
Minneapolis, MN 55487
612-348-5550
TTY: 612-348-6015
Fax: 612-348-9712
E-mail:	citizeninfo@co. 
	 hennepin.mn.us
www.hennepinattorney.org

City Offices

Division of Licenses &  
Consumer Services
Minneapolis Department of 
Regulatory Services
350 South 5th St.
City Hall, Room 1C
Minneapolis, MN 55415
612-673-2080
TTY: 612-673-2157
Fax: 612-673-3399
www.ci.minneapolis.mn.us

Mississippi

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Attorney General’s Office
PO Box 22947
Jackson, MS 39225-2947
601-359-4230
Toll free: 1-800-281-4418 (MS)
Fax: 601-359-4231
www.ago.state.ms.us

Bureau of Regulatory Services
Department of Agriculture and 
Commerce
PO Box 1609
121 North Jefferson St.
Jackson, MS 39201
601-359-1111
Fax: 601-359-1175
www.mdac.state.ms.us

Missouri

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Missouri Attorney General’s Office
PO Box 899
Jefferson City, MO 65102
573-751-3321
Toll free: 1-800-392-8222 (MO)
TTY: 1-800-729-8668 (MO)
Fax: 573-751-7948
E-mail: consumer@ago.mo.gov
www.ago.mo.gov

Montana

State Offices

Montana Office of Consumer 
Protection
Department of Justice
PO Box 200151
2225 11th Avenue
Helena, MT 59620-0151
406-444-4500
Toll free: 1-800-481-6896
Fax: 406-444-9680
www.doj.mt.gov/consumer

Nebraska

State Offices

Office of the Attorney General
Department of Justice
PO Box 98920
2115 State Capitol
Lincoln, NE 68509
402-471-2682
402-471-3891 (Spanish)
Toll free: 1-800-727-6432 (NE)
Toll free: 1-888-850-7555  
   (NE – Spanish)
Fax: 402-471-0006
www.ago.state.ne.us
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Nevada

State Offices

Bureau of Consumer Protection
Office of the Attorney General
100 N Carson St.
Carson City, NV 89701
775-684-1180
www.ag.state.nv.us

Bureau of Consumer Protection
Attorney General’s Office
555 E. Washington Ave., Suite 3900
Las Vegas, NV 89101
702-486-3420
Fax: 702-486-3768
ag.state.nv.us

Nevada Consumer Affairs 
Division
1850 East Sahara Ave., Suite 101
Las Vegas, NV 89104
702-486-7355
Toll free: 1-800-326-5202 (NV)
TTY: 702-486-7901
Fax: 702-486-7371
E-mail: NCAD@fyiconsumer.org
www.fyiconsumer.org

Consumer Affairs Division
4600 Kietzke Lane, Building B,  
Suite 113
Reno, NV 89502
775-688-1800
Toll free: 1-800-326-5202 (NV)
TTY: 702-486-7901
Fax: 775-688-1803
E-mail: renocad@fyiconsumer.org
www.fyiconsumer.org

New Hampshire

State Offices

Consumer Protection Bureau
Attorney General’s Office
33 Capitol St.
Concord, NH 03301
603-271-3641
Toll free: 1-888-468-4454  
   (Consumer Protection Hotline)
TTY: 1-800-735-2964  
   (New Hampshire Only)
Fax: 603-223-6202
www.doj.nh.gov/consumer

New Jersey

State Offices

Division of Consumer Affairs
Department of Law and  
Public Safety
PO Box 45027
Newark, NJ 07101
973-504-6200
Toll free: 1-800-242-5846 (NJ)
TTY: 973-504-6588
Fax: 973-648-3538
E-mail:	askconsumeraffairs@ 
	 lps.state.nj.us
www.njconsumeraffairs.gov

County Offices

Atlantic County Division of 
Consumer Affairs
1333 Atlantic Ave.
Atlantic City, NJ 08401
609-343-2376
609-345-6700, ext. 2476
E-mail: howie_robert@aclink.org
www.aclink.org/law/mainpages/
conshome.asp

Camden County Office of 
Consumer Protection/Weights 
and Measures
512 Lakeland Rd., Suite 158
DiPiero Center
Blackwood, NJ 08012
856-374-6161 (Consumer Protection)
856-374-6001 (Weights & Measures)
Fax: 856-232-0748
www.camdencounty.com

Cumberland County Department 
of Consumer Affairs/Weights  
and Measures
788 East Commerce St.
Bridgeton, NJ 08302
856-453-2203
Fax: 856-453-2206
E-mail: janemc@co.cumberland.nj.us
www.co.cumberland.nj.us

Cape May County Consumer 
Affairs Weights and Measures
4 Moore Rd. DN 310
Cape May Court House, NJ 08210-1601
609-463-6475
Fax: 609-463-6472
E-mail: jrechner@co.cape-may.nj.us
www.capemaycountygov.net

Gloucester County Department of 
Consumer Protection
Weights and Measures
254 County House Road
Clarksboro, NJ 08020
856-384-6855
TTY: 856-848-6616
Fax: 856-384-6858
E-mail: hspence@co.gloucester.nj.us
www.co.gloucester.nj.us/
Government/Departments/
ConsumerAffairs/main.cfm

Essex County Division of 
CommunityAction/Consumer 
Services
50 South Clinton St., Suite 3201
East Orange, NJ 07018
973-395-8350
Fax: 973-395-8433
www.co.essex.nj.us/

Hunterdon County Office of 
Consumer Affairs
PO Box 2900
Flemington, NJ 08822
908-806-5174
Fax: 908-806-2057
E-mail: jferrari@co.hunterdon.nj.us
www.co.hunterdon.nj.us/
consumeraffairs.htm

Monmouth County Department of 
Consumer Affairs
One East Main St.
Hall of Records Annex
Freehold, NJ 07728
732-431-7900
Fax: 732-845-2037
E-mail: pwatson@co.monmouth.nj.us
www.visitmonmouth.com

Bergen County Office of 
Consumer Protection
One Bergen County Plaza, 3rd Floor
Hackensack, NJ 07601-7000
201-336-6400
Fax: 201-336-6416

Hudson County Division of 
Consumer Affairs
583 Newark Ave.
Jersey City, NJ 07306
201-795-6295
201-795-6163
Fax: 201-795-6468
www.hudsoncountynj.org/dept/
consumer_affairs/
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Burlington County Office  
of Consumer Affairs/Weights  
and Measures
PO Box 6000
49 Rancocas Rd.
Mount Holly, NJ 08060
609-265-5098 (Weights & Measures)
609-265-5054 (Consumer Affairs)
Fax: 609-265-5065
E-mail:	consumer@co. 
	 burlington.nj.us
www.co.burlington.nj.us

Middlesex County Consumer 
Affairs
JFK Square, 2nd Floor, Suite 290
Middlesex County Administration 
Building
New Brunswick, NJ 08901
732-745-3875
Fax: 732-745-3815
E-mail: consumer@co.middlesex.nj.us
www.co.middlesex.nj.us/
consumeraffairs/index.asp

Somerset County Division of 
Consumer Protection
PO Box 3000
20 Grove Street
Somerville, NJ 08876-1262
908-231-7000
Fax: 908-429-0670
E-mail:	consumerprotection@ 
	 co.somerset.nj.us
www.co.somerset.nj.us

Ocean County Department  
of Consumer Affairs/Weights  
and Measures
PO Box 2191
1027 Hooper Ave.
Toms River, NJ 08754-2191
732-929-2105
Toll free: 1-800-722-0291, ext. 2105 
(NJ)
Fax: 732-506-5330
www.co.ocean.nj.us

Mercer County Consumer Affairs
PO Box 8068
640 South Broad St., Rm. 404
Trenton, NJ 08650-0068
609-989-6671
Fax: 609-989-6670
E-mail:	dgiovannetti@ 
	 mercercounty.org
www.mercercounty.org

Passaic County Department of 
Consumer Protection/Weights 
and Measures
Dept. of Law
1310 Route 23 North
Wayne, NJ 07470
973-305-5881 (Consumer Protection)
973-305-5750  (Weights & Measures)
Fax: 973-628-1796
E-mail:	barbaram@ 
	 passaiccountynj.org
www.passaiccountynj.org

Union County Division of  
Consumer Affairs
300 North Ave. East
Westfield, NJ 07090
908-654-9840
Fax: 908-654-3082
E-mail: fpeterson@ucnj.org
www.unioncountynj.org

City Offices

Middlesex Borough Consumer 
Affairs
1200 Mountain Ave.
Middlesex, NJ 08846
732-356-7400
Fax: 732-356-7954
www.middlesexboro.com

Nutley Consumer Affairs
149 Chestnut St.
Public Affairs Building
Nutley, NJ 07110
973-284-4975
Fax: 973-661-9411
E-mail: anicolette@nutleynj.org
www.nutleynj.org

Plainfield Action Services
510 Watchung Ave.
City Hall Annex
Plainfield, NJ 07060
908-753-3519
Fax: 908-753-3540
www.plainfield.com

Secaucus Department of 
Consumer Affairs
1203 Patterson Plank Rd.
Municipal Government Center
Secaucus, NJ 07094
201-330-2008
Fax: 201-330-8352
www.njconsumeraffairs.gov/ocp/
countyoff.htm

Consumer Affairs Office
1976 Morris Ave.
Union, NJ 07083
908-851-5477
Fax: 908-851-4679
www.uniontownship.com

Woodbridge Township  
Consumer Affairs
One Main St.
Municipal Building
Woodbridge, NJ 07095
732-634-4500
Fax: 732-602-6016
www.twp.woodbridge.nj.us

New Mexico

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
408 Galisteo St.
PO Drawer 1508
Santa Fe, NM 87501
505-827-6060
Toll free: 1-800-678-1508
Fax: 505-827-6685
www.nmag.gov

New York

State Offices

New York State Consumer 
Protection Board
Five Empire State Plaza, Suite 2101
Albany, NY 12223-1556
518-474-8583 (Capitol Region)
Toll free: 1-800-697-1220
Fax: 518-474-2474
E-mail:	webmaster@ 
	 consumer.state.ny.us
www.nysconsumer.gov

Bureau of Consumer Frauds  
and Protection
Office of the Attorney General
State Capitol
Albany, NY 12224
518-474-5481
Toll free: 1-800-771-7755 (NY)
TTY: 1-800-788-9898 (Toll free)
Fax: 518-474-3618
www.oag.state.ny.us
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Consumer Frauds and  
Protection Bureau
Office of the Attorney General
120 Broadway, 3rd Fl.
New York, NY 10271
212-416-8300
Toll free: 1-800-771-7755 (Hotline)
TTY: 1-800-788-9898 (Toll free) or  
   212-416-8893
Fax: 212-416-6003
www.oag.state.ny.us

Regional Offices

Binghamton Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
44 Hawley St.
State Office Building, 17th Floor
Binghamton, NY 13901-4433
607-721-8771
Fax: 607-721-8789
www.oag.state.ny.us

Brooklyn Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
55 Hanson Place, Room 732
Brooklyn, NY 11217
718-722-3949
Toll free: 1-800-771-7755  
   (Consumer Helpline)
TTY: 1-800-788-9898 (Toll free)
www.oag.state.ny.us

Buffalo Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
350 Main Street, Suite 300A
Main Place Tower
Buffalo, NY 14202
716-853-8400
Fax: 716-853-8571
www.oag.state.ny.us

Hauppauge Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
300 Motor Pkwy., Suite 205
Hauppauge, NY 11788-5127
631-231-2400
www.oag.state.ny.us/tour/suffolk.html

Harlem Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
163 West 125th St.
New York, NY 10027-8201
212-961-4475
Toll free: 1-800-771-7755  
   (Consumer Helpline)
Fax: 212-961-4003
www.oag.state.ny.us

Mineola Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
200 Old Country Rd.
New York, NY 11501
516-248-3302
Toll free: 1-800-771-7755  
   (Consumer Helpline)
TTY: 1-800-788-9898
Fax: 516-747-6432
www.oag.state.ny.us

Plattsburgh Regional Office
Office of Attorney General
43 Durkee Street, Suite 700
Plattsburgh, NY 12901
518-562-3282
Fax: 518-562-3294
www.oag.state.ny.us

Rochester Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
144 Exchange Blvd., Suite 200
Rochester, NY 14614
585-546-7430
TTY: 1-800-788-9898
Fax: 585-546-7514
www.oag.state.ny.us

Syracuse Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
615 Erie Blvd. West, Suite 102
Syracuse, NY 13204-2465
315-448-4848 (Consumer Fraud)
315-448-4800
Toll free: 1-800-771-7755  
   (Consumer Hotline)
Fax: 315-448-4851
www.oag.state.ny.us

Utica Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
207 Genesee St., Room 508
Utica, NY 13501
315-793-2225
Toll free: 1-800-771-7755
Fax: 315-793-2228
www.oag.state.ny.us/tour/utica.
html

Watertown Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
317 Washington Street
Dulles State Office Building
Watertown, NY 13601-3744
315-785-2444
www.oag.state.ny.us

Westchester Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
101 East Post Rd.
White Plains, NY 10601-5008
914-422-8755
Toll free: 1-800-771-7755  
   (Consumer Helpline)
Fax: 914-422-8706
www.oag.state.ny.us

County Offices

Department of Consumer Affairs/
Weights & Measures
112 State St., Room 720
Albany, NY 12207
518-447-7581
Fax: 518-487-5048
E-mail:	consumer_complaints@ 
	 albanycounty.com
www.albanycounty.com

Consumer Fraud Bureau
Erie County District  
Attorney’s Office
350 Main Street, Suite 300A
Main PlaceTower
Buffalo, NY 14202
716-853-8404 (Consumer Fraud)
716-853-8400
Toll free: 1-800-771-7755 (NY)
Fax: 716-853-8414
www.oag.state.ny.us

Putnam County Department  
of Consumer Affairs/Weights  
and Measures
110 Old Route 6 – Bldg. 3
Carmel, NY 10512
845-225-2039
Fax: 845-225-3403
www.putnamcountyny.com

Orange County Department  
of Consumer Affairs and  
Weights and Measures
99 Main St.
Goshen, NY 10924
845-291-2400
Fax: 845-291-2385
www.co.orange.ny.us

Ulster County District Attorney’s 
Consumer Fraud Bureau
20 Lucas Ave.
Kingston, NY 12401
845-340-3260
Fax: 845-340-3263
www.co.ulster.ny.us
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Sullivan Affairs Education Office
64 Ferndale Loomis Rd.
Cornell Cooperative Extensions
Liberty, NY 12754
845-292-6180
Toll free: 1-877-292-5250
Fax: 845-292-2154
www.sullivancce.org

Nassau County Office of 
Consumer Affairs
200 County Seat Dr.
Mineola, NY 11501
516-571-2600
Fax: 516-571-3389
www.nassaucountyny.gov

Rockland County Office of 
Consumer Protection
18 New Hempstead Rd., 6th Floor
New City, NY 10956
845-708-7600
Fax: 845-708-7616
www.consumer.state.ny.us

Dutchess County Department  
of Consumer Affairs
98 Peach Rd.
Poughkeepsie, NY 12601
845-486-2949
Fax: 845-486-2947
E-mail:	consumeraffairs@ 
	 co.dutchess.ny.us
www.dutchessny.gov/CountyGov/
Departments/ConsumerAffairs/
CFindex.htm

Schenectady County Dept. of 
Consumer Affairs/Bureau of 
Weights and Measures
64 Kellar Ave.
Schenectady, NY 12306
518-356-7473 (Consumer Affairs)
518-356-6795 (Weights and Measures)
Fax: 518-357-0319
www.schenectadycounty.com

Westchester County District 
Attorney’s Office
Economic Crimes Unit
111 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.
County Courthouse
White Plains, NY 10601
914-995-3414
Fax: 914-995-3594
www.da.westchester.ny.us

Westchester County Dept.  
of Consumer Protection
112 East Post Rd., 4th Floor
White Plains, NY 10601
914-995-2155
Fax: 914-995-3115
E-mail: conpro@westchestergov.com
www.westchestergov.com/
consumer

City Offices

Mt. Vernon Office of Consumer 
Protection/Bureau of Weights 
and Measures
One Roosevelt Square, Room 11
Mount Vernon, NY 10550
914-665-2433
Fax: 914-665-2496
www.ci.mount-vernon.ny.us

New York City Department of 
Consumer Affairs
42 Broadway
New York, NY 10004
212-487-4444
TTY: 212-487-2710
www.nyc.gov/consumers

Town of Colonie Consumer 
Protection
Memorial Town Hall
Newtonville, NY 12128
518-783-2790
www.colonie.org

Schenectady Bureau of 
Consumer Protection
105 Jay Street
City Hall, Room 204
Schenectady, NY 12305
518-382-5061
Fax: 518-382-5074

Yonkers Office of Consumer 
Protection
87 Nepperhan Avenue, Room 212
Yonkers, NY 10701
914-377-6808
Fax: 914-377-6811
www.yonkersny.gov

North Carolina

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Office of the Attorney General
9001 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-9001
919-716-6000
Toll free: 1-877-566-7226 (NC)
Fax: 919-716-6050
www.ncdoj.gov

North Dakota

State Offices

Consumer Protection and 
Antitrust Division
Office of the Attorney General
600 East Blvd. Ave., Dept. 125
Bismarck, ND 58505
701-328-3404
Toll free: 1-800-472-2600
TTY: 1-800-366-6888 (Toll free)
Fax: 701-328-5568
E-mail: cpat@nd.gov
www.ag.nd.gov

Ohio

State Offices

Ohio Consumers’ Counsel
Ten West Broad St., 18th Floor,  
Suite 1800
Columbus, OH 43215
614-466-8574 (outside OH)
Toll free: 1-877-742-5622
Fax: 614-466-9475
E-mail: occ@occ.state.oh.us
www.pickocc.org

Consumer Protection Section
Attorney General’s Office
30 East Broad St., 14th Floor
Columbus, OH 43215-3428
614-466-4320
Toll free: 1-877-244-6446 (OH)
TTY: 614-466-1393
Fax: 614-728-7583
E-mail: consumer@ag.state.oh.us
www.ag.state.oh.us
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County Offices

Office of Consumer Affairs
County of Summit
1040 East Tallmadge Ave., Room 128
Akron, OH 44310
330-643-2879
Fax: 330-630-4655
E-mail:	consumeraffairs@ 
	 summitoh.net
www.co.summit.oh.us/conaffairs.
htm

Oklahoma

State Offices

Consumer Protection Unit
Oklahoma Attorney General
313 NE 21st St.
Oklahoma City, OK 73105
405-521-2029
Fax: 405-528-1867
www.oag.ok.gov

Oklahoma Department of 
Consumer Credit
4545 North Lincoln Blvd., #104
Oklahoma City, OK 73105
405-521-3653
Toll free: 1-800-448-4904
Fax: 405-521-6740
E-mail: rbhooper@okdocc.state.ok.us
www.okdocc.state.ok.us

Oregon

State Offices

Financial Fraud/Consumer 
Protection Section
Department of Justice
1162 Court St., NE
Salem, OR 97301
503-947-4333
503-378-4320 (Hotline Salem Only)
503-229-5576 (Hotline Portland Only)
Toll free: 1-877-877-9392 (OR)
TTY: 503-378-5938
Fax: 503-378-5017
www.doj.state.or.us

Pennsylvania

State Offices

Office of the Consumer Advocate
Office of the Attorney General
5th Floor, Forum Place
555 Walnut St.
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1923
717-783-5048 (Utilities Only)
Toll free: 1-800-684-6560 (PA)
Fax: 717-783-7152
E-mail: consumer@paoca.org
www.oca.state.pa.us

Bureau of Consumer Protection
Office of Attorney General
16th Floor, Strawberry Square
Harrisburg, PA 17120
717-787-3391
Toll free: 1-800-441-2555 (PA)
Toll free: 1-877-888-4877  
   (PA – Health Care)
Toll free: 1-866-623-2137  
   (PA – Elder Abuse)
Fax: 717-787-8242
www.attorneygeneral.gov

Regional Offices

Allentown Regional Office – 
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Office of Attorney General
801 Hamilton St., 4th Floor
Allentown, PA 18101
610-821-6690
Toll free: 1-800-441-2555 (PA)
Fax: 610-821-6529
www.attorneygeneral.gov

Ebensburg Regional Office – 
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Office of Attorney General
171 Lovell Ave., Suite 202
Ebensburg, PA 15931
814-471-1831
Fax: 814-471-1840
www.attorneygeneral.gov

Erie Regional Office – Bureau  
of Consumer Protection
Office of the Attorney General
1001 State St., Suite 1009
Erie, PA 16501
814-871-4371
Fax: 814-871-4848
www.attorneygeneral.gov

Harrisburg Regional Office – 
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Office of Attorney General
301 Chestnut St., Suite 105
Harrisburg, PA 17101
717-787-7109
Fax: 717-772-3560
www.attorneygeneral.gov

Philadelphia Regional Office – 
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Office of Attorney General
21 South 12th St., 2nd Floor
Philadelphia, PA 19107
215-560-2414
Fax: 215-560-2494
www.attorneygeneral.gov

Pittsburgh Regional Office – 
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Office of Attorney General
564 Forbes Ave.
Manor Building, 6th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15219
412-565-5135
Toll free: 1-800-441-2555
Fax: 412-880-0196
www.attorneygeneral.gov

Scranton Regional Office Bureau 
of Consumer Protection
Office of Attorney General
101 Penn Ave.
100 Samter Building
Scranton, PA 18503
570-963-4913
Toll free: 1-800-441-2555 (PA)
Fax: 570-963-3418
www.attorneygeneral.gov

State College Regional Office – 
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Ruth Building, First Floor
444 East College Ave., Suite 440
State College, PA 16801
814-863-3900
Fax: 814-863-6555
E-mail:	AGCorbett@ 
	 Attorneygeneral.gov

County Offices

Bucks County Consumer 
Protection, Weights and 
Measures
50 North Main St.
Doylestown, PA 18901
215-348-7442
Toll free: 1-800-942-2669
Fax: 215-348-4570
www.buckscounty.org
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Delaware County Consumer 
Affairs
201 West Front St.
Delaware County Courthouse
Media, PA 19063
610-891-4865
Fax: 610-566-3947
www.co.delaware.pa.us/
consumeraffairs

Beaver County Alliance for 
Consumer Protection
Director
Route 51
469 Constitution Blvd., Suite 3
New Brighton, PA 15066
724-843-3282
Fax: 724-843-2706
www.acp-beaver.org

Montgomery County  
Consumer Affairs
Montgomery County Human 
Services Center
PO Box 311
1430 DeKalb St.
Norristown, PA 19404-0311
610-278-3565
Fax: 610-278-5228
www.montcopa.org/
consumeraffairs

Bureau of Consumer Protection 
Regional Offices
21 S. 12th St., 2nd Floor
Philadelphia, PA 19107
215-560-2414
dsf.chesco.org/health/consaffairs

Puerto Rico

State Offices

Department de Asuntos Del 
Consumidor
Centro Gubernamental Roberto 
Sanchez Vilella
Edificio Norte
Apartado 41059, Estacion Minillas
San Juan, PR 00940-1059
787-722-7555
Fax: 787-726-0077
www.daco.gobierno.pr

Rhode Island

State Offices

Consumer Protection Unit
Department of Attorney General
150 South Main St.
Providence, RI 02903
401-274-4400
TTY: 401-453-0410
Fax: 401-222-5110
www.riag.state.ri.us

South Carolina

State Offices

South Carolina Department  
of Consumer Affairs
PO Box 5757
3600 Forest Dr., Suite 300
Columbia, SC 29250-5757
803-734-4200
Toll free: 1-800-922-1594 (SC)
TTY: 1-877-734-4215 (Toll free)
Fax: 803-734-4286
E-mail: scdca@scconsumer.gov
www.scconsumer.gov

Office of the Attorney General
PO Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211-1549
803-734-3970
TTY: 803-734-4877
Fax: 803-253-6283
E-mail: info@scattorneygeneral.com
www.scattorneygeneral.org

South Dakota

State Offices

Consumer Affairs
Office of the Attorney General
1302 East Hwy. 14, Suite 3
Pierre, SD 57501-8503
605-773-4400
Toll free: 1-800-300-1986 (SD)
TTY: 605-773-6585
Fax: 605-773-7163
E-mail: consumerhelp@state.sd.us
www.state.sd.us/atg

Tennessee

State Offices

Division of Consumer Affairs
500 James Robertson Pkwy.,  
5th Floor
Nashville, TN 37243-0600
615-741-4737
Toll free: 1-800-342-8385 (TN)
Fax: 615-532-4994
E-mail: consumer.affairs@state.tn.us
www.tn.gov/consumer

Consumer Advocate and 
Protection Division
Office of the Attorney General
PO Box 20207
Nashville, TN 37202-0207
615-741-1671
Fax: 615-532-2910
www.attorneygeneral.state.tn.us

Texas

Regional Offices

Austin Regional Office
PO Box 12548
Austin, TX 78711-2548
512-463-2100
Toll free: 1-800-621-0508
Fax: 512-473-8301
www.oag.state.tx.us

Dallas Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
1412 Main St., Suite 810
Dallas, TX 75202
214-969-5310
Fax: 214-969-7615
www.oag.state.tx.us

El Paso Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
401 East Franklin Ave., Suite 530
El Paso, TX 79901
915-834-5800
Fax: 915-542-1546
E-mail:	public.information@ 
	 oag.state.tx.us
www.oag.state.tx.us

Houston Regional Office – 
Consumer Protection
Office of the Attorney General
808 Travis, Suite 300
Houston, TX 77002-1702
713-223-5886
Toll free: 1-800-252-8011 (TX)
Fax: 713-223-5821
www.oag.state.tx.us
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Lubbock Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
4630 50th St., Suite 500
Lubbock, TX 79414-3520
806-747-5238
Fax: 806-747-6307
www.oag.state.tx.us

McAllen Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
3201 North McColl Rd., Suite B
McAllen, TX 78501-1685
956-682-4547
Toll free: 1-800-252-8011 (TX)
Fax: 956-682-1957
www.oag.state.tx.us

San Antonio Regional Office
Office of the Attorney General
115 East Travis St., Suite 925
San Antonio, TX 78205-1605
210-224-1007
Toll free: 1-800-252-8011 (TX)
Fax: 210-225-1075
www.oag.state.tx.us

County Offices

Harris County Consumer  
Fraud Division
District Attorney’s Office
1201 Franklin, Suite 600
Houston, TX 77002-1923
713-755-5836
Fax: 713-755-5262
app.dao.hctx.net

City Offices

Department of Environmental  
and Health Services
1500 Marilla
City Hall – Room 7A-North
Dallas, TX 75201
214-670-3696
Fax: 214-670-3863
E-mail: kbradford@ci.dallas.tx.us
www.dallascityhall.com

Utah

State Offices

Division of Consumer Protection
Department of Commerce
PO Box 146704
160 East 300 South
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6704
801-530-6601

Fax: 801-530-6001
E-mail:	consumerprotection@ 
	 utah.gov
www.consumerprotection.utah.gov

Vermont

State Offices

Consumer Assistance Program
Office of the Attorney General
104 Morrill Hall, UVM
Burlington, VT 05405
802-656-3183
Toll free: 1-800-649-2424 (VT)
Fax: 802-656-1423
E-mail:	consumercomplaint@ 
	 atg.state.vt.us
www.atg.state.vt.us

Vermont Agency of Agriculture, 
Food, and Markets
Food Safety and Consumer 
Protection
116 State Street
Montpelier, VT 05620-2901
802-828-2436
Fax: 802-828-5983
E-mail: carolyn.moulton@state.vt.us
www.vermontagriculture.com

Virgin Islands

Virgin Islands Offices

Department of Licensing and 
Consumer Affairs
3000 Golden Rock Shopping Center, 
Suite 9
Christiansted, VI 00820-4311
340-773-2226
www.dlca.gov.vi

State Offices

Department of Licensing and 
Consumer Affairs
8201 Sub Base, Suite 1
Property and Procurement Bldg.
St. Thomas, VI 00802
340-774-3130
Fax: 340-776-8303
www.dlca.gov.vi

Virginia

State Offices

Antitrust and Consumer 
Litigation Section
Office of the Attorney General
900 East Main St.
Richmond, VA 23219
804-786-2116
Toll free: 1-800-451-1525
Fax: 804-786-0122
E-mail: mail@oag.state.va.us
www.oag.state.va.us

Office of Consumer Affairs
Department of Agriculture and 
Consumer Services
102 Governor St.
Oliver W. Hill Building
Richmond, VA 23219
804-786-2042
Toll free: 1-800-552-9963 (VA)
TTY: 1-800-828-1120 (Toll free)
Fax: 804-225-2666
www.vdacs.virginia.gov

County Offices

Fairfax County Department  
of Cable Communications and 
Consumer Protection
12000 Government Center Pkwy., 
Suite 433
Fairfax, VA 22035
703-222-8435 (General)
703-324-8484 (Consumer Services)
Fax: 703-324-3900
www.fairfaxcounty.gov/consumer.
htm

City Offices

Consumer Affairs
City Hall
301 King Street, Room 1900
Alexandria, VA 22313
703-838-4350
Fax: 703-838-6426
www.alexandriava.gov/citizen

Office of the Commonwealth’s 
Attorney
Consumer Affairs Division
2425 Nimmo Pkwy.
Virginia Beach, VA 23456-9060
757-385-5836
Fax: 757-385-8779
E-mail: webforms@vbgov.com
www.vbgov.com/dept/oca/
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Regional Offices

Bureau of Consumer Protection
Dept. of Agriculture, Trade & 
Consumer Protection
200 North Jefferson St., Suite 146A
Green Bay, WI 54301
920-448-5110
Toll free: 1-800-422-7128 (WI)
Fax: 920-448-5118
E-mail: datcphotline@wi.gov
www.datcp.state.wi.us

Bureau of Consumer Protection
Dept. of Agriculture, Trade and 
Consumer Protection
10930 West Potter Rd., Suite C
Milwaukee, WI 53226-3450
414-266-1231
Toll free: 1-800-422-7128 (WI)
Fax: 414-266-1235
E-mail: datcphotline@wi.gov
www.datcp.state.wi.us

County Offices

Racine County Sheriff’s 
Department
Consumer Fraud Investigation
717 Wisconsin Ave.
Racine, WI 53403
262-636-3126
Toll free: 1-800-242-4202
Fax: 262-637-5279
E-mail: RCSheriff@goracine.org
www.racineco.com

Wyoming

State Offices

Consumer Protection Unit
Office of the Attorney General
2424 Pioneer Ave., 1st Floor
Cheyenne, WY 82002
307-777-7841
Toll free: 1-800-438-5799
Fax: 307-777-7956
E-mail: agwebmaster@state.wy.us
www.attorneygeneral.state.wy.us

Tacoma Consumer Resource 
Center (Pierce, Mason, Grays 
Harbor and Kitsap Counties)
Consumer Protection Division
Office of the Attorney General
PO Box 2317
1019 Pacific Ave., 3rd Floor
Tacoma, WA 98401
253-593-2904
Toll free: 1-800-551-4636 (WA)
Fax: 253-597-4408
E-mail: cynthial@atg.wa.gov
www.atg.wa.gov

Vancouver Consumer Resource 
Center (Southwest Washington)
Office of the Attorney General
1220 Main St., Suite 510
Vancouver, WA 98660-2964
360-759-2150
Toll free: 1-800-551-4636 (WA)
Fax: 360-759-2109
www.atg.wa.gov/consumer

West Virginia

State Offices

Consumer Protection Division
Office of the Attorney General
PO Box 1789
812 Quarrier St., 1st Floor
Charleston, WV 25326-1789
304-558-8986
Toll free: 1-800-368-8808 (WV)
Fax: 304-558-0184
E-mail: consumer@wvago.gov
www.wvago.gov

Wisconsin

State Offices

Department of Agriculture, Trade 
and Consumer Protection
PO Box 8911
2811 Agriculture Dr.
Madison, WI 53708-8911
608-224-4976
Toll free: 1-800-422-7128 (WI)
TTY: 608-224-5058
Fax: 608-224-4939
E-mail: datcphotline@wi.gov
www.datcp.state.wi.us

Washington

State Offices

Office of the Attorney General
(see Regional Consumer  
Resource Centers)
800 Fifth Avenue, Ste. 2000
Seattle, WA 98104
Toll free: 1.800.551.4636
www.atg.wa.gov

Regional Offices

Bellingham Consumer Resource 
Center (Island, San Juan, Skagit 
and Whatcom Counties)
Office of the Attorney General
103 East Holly St., Suite 308
Bellingham, WA 98225-4728
360-738-6185
Toll free: 1-800-551-4636 (WA)
Fax: 360-738-6190
www.atg.wa.gov

Kennewick Consumer Resource 
Center (Southeast Washington)
Office of the Attorney General
500 N. Morain St., Suite 1250
Kennewick, WA 99336-2607
509-734-7140
Toll free: 1-800-551-4636 (WA)
TTY: 1-800-833-6384
www.atg.wa.gov

Seattle Consumer Resource 
Center (King, Snohomish, Clallam 
and Jefferson Counties)
Office of the Attorney General
800 Fifth Ave., Suite 2000
Seattle, WA 98104
206-464-6684
Toll free: 1-800-551-4636 (WA)
Fax: 206-389-2801
www.atg.wa.gov

Spokane Consumer Resource 
Center (Northeast Washington)
Office of the Attorney General
1116 West Riverside
Spokane, WA 99201-1194
509-456-3123
Toll free: 1-800-551-4636 (WA)
Fax: 509-458-3548
www.atg.wa.gov
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Alabama
Superintendent of Banks
401 Adams Ave.
Center for Commerce, Suite 689
Montgomery, AL 36130-1201
334-242-3452
Fax: 334-242-3500
www.banking.alabama.gov

Alaska
Division of Banking and 
Securities
Department of Commerce, 
Community and Economic 
Development
PO Box 110807
150 3rd St., Room 217
Juneau, AK 99811-0807
907-465-2521
Toll free: 1-888-925-2521
TTY: 907-465-5437
Fax: 907-465-2549
E-mail:	 dbsc@commerce. 
	 state.ak.us
www.commerce.state.ak.us/bsc/
home.htm

Arizona
Department of Financial 
Institutions
2910 North 44th St., Suite 310
Phoenix, AZ 85018
602-255-4421
Toll free: 1-800-544-0708
Fax: 602-381-1225
www.azdfi.gov

Arkansas
State Bank Department
400 Hardin Rd., Suite 100
Little Rock, AR 72211
501-324-9019
Fax: 501-324-9028
E-mail: asbd@banking.state.ar.us
www.accessarkansas.org/bank

California
State Department of Financial 
Institutions
111 Pine St., Suite 1100
San Francisco, CA 94111-5613
415-263-8555
Toll free: 1-800-622-0620  
   (CA – Consumer Complaints  
   Against CA State-licensed Banks)
Fax: 415-989-5310
E-mail: consumer@dfi.ca.gov
www.dfi.ca.gov

Colorado
Division of Banking
Department of Regulatory 
Agencies
1560 Broadway, Suite 975
Denver, CO 80202
303-894-7575
Fax: 303-894-7570
E-mail: banking@dora.state.co.us
www.dora.state.co.us/banking

Connecticut
Connecticut Department  
of Banking
260 Constitution Plaza
Hartford, CT 06103
860-240-8299
Toll free: 1-800-831-7225
Fax: 860-240-8178
www.state.ct.us/dob

Delaware
Office of the State Bank 
Commissioner
555 East Lockerman St., Suite 210
Dover, DE 19901
302-739-4235
302-739-4235
Fax: 302-739-2356 / 302-739-3609
E-mail: gic@state.de.us
www.banking.delaware.gov

District of Columbia
Department of Insurance, 
Securities and Banking
810 First, NE, Suite 701
Washington, DC 20002
202-727-8000
Fax: 202-535-1196
www.disb.dc.gov

Florida
Department of Financial Services
200 East Gaines St.
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0300
850-413-3100
Toll free: 1-800-342-2762 (FL)
www.myfloridacfo.com

Georgia
Department of Banking and 
Finance
2990 Brandywine Rd., Suite 200
Atlanta, GA 30341-5565
770-986-1633
Toll free: 1-888-986-1633 (GA)
Fax: 770-986-1654
www.gadbf.org

Hawaii
Division of Financial Institutions
Department of Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs
PO Box 2054
335 Merchant St., Room 221
Honolulu, HI 96805
808-586-2820
Toll free: 1-800-274-3141 (Kauai)
Toll free: 1-984-2400, 6-2820# (Maui)
Toll free: 1-974-4000, 6-2820# (HI)
TTY: 808-586-2820
Fax: 808-586-2818
E-mail: dfi@dcca.hawaii.gov
www.hawaii.gov/dcca/dfi

Idaho
Department of Finance
PO Box 83720
800 Park Blvd., Suite 200
Boise, ID 83720-0031
208-332-8000
Toll free: 1-888-346-3378 (ID)
Fax: 208-332-8098
E-mail: finance@finance.idaho.gov
finance.idaho.gov

Illinois
Division of Banks and Real Estate
122 South Michigan Ave., Suite 1900
Chicago, IL 60603
312-793-3000
Toll free: 1-877-793-3470
TTY: 312-793-0291
Fax: 312-793-7097
www.idfpr.com

The officials listed below regulate and supervise state-chartered banks. Many of them handle or 
refer problems and complaints about other types of financial institutions as well. Some also answer 
general questions about banking and consumer credit. If you are dealing with a federally chartered bank, 
check "Selected Federal Agencies" on page 108. Also see “Banking” on page 2.
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Indiana
Department of Financial 
Institutions
30 South Meridian St., Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46204
317-232-3955
Toll free: 1-800-382-4880 (IN)
Fax: 317-232-7655
www.in.gov/dfi

Iowa
Division of Banking
200 East Grand, Suite 300
Des Moines, IA 50309-1827
515-281-4014
Fax: 515-281-4862
www.idob.state.ia.us

Kansas
Office of the State Bank 
Commissioner
700 SW Jackson St., Suite 300
Topeka, KS 66603-3714
785-296-2266
Toll free: 1-877-387-8523  
   (Consumer Helpline)
Fax: 785-296-0168
www.osbckansas.org

Kentucky
Department of Financial Institutions
1025 Capitol Center Dr., Suite 200
Frankfort, KY 40601
502-573-3390
Toll free: 1-800-223-2579
Fax: 502-573-8787
E-mail: kfi@ky.gov
www.kfi.ky.gov

Louisiana
Office of Financial Institutions
PO Box 94095
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9095
225-925-4660
Fax: 225-925-4524
E-mail: ofila@ofi.louisiana.gov
www.ofi.state.la.us

Maine
Bureau of Financial Instituions
36 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333-0036
207-624-8570
Toll free: 1-800-965-5235
TTY: 207-624-8563
Fax: 207-624-8590
www.maine.gov/pfr/
financialinstitutions

Maryland
Commisioner of Financial 
Regulation
500 North Calvert St., Suite 402
Baltimore, MD 21202
410-230-6100
Toll free: 1-888-784-0136 (MD)
TTY: 410-767-2117
Fax: 410-333-0475 or 410-333-3866
E-mail: finreg@dllr.state.md.us
www.dllr.state.md.us/finance

Massachusetts
Division of Banks
One South Station
Boston, MA 02110
617-956-1500
Toll free: 1-800-495-2265 (MA)
TTY: 617-956-1577
Fax: 617-956-1599
E-mail:	 dobconsumer.assistant@ 
	 state.ma.us
www.mass.gov/dob

Michigan
Office of Financial and Insurance 
Regulation
PO Box 30220 (Zip: 48909)
611 West Ottawa St., 3rd Floor
Lansing, MI 48933-0220
517-373-0220
Toll free: 1-877-999-6442
Fax: 517-335-4978
E-mail: ofir-fin-info@michigan.gov
www.michigan.gov/ofir

Minnesota
Financial Examinations Division
Department of Commerce
85 Seventh Place East, Suite 500
St. Paul, MN 55101
651-296-2715
Fax: 651-296-8591
E-mail:	 financial.commerce@ 
	 state.mn.us
www.commerce.state.mn.us

Mississippi
Department of Banking and 
Consumer Finance
PO Box 23729
Jackson, MS 39225-3729
601-359-1031
Toll free: 1-800-844-2499 (MS)
Fax: 601-359-3557
E-mail:	 webmaster@dbcf. 
	 state.ms.us
www.dbcf.state.ms.us

Missouri
Department of Finance
301 West High St., Room 630
PO Box 716
Jefferson City, MO 65102
573-751-3242
Fax: 573-751-9192
E-mail: finance@dof.mo.gov
www.missouri-finance.org

Montana
Division of Banking & Financial 
Institutions
PO Box 200546
301 South Park, Suite 316
Helena, MT 59620-0546
406-841-2920
Toll free: 1-800-914-8423
TTY: 406-444-1421
Fax: 406-841-2930
www.banking.mt.gov

Nebraska
Department of Banking & Finance
PO Box 95006
1230 O St., Commerce Court,  
Suite 400
Lincoln, NE 68508
402-471-2171
Toll free: 1-877-471-3445
Fax: 402-471-3062
www.ndbf.org

Nevada
Financial Institutions Division
Department of Business & Industry
2785 East Desert Inn Rd., Suite 180
Las Vegas, NV 89121
702-486-4120
Toll free: 1-866-858-8951 (NV)
Fax: 702-486-4563
E-mail: ctidd@fid.state.nv.us
www.fid.state.nv.us

New Hampshire
State Banking Department
53 Regional Dr., Suite 200
Concord, NH 03301
603-271-3561
TTY: 1-800-735-2964 (Toll free)
Fax: 603-271-1090
www.nh.gov/banking
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New Jersey
Department of Banking  
and Insurance
PO Box 325
20 West State St.
Trenton, NJ 08625
609-292-3420 (Banking)
Fax: 609-292-5571
www.njdobi.org

New Mexico
Financial Institutions Division
Regulation and Licensing 
Department
2550 Cerrillos Rd., 3rd Floor
Santa Fe, NM 87501
505-476-4885
Fax: 505-476-4670
E-mail: rldfid@state.nm.us
www.rld.state.nm.us/FID

New York
Banking Department
One State St.
Consumer Help Unit
New York, NY 10004-1511
212-709-5470
Toll free: 1-877-226-5697  
   (NY – Consumer Services Hotline)
Fax: 212-709-1673
E-mail:	 consumer@banking. 
	 state.ny.us
www.banking.state.ny.us

North Carolina
Office of the Commissioner  
of Banks
4309 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-4309
919-733-3016
Fax: 919-733-6918
www.nccob.org

North Dakota
Department of Financial 
Institutions
2000 Schafer St., Suite G
Bismarck, ND 58501-1204
701-328-9933
TTY: 1-800-366-6888 (ND)
Fax: 701-328-9955
E-mail: dfi@nd.gov
www.nd.gov/dfi

Ohio
Division of Financial Institutions
Department of Commerce
77 South High St., 21st Floor
Columbus, OH 43215-6120
614-728-8400
Fax: 614-644-1631
www.com.state.oh.us/ODOC/dfi/

Oklahoma
State Banking Department
2900 North Lincoln Blvd.
Oklahoma City, OK 73105
405-521-2782
Fax: 405-522-2993
www.osbd.state.ok.us

Oregon
Department of Consumer & 
Business Services
Division of Finance and  
Corporate Securities
350 Winter St., NE, Room 410
Salem, OR 97301
503-378-4140
Toll free: 1-866-814-9710 (Fraud/
Complaint Investigation)
Fax: 503-947-7862
E-mail: dcbs.dfcsmail@state.or.us
dfcs.oregon.gov

Pennsylvania
Department of Banking
17 North Second St., Suite 1300
Harrisburg, PA 17101-2290
717-787-6991
717-214-8343
Toll free: 1-800-722-2657 (PA)
Fax: 717-787-8773
www.banking.state.pa.us

Puerto Rico
Office of the Commissioner of 
Financial Institutions
PO Box 11855
Fernandez Juncos Station
San Juan, PR 00910-3855
787-723-3131
Fax: 787-723-4042
www.cif.gov.pr or  
www.ocis.gobierno.pr

Rhode Island
Division of Banking
Department of Business Regulation
Building 69-2
1511 Pontiac Ave.
Cranston, RI 02920
401-462-9500 (Business Regulation)
401-462-9503 (Banking)
Fax: 401-462-9559
E-mail: bankinquiry@dbr.state.ri.us
www.dbr.state.ri.us

South Carolina
Office of the Commissioner  
of Banking
State Board of Financial Institutions
1205 Pendleton St., Suite 305
Columbia, SC 29201
803-734-2001
Fax: 803-734-2013
www.banking.sc.gov

South Dakota
Division of Banking
217½ West Missouri Ave.
Pierre, SD 57501-4590
605-773-3421
Fax: 866-326-7504
E-mail: drr.banking.info@state.sd.us
www.state.sd.us/banking

Tennessee
Department of Financial 
Institutions
Consumer Resources Division
414 Union St., Suite 1000
Bank of America Plaza
Nashville, TN 37219
615-253-2023
Toll free: 1-800-778-4215
Fax: 615-253-7794
E-mail:	 TDFI.ConsumerResources 
	 @state.tn.us
www.tennessee.gov/tdfi

Texas
Department of Banking
2601 North Lamar Blvd., Suite 201
Austin, TX 78705
512-475-1300
Toll free: 1-877-276-5554  
   (Consumer Hotline)
Fax: 512-475-1313
www.banking.state.tx.us



150

State Banking Authorities

Utah
Department of Financial 
Institutions
PO Box 146800
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6800
801-538-8830
Fax: 801-538-8894
E-mail: slong@utah.gov
www.dfi.utah.gov

Vermont
Department of Banking, 
Insurance, Securities and Health 
Care Administration
89 Main St.
Montpelier, VT 05620-3101
802-828-3301
802-828-3307 (Banking)
802-828-3420 (Securities)
Toll free: 1-800-964-1784  
   (All Insurance Except Health)
Toll free: 1-800-631-7788  
   (Health Care)
Toll free: 1-877-550-3907 (Securities)
Fax: 802-828-3306 (Ins.)  
802-828-1477 (Banking)  
802-828-2896 (Sec.)  
802-828-2949 (Health Care)
E-mail: bankdiv@bishca.state.vt.us
www.bishca.state.vt.us

Virgin Islands
Division of Banking and Insurance
Office of the Lt. Governor
Charlotte Amalie
No. 18 Kongens Gade
St. Thomas, VI 00802
340-774-7166
Fax: 340-774-9458
www.ltg.gov.vi

Virginia
Bureau of Financial Institutions
1300 East Main St., Suite 800
Richmond, VA 23219-3630
804-371-9657
Toll free: 1-800-552-7945 (VA)
TTY: 804-371-9206
Fax: 804-371-9416
E-mail:	 bfiquestions@scc. 
	 virginia.gov
www.scc.virginia.gov

Washington
Department of Financial 
Institutions
PO Box 41200
Olympia, WA 98504-1200
360-902-8700
Toll free: 1-877-746-4334
Fax: 360-586-5068
www.dfi.wa.gov

West Virginia
Division of Banking
One Players Club Drive
3rd Floor, Suite 300
Charleston, WV 25311
304-558-2294
Toll free: 1-800-642-9056 (WV)
Fax: 304-558-0442
E-mail: klawson@wvdob.org
www.wvdob.org

Wisconsin
Department of Financial 
Institutions
345 West Washington Ave., 4th Floor
Madison, WI 53703
608-264-7969
Toll free: 1-800-452-3328 (WI)
TTY: 608-266-8818
Fax: 608-264-7968
E-mail:	 askthesecretary@ 
	 dfi.state.wi.us
www.wdfi.org

Wyoming
Division of Banking
Herschler Bldg., 3rd Floor, East
122 West 25th St.
Cheyenne, WY 82002
307-777-7797
Fax: 307-777-3555
E-mail:	 maitchison@wyaudit. 
	 state.wy.us
audit.state.wy.us/banking
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Alabama
Department of Insurance
PO Box 303351(Zip 36130-3351)
201 Monroe St., Suite 1700
Montgomery, AL 36104
334-269-3550
Fax: 334-241-4192
E-mail:	insdept@insurance. 
	 state.al.us
www.aldoi.org

Alaska
Division of Insurance
Department of Commerce, 
Community and Economic 
Development
550 West 7th Ave., Suite 1560
Robert B. Atwood Building
Anchorage, AK 99501-3567
907-269-7900
TTY: 907-465-5437
Fax: 907-269-7910
E-mail: insurance@alaska.gov
www.commerce.state.ak.us/
insurance

Division of Insurance
Department of Commerce, 
Community and Economic 
Development
PO Box 110805
Juneau, AK 99811-0805
907-465-2515
TTY: 907-465-5437
Fax: 907-465-3422
E-mail: insurance@alaska.gov
www.commerce.state.ak.us/
insurance/

Arizona
Department of Insurance
Consumer Affairs Division
2910 North 44th St., Suite 210
Phoenix, AZ 85018-9932
602-364-2499
602-364-3100
Toll free: 1-800-325-2548 (AZ)
Fax: 602-364-2505 (Complaints)
E-mail: consumers@id.state.az.us
www.id.state.az.us

Arkansas
Department of Insurance
1200 West Third St.
Little Rock, AR 72201-1904
501-371-2600
501-371-2640 (Consumer Services)
Toll free: 1-800-282-9134 (AR)
Toll free: 1-800-852-5494  
   (Consumer Services)
Toll free: 1-866-660-0888 (Criminal  
   Investigations – Insurance Fraud)
Fax: 501-371-2749
E-mail:	insurance.consumers@ 
	 arkansas.gov
www.insurance.arkansas.gov

California
California Department  
of Insurance
300 Capitol Mall, Suite 1700
Sacramento, CA 95814
916-492-3500
415-538-4010 (San Francisco)
213-346-6464 (Los Angeles)
Toll free: 1-800-927-4357 (CA) 
(Consumer Services Division)
Fax: 916-445-5280
www.insurance.ca.gov

Dept. of Managed Health Care, 
California HMO Help Center
(We serve all California Consumers 
who are enrolled in a California 
HMO, Blue Cross of California PPO, 
and Blue Shield of California PPO)
980 9th St., Suite 500
Sacramento, CA 95814-2725
Toll free: 1-888-HMO-2219  
   (HMO Health Center Consumer  
   Complaint Line)
Toll free: 1-877-525-1295 (HMO Help 
Center Provider/Physician Line)
TTY: 1-877-688-9891 (Toll free)
Fax: 916-255-5241 (Complaints)  
   or 916-255-2292 (Independent  
   Medical Review)
E-mail: GenInfo@dmhc.ca.gov
www.hmohelp.ca.gov

Colorado
Division of Insurance
1560 Broadway, Suite 850
Denver, CO 80202
303-894-7490 or 7499
Toll free: 1-800-930-3745 (CO)
TTY: 711
Fax: 303-894-7455
www.dora.state.co.us/Insurance

Connecticut
Insurance Department
Consumer Affairs Division
PO Box 816
153 Market St. (Zip: 065103)
Hartford, CT 06142-0816
860-297-3800
Toll free: 1-800-203-3447 (CT)
Fax: 860-566-7410
E-mail:	ctinsdept.consumeraffairs 
	 @ct.gov
www.ct.gov/cid

Each state has its own laws and regulations for each type of insurance. The officials listed below enforce 
these laws. Many of these offices can also provide you with information to help you make informed 
insurance buying decisions. See the “Insurance” section in Part I of this Handbook for advice (p. 26).   
If you have a question or complaint about your insurance company's policies, contact the company before 
you contact the state insurance regulator.
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Delaware
Delaware Insurance Department
841 Silver Lake Blvd.
Dover, DE 19904
302-674-7310
Toll free: 1-800-282-8611
Fax: 302-739-6278
E-mail: consumer@deins.state.de.us
www.delawareinsurance.gov

District of Columbia
Department of Insurance, 
Securities and Banking
810 First St., NE, Suite 701
Washington, DC 20002
202-727-8000
Fax: 202-535-1196
E-mail: info.disb@dcgov.org
www.disb.dc.gov

Florida
Office of Insurance Regulation
Department of Financial Services
200 East Gaines St.
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0322
850-413-3100
850-413-3140
Toll free: 1-800-342-2762 (FL)
TTY: 1-800-640-0886 (Toll free)
Fax: 850-488-2349
www.floir.com

Georgia
Insurance and Safety Fire 
Commissioner
704 West Tower
Two Martin Luther King, Jr. Dr.
Atlanta, GA 30334
404-656-2070
Toll free: 1-800-656-2298 (GA)
TTY: 711 (in Georgia only)
Fax: 404-657-8542
www.gainsurance.org

Hawaii
Insurance Division
Department of Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs
PO Box 3614 (Zip: 96811-3614)
335 Merchant St., 2nd Fl., Rm. 213
Honolulu, HI 96813
808-586-2790
Fax: 808-587-6714
E-mail: insurance@dcca.hawaii.gov
www.hawaii.gov/dcca/areas/ins

Idaho
Department of Insurance
Attention: Consumer Affairs
700 West State St., 3rd Floor
Boise, ID 83720-0043
208-334-4250
Toll free: 1-800-721-3272 (ID)
Fax: 208-334-4398
www.doi.state.id.us

Illinois
Division of Insurance
Department of Financial and 
Professional Regulation
100 West Randolph St., Suite 9-301
Chicago, IL 60601-3395
312-814-2427
Fax: 312-814-5416
E-mail: director@ins.state.il.us
www.idfpr.com

Division of Insurance
Department of Financial and 
Professional Regulation
320 West Washington St.
Springfield, IL 62767-0001
217-782-4515
Toll free: 1-877-527-9431 (Office  
   of Consumer Health Insurance)
Toll free: 1-866-445-5364  
   (Consumer Assistance Hotline)
TTY: 217-524-4872
Fax: 217-782-5020 or 217-558-2083  
   (Complaints)
E-mail: director@ins.state.il.us
www.idfpr.com

Indiana
Department of Insurance
311 West Washington St., Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46204-2787
317-232-2385
Toll free: 1-800-622-4461 (IN)
Toll free: 1-800-452-4800, ext. 6  
   (In-State Senior Health Insurance  
   Information)
Fax: 317-232-5251
www.in.gov/idoi

Iowa
Division of Insurance
330 Maple St.
Des Moines, IA 50319
515-281-5705
Toll free: 1-877-955-1212
Fax: 515-281-3059
www.iid.state.ia.us

Kansas
Kansas Insurance Department
Sandy Praeger, Commissioner
420 SW 9th St.
Topeka, KS 66612
785-296-3071
Toll free: 1-800-432-2484  
   (Kansas Only)
TTY: 1-877-235-3151 (Toll-Free)
Fax: 785-296-2283
E-mail:	commissioner@ 
	 ksinsurance.org
www.ksinsurance.org

Kentucky
Department of Insurance
PO Box 517
215 West Main St.
Frankfort, KY 40602
502-564-3630
Toll free: 1-800-595-6053
Fax: 502-564-1650
doi.ppr.ky.gov

Louisiana
Department of Insurance
1702 North Third St.
Baton Rouge, LA 70802
225-342-0895
225-342-5900
Toll free: 1-800-259-5300
Toll free: 1-800-259-5301
Fax: 254-342-3078
E-mail: public@ldi.state.la.us
www.ldi.state.la.us

Maine
Bureau of Insurance
34 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333-0034
207-624-8475
Toll free: 1-800-300-5000 (ME)
TTY: 1-888-577-6690 (Toll free)
Fax: 207-624-8599
www.maine.gov/insurance
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Maryland
Insurance Administration
525 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202-2272
410-468-2000
Toll free: 1-800-492-6116
TTY: 1-800-735-2258 (Toll free)
Fax: 410-468-2020
www.mdinsurance.state.md.us

Massachusetts
Division of Insurance
Consumer Service Section
One South Station, 5th Floor
Boston, MA 02110-2208
617-521-7794
Fax: 617-521-7575
www.state.ma.us/doi

Michigan
Office of Financial and  
Insurance Regulation
PO Box 30220
611 West Ottawa St., 3rd Floor
Lansing, MI 48909
517-373-0220
Toll free: 1-877-999-6442
Fax: 517-335-4978
E-mail: ofir-info@michigan.gov
www.michigan.gov/ofir

Minnesota
Department of Commerce
Market Assurance Division
85 7th Place East, Suite 500
St. Paul, MN 55101
651-296-2488
Toll free: 1-800-657-3602 (MN)
TTY: 651-296-2860
Fax: 651-296-4328
E-mail:	market.assurance@ 
	 state.mn.us
www.commerce.state.mn.us

Mississippi
Department of Insurance
PO Box 79
Jackson, MS 39205
601-359-2453
Toll free: 1-800-562-2957 (MS)
Fax: 601-359-1077
E-mail: consumer@mid.state.ms.us
www.mid.state.ms.us

Missouri
Missouri Department of 
Insurance, Financial, and 
Professional Registration
301 West High St., Room 530
PO Box 690
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0690
573-751-4126
Toll free: 1-800-726-7390 (MO)
TTY: 573-526-4536
Fax: 573-526-4898
E-mail: askmdi@insurance.mo.gov
www.insurance.mo.gov

Montana
Montana State Auditor’s Office
840 Helena Ave.
Helena, MT 59601
406-444-2040
Toll free: 1-800-332-6148 (MT)
TTY: 406-444-3246
Fax: 406-444-3497
E-mail: stateauditor@mt.gov
www.sao.mt.gov

Nebraska
Department of Insurance
941 O St., Suite 400
Terminal Building
Lincoln, NE 68508-3639
402-471-0888 (In Lincoln)
402-471-2201
Toll free: 1-877-564-7323 (NE)
TTY: 1-800-833-7351 (Toll free)
Fax: 402-471-6559
E-mail:	consumer_affairs@ 
	 nebraska.gov
www.doi.ne.gov

Nevada
Division of Insurance
Department of Business & Industry
788 Fairview Drive, Suite 300
Carson City, NV 89701
775-687-4270
Fax: 775-687-3937
E-mail: insinfo@doi.state.nv.us
www.doi.state.nv.us

Division of Insurance, State  
of Nevada
Department of Business & Industry
788 Fairview Dr.
Suite 300
Carson City, NV 89701-5491
775-687-4270
Fax: 775-687-3937
www.doi.state.nv.us

New Hampshire
Department of Insurance
21 South Fruit St., Suite 14
Concord, NH 03301-2430
603-271-2261
Toll free: 1-800-852-3416 (NH)
TTY: 1-800-735-2964 (NH)
Fax: 603-271-1406
E-mail: requests@ins.nh.gov
www.nh.gov/insurance

New Jersey
Department of Banking  
and Insurance
PO Box 325
20 West State St.
Trenton, NJ 08625
609-292-5360
609-292-5064 (Public Affairs)
Fax: 609-292-5571
www.njdobi.org

New Mexico
Department of Insurance
PO Box 1269
Santa Fe, NM 87504-1269
505-827-4601
Toll free: 1-800-947-4722 (NM)
Fax: 505-827-4734
E-mail: John.Gaherty@state.nm.us
www.nmprc.state.nm.us

New York
Consumer Services Bureau
Insurance Department
One Commerce Plaza
Albany, NY 12257
518-474-6600
Toll free: 1-800-342-3736 (NY)
Fax: 518-474-6630
E-mail: consumers@ins.state.ny.us
www.ins.state.ny.us
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Consumer Services Bureau
Insurance Department
65 Court St., #7
Buffalo, NY 14202
716-847-7618
Toll free: 1-800-342-3736 (NY)
Fax: 716-847-7925
E-mail: consumers@ins.state.ny.us
www.ins.state.ny.us

North Carolina
Department of Insurance
1201 Mail Service Center
Dobbs Bldg., 430 North Salisbury 
St. (Zip: 27603)
Raleigh, NC 27699-1201
919-733-3058
919-807-6750 (Consumer Services)  
   (Outside of NC)
Toll free: 1-800-546-5664 (NC)  
   (Consumer Services)
Fax: 919-733-0085
E-mail: consumer@ncdoi.net
www.ncdoi.com

North Dakota
Insurance Department
600 East Boulevard Ave., 5th Floor
Bismarck, ND 58505-0320
701-328-2440
Toll free: 1-800-247-0560 (ND)
TTY: 1-800-366-6888 (Toll free)
Fax: 701-328-4880
E-mail: insurance@nd.gov
www.nd.gov/ndins

Ohio
Office of Consumer Services
Department of Insurance
50 West Town St., 3rd Floor,  
Suite 300
Columbus, OH 43215
614-644-2673
Toll free: 1-800-686-1526  
   (Consumer Hotline)
Toll free: 1-800-686-1527  
   (Fraud Hotline)
Toll free: 1-800-686-1578  
   (Senior Hotline)
TTY: 614-644-3745
Fax: 614-644-3744
www.ohioinsurance.gov

Oklahoma
Insurance Department
PO Box 53408
2401 NW 23rd St., Suite 28
Oklahoma City, OK 73152-3408
405-521-2828
Toll free: 1-800-522-0071 (OK)
Fax: 405-521-6635
E-mail:	feedback@insurance. 
	 state.ok.us
www.ok.gov/oid

Oregon
Insurance Division
PO Box 14480 (Zip 97309-0405)
350 Winter St., NE, Room  440-2
Salem, OR 97301-3883
503-947-7984
Toll free: 1-888-877-4894 (OR)
Fax: 503-378-4351
E-mail: dcbs.insmail@state.or.us
insurance.oregon.gov

Pennsylvania
Bureau of Consumer Service
Insurance Department
1209 Strawberry Square
Harrisburg, PA 17120
717-787-2317
Toll free: 1-877-881-6388
Fax: 717-787-8585
E-mail: ra-in-consumer@state.pa.us
www.insurance.state.pa.us

Puerto Rico
Office of the Commissioner  
of Insurance
Fernandez Juncos Station
Call Box 8330
Santurce, PR 00910-8330
787-722-8686
787-721-5848
Toll free: 1-888-722-8686
Fax: 787-722-4402
E-mail: mlatorre@ocs.gobierno.pr
www.ocs.gobierno.pr

Rhode Island
Insurance Division
Department of Business Regulation
1511 Pontiac Ave.
Cranston, RI 02920
401-462-9500
Fax: 401-462-9559
www.dbr.state.ri.us

South Carolina
Consumer Services
Department of Insurance
PO Box 100105
1201 Main St., Suite 100  
   (Zip: 29201)
Columbia, SC 29202-3105
803-737-6180
Toll free: 1-800-768-3467 (SC)
Fax: 803-737-6231
E-mail: consumers@doi.sc.gov
www.doi.sc.gov

South Dakota
Division of Insurance
Department of Revenue and 
Regulation
445 East Capital Ave.
Pierre, SD 57501
605-773-3563
Fax: 605-773-5369
www.state.sd.us/drr

Tennessee
Department of Commerce  
and Insurance
500 James Robertson Pkwy.,  
5th Floor
Nashville, TN 37243-0565
615-741-4737
Toll free: 1-800-342-4029 (TN)
Fax: 615-532-4994
www.tn.gov/consumer

Texas
Department of Insurance
PO Box 149104
333 Guadalupe St.
Austin, TX 78714
512-463-6169
Toll free: 1-800-578-4677
Fax: 512-475-2005
E-mail: carol.cates@tdi.state.tx.us
www.tdi.state.tx.us

Utah
Department of Insurance
State Office Bldg., Room 3110
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6901
801-538-3804
Toll free: 1-800-439-3805 (UT)
TTY: 801-538-3826
Fax: 801-538-3829
www.insurance.utah.gov
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Vermont
Insurance Division
Department of Banking, Insurance, 
Securities and Health Care 
Administration
89 Main St.
Montpelier, VT 05620-3101
802-828-3301
Toll free: 1-800-964-1784 (VT)
Toll free: 1-800-631-7788  
   (VT – Health Insurance)
Fax: 802-828-3306
www.bishca.state.vt.us

Virgin Islands
Division of Banking and Insurance
No. 18 Kongens Gade
St. Thomas, VI 00802
340-774-7166
Fax: 340-774-9458
www.ltg.gov.vi

Virginia
Bureau of Insurance
State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main St. (Zip 23219 – Only 
for special delivery and walk-ins)
PO Box 1157
Richmond, VA 23218
804-371-9967
Toll free: 1-800-552-7945 (VA)
TTY: 804-371-9206
E-mail:	bureauofinsurance@ 
	 scc.virginia.gov
www.scc.virginia.gov

Washington
Office of the Insurance 
Commissioner
PO Box 40255
Insurance 5000 Building
Olympia, WA 98504-0255
360-725-7000
Toll free: 1-800-562-6900 (WA)
TTY: 360-586-0241
Fax: 360-586-3109
E-mail: mikek@oic.wa.gov
www.insurance.wa.gov

West Virginia
Offices of the Insurance 
Commissioner
PO Box 50540 (Zip 25305-0540)
1124 Smith St.
Charleston, WV 25301
304-558-3354
Toll free: 1-888-879-9842 (WV)
Fax: 304-558-0412
E-mail: wvins@wvinsurance.gov
www.wvinsurance.gov

Wisconsin
Office of the Commissioner  
of Insurance
PO Box 7873 (Zip 53707-7873)
125 S Webster St.
Madison, WI 53702
608-266-3585
Toll free: 1-800-236-8517 (WI)
TTY: Dial 711 & ask for 608-266-3586
Fax: 608-264-8115
E-mail: information@wisconsin.gov
oci.wi.gov

Wyoming
Department of Insurance
106 East Sixth Ave.
Cheyenne, WY 82002
307-777-7401
Toll free: 1-800-438-5768 (WY)
Fax: 307-777-5895
E-mail: wyinsdep@state.wy.us
insurance.state.wy.us/
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Alabama
Securities Commission
770 Washington Ave., Suite 570
Montgomery, AL 36130-4700
334-242-2984
Toll free: 1-800-222-1253 (AL)
Fax: 334-242-0240
E-mail: asc@asc.alabama.gov
www.asc.state.al.us

Alaska
Division of Banking and 
Securities
Department of Commerce, 
Community and Economic 
Development
150 3rd St., Suite 217
PO Box 11807
Juneau, AK  99811-0807
907-465-2521
Toll free: 1-888-925-2521 (AK)
TTY: 907-465-5437
Fax: 907-465-2549
E-mail: dbsc@commerce.state.ak.us
www.commerce.state.ak.us

Arizona
Securities Division
Arizona Corporation Commission
1300 West Washington, 3rd Floor
Phoenix, AZ 85007
602-542-4242
Toll free: 1-866-837-4399 (AZ)
Fax: 602-594-7470
E-mail: info@azinvestor.gov
www.azinvestor.gov

Arkansas
Arkansas Securities Department
201 East Markham
Heritage West Bldg., Suite 300
Little Rock, AR 72201
501-324-9260
Toll free: 1-800-981-4429
Fax: 501-324-9268
E-mail:	 info@securities. 
	 arkansas.gov
www.securities.arkansas.gov

California
Department of Corporations
1515 K St., Suite 200
Sacramento, CA 95814-4052
916-445-7205
Toll free: 1-866-275-2677
TTY: 1-800-735-2966
Fax: 916-322-8864
www.corp.ca.gov

Colorado
Division of Securities
Department of Regulatory Agencies
1560 Broadway, Suite 900
Denver, CO 80202
303-894-2320
TTY: 1-800-659-2656
Fax: 303-861-2126
E-mail: securities@dora.state.co.us
www.dora.state.co.us/securities

Connecticut
Department of Banking
Government Relations and 
Consumer Affairs
260 Constitution Plaza
Hartford, CT 06103-1800
860-240-8299
Toll free: 1-800-831-7225
Fax: 860-240-8178
E-mail: banking.complaints@ct.gov
www.ct.gov/dob

Delaware
Division of Securities
Department of Justice
820 North French St., 5th Floor
State Office Bldg.
Wilmington, DE 19801
302-577-8424
TTY: 302-577-5783
Fax: 302-856-5660
www.state.de.us/securities

District of Columbia
Dept. of Insurance, Securities and 
Banking
810 First St., NE, Suite 701
Washington, DC 20002
202-727-8000
Fax: 202-535-1196
E-mail: disb@dcgov.org
disb.dc.gov

Florida
Division of Securities
Office of Financial Regulation
200 East Gaines St.
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0370
850-410-9805
850-410-9893
Toll free: 1-800-848-3792, opt. 2 (FL)
Fax: 850-410-9748
E-mail: ofr@flofr.com
www.flofr.com

Georgia
Divison of Securities and 
Business Regulation
Office of the Secretary of State
Two Martin Luther King, Jr. Dr., SE
Suite 802, West Tower
Atlanta, GA 30334
404-656-3920
Toll free: 1-888-733-7427
Fax: 404-657-8410
E-mail: securities@sos.state.ga.us
www.sos.ga.gov/securities

Each state has its own laws and regulations for securities brokers and securities including stocks,  
mutual funds, commodities, real estate, etc. The officials and agencies listed below enforce these  
laws and regulations. Many of these offices can also provide information to help you make informed 
investment decisions. 

If you have a question or complaint about an investment, call the company or bank involved. If you are  
not satisfied with the response you get, call your state securities agency. See the “Investing” section  
in Part I of this Handbook for additional advice and sources of assistance (p. 33). 
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Hawaii
Business Registration Division
Department of Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs
335 Merchant St., Room 201, 2nd Floor
Honolulu, HI 96813
808-586-2744
Fax: 808-586-2733
E-mail: breg@dcca.hawaii.gov
www.hawaii.gov/dcca

Idaho
Department of Finance
PO Box 83720 (Zip 83720-0031)
800 Park Blvd., Suite 200
Boise, ID 83712
208-332-8000
Toll free: 1-888-346-3378 (ID)
Fax: 208-332-8097
E-mail: finance@finance.idaho.gov
finance.idaho.gov

Illinois
Securities Department
Secretary of State
300 W. Jefferson St., Suite 300A
Springfield, IL 62702
217-782-2256
Toll free: 1-800-628-7937 (IL)
Fax: 217-524-2172
www.sos.state.il.us

Indiana
Securities Division
Office of the Secretary of State
302 West Washington, Room E-111
Indianapolis, IN 46204
317-232-6681
Toll free: 1-800-223-8791 (IN)
Fax: 317-233-3675
www.state.in.us/sos

Iowa
Securities and Regulated 
Industries Bureau
340 Maple St.
Des Moines, IA 50319-0066
515-281-4441
Toll free: 1-877-955-1212 (IA)
Fax: 515-281-3059
E-mail: iowasec@iid.state.ia.us
www.iid.state.ia.us

Kansas
Office of the Securities 
Commissioner
618 South Kansas Ave., 2nd Floor
Topeka, KS 66603-3804
785-296-3307
Toll free: 1-800-232-9580 (KS)
Toll free: 1-888-407-2267 (KS)
Fax: 785-296-6872
www.ksc.ks.gov

Kentucky
Division of Securities
Department of Financial Institutions
1025 Capitol Center Dr., Ste. 200
Frankfort, KY 40601-3868
502-573-3390
Toll free: 1-800-223-2579
Fax: 502-573-2182
E-mail: kfi@ky.gov
www.kfi.ky.gov

Louisiana
Securities Division
Office of Financial Institutions
8660 United Plaza Blvd., 2nd Floor
Baton Rouge, LA 70809
225-925-4660
Fax: 225-925-4548
www.ofi.state.la.us

Maine
Office of Securities
121 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333-0121
207-624-8551
Toll free: 1-877-624-8551 (ME)
TTY: 1-888-577-6690
Fax: 207-624-8590
www.maine.gov/pfr/securities/
index.shtml

Maryland
Securities Division
Office of the Attorney General
200 Saint Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020
410-576-6360
Toll free: 1-888-743-0023 (MD)
TTY: 410-576-6372
Fax: 410-576-6532
E-mail: securities@oag.state.md.us
www.oag.state.md.us

Massachusetts
Securities Division
Office of the Secretary of the 
Commonwealth
One Ashburton Place, 17th Floor, 
Room 1701
Boston, MA 02108
617-727-3548
Toll free: 1-800-269-5428 (MA)
TTY: 617-878-3889
Fax: 617-248-0177
E-mail: securities@sec.state.ma.us
www.sec.state.ma.us/sct

Michigan
Securities Division
Office of Financial and Insurance 
Regulation
PO Box 30220
611 W. Ottawa St., 3rd Floor
Lansing, MI 48909
517-373-0220
Toll free: 1-877-999-6442
Fax: 517-241-6356
E-mail: ofis-sec-info@michigan.gov
www.michigan.gov/ofis

Minnesota
Department of Commerce
Division of Securities and 
Registration
85 Seventh Place East, Suite 500
St. Paul, MN 55101
651-296-4026
Toll free: 1-800-657-3602 (MN)
TTY: 651-296-2860
Fax: 651-296-4328
E-mail:	 securities.commerce@ 
	 state.mn.us
www.commerce.state.mn.us

Mississippi
Securities Division
Business Regulation and 
Enforcement
Secretary of State’s Office
PO Box 136 (Zip 39205)
700 North St.
Jackson, MS 39202
601-359-1350
Toll free: 1-800-256-3494
Fax: 601-359-1499
www.sos.state.ms.us
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Missouri
Commissioner of Securities
PO Box 1276
Jefferson City, MO 65102
573-751-4136
Toll free: 1-800-721-7996 (MO)
Fax: 573-526-3124
www.sos.mo.gov

Montana
Securities Division
State Auditor
840 Helena Ave.
Helena, MT 59601
406-444-2040
Toll free: 1-800-332-6148 (MT)
Fax: 406-444-3497
E-mail: stateauditor@mt.gov
www.sao.mt.gov

Nebraska
Bureau of Securities
Department of Banking & Finance
PO Box 95006
1230 O St., Suite 400 (Zip: 68508)
Lincoln, NE 68509-5006
402-471-3445
Fax: 402-471-3062
www.ndbf.org

Nevada
Securities Division
Office of the Secretary of State
555 East Washington Ave., Ste 5200
Las Vegas, NV 89101
702-486-2880
Fax: 702-486-2888
E-mail: nvsec@sos.nv.gov
www.sos.state.nv.us

New Hampshire
Bureau of Securities Regulation
Department of State
State House, Room 204
107 North Main St.
Concord, NH 03301-4989
603-271-1463
Fax: 603-271-7933
www.sos.nh.gov/securities

New Jersey
Bureau of Securities
Department of Law and Public 
Safety
153 Halsey St., 6th Floor
PO Box 47029 (Zip: 07101)
Newark, NJ 07102
973-504-3600
Fax: 973-504-3601
www.njsecurities.gov

New Mexico
Securities Division
Regulation & Licensing Department
PO Box 25101 (Zip: 87504-5101)
2550 Cerrillos Rd.
Santa Fe, NM 87505
505-476-4580
Toll free: 1-800-704-5533 (NM)
Fax: 505-984-0617
www.rld.state.nm.us

New York
Bureau of Investor Protection  
and Securities
Office of the Attorney General
120 Broadway
New York, NY 10271
212-416-8200
Fax: 212-416-8816
www.oag.state.ny.us

North Carolina
Securities Division
Two South Salisbury St.
Raleigh, NC 27601
919-733-3924
Toll free: 1-800-688-4507  
   (Investor Hotline)
Fax: 919-821-0818
www.sosnc.com

North Dakota
Securities Department
600 E. Boulevard Ave.
State Capitol – 5th Floor
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510
701-328-2910
Toll free: 1-800-297-5124 (ND)
Fax: 701-328-2946
E-mail: ndsecurities@nd.gov
www.ndsecurities.com

Ohio
Division of Securities
77 South High St., 22nd Floor
Columbus, OH 43215-6131
614-644-7381
Toll free: 1-800-788-1194 (Investor 
Protection Hotline)
Fax: 614-466-3316
www.securities.state.oh.us

Oklahoma
Department of Securities
120 North Robinson, Suite 860
First National Center
Oklahoma City, OK 73102
405-280-7700
Fax: 405-280-7742
E-mail:	 general@securities. 
	 state.ok.gov
www.securities.state.ok.gov

Oregon
Division of Finance and  
Corporate Securities
Department of Consumer & 
Business Services
PO Box 14480
350 Winter St., NE
Salem, OR 97309-0405
503-378-4140
Toll free: 1-866-814-9710
TTY: 503-378-4100
Fax: 503-378-6444
E-mail: dfcsmail@state.or.us
dfcs.oregon.gov

Pennsylvania
Securities Commission
Office of the Secretary
1010 North 7th St.
Eastgate Office Building, 2nd Floor
Harrisburg, PA 17102-1410
717-787-8061
Toll free: 1-800-600-0007 (PA)
Fax: 717-783-5122
E-mail: pscwebmaster@state.pa.us
www.psc.state.pa.us
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Puerto Rico
Office of the Commissioner  
of Financial Institutions
PO Box 11855 (Zip: 00910-3855)
Centro-Europa Building – Suite 600, 
1492 Ponce de Leon Ave.
San Juan, PR 00907
787-723-8445
Toll free: 1-800-981-7711
Fax: 787-723-4225
E-mail: querellas@ocif.gobierno.pr
www.cif.gov.pr

Rhode Island
Securities Division
Dept. of Business Regulation
Building 69-1
1511 Pontiac Ave.
Cranston, RI 02920
401-462-9500 (Business Regulation)
401-462-9527 (Securities)
TTY: 711 (In Rhode Island Only)
Fax: 401-462-9645
www.dbr.state.ri.us

South Carolina
Securities Division
Office of the Attorney General
PO Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211-1549
803-734-9916
803-734-3970
Fax: 803-734-3677
www.scattorneygeneral.com/
securities/index.html

South Dakota
Division of Securities
445 East Capitol Ave.
Pierre, SD 57501-3185
605-773-4823
Fax: 605-773-5953
www.state.sd.us/dcr/securities

Tennessee
Securities Division
Department of Commerce  
and Insurance
500 James Robertson Pkwy.
Davy Crockett Tower, Suite 680
Nashville, TN 37243
615-741-2241
Toll free: 1-800-863-9117 (TN)
Fax: 615-532-8375
www.state.tn.us/commerce

Texas
State Securities Board
PO Box 13167
208 East 10th – 5th Floor (Zip: 78701)
Austin, TX 78711-3167
512-305-8300
Fax: 512-305-8310
www.ssb.state.tx.us

Utah
Division of Securities
Department of Commerce
PO Box 146760
160 East 300 South, 2nd Floor  
(Zip: 84111)
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6760
801-530-6600
Toll free: 1-800-721-7233 (UT)
Fax: 801-530-6980
www.securities.utah.gov

Vermont
Securities Division
Department of Banking, Insurance, 
Securities, & Health Care 
Administration
89 Main St.
Montpelier, VT 05620-3101
802-828-3420
Fax: 802-828-2896
www.bishca.state.vt.us/
SecuritiesDiv/securindex.htm

Virginia
Division of Securities and  
Retail Franchising
State Corporation Commission
PO Box 1197
Richmond, VA 23218
804-371-9051
Toll free: 1-800-552-7945 (VA)
TTY: 804-371-9203
Fax: 804-371-9911
www.scc.virginia.gov/srf

Washington
Securities Division
Department of Financial Institutions
PO Box 9033
Olympia, WA 98507-9033
360-902-8760
Toll free: 1-877-746-4334
TTY: 360-664-8126
Fax: 360-902-0524
www.dfi.wa.gov

West Virginia
Securities Commission
State Auditor’s Office
State Capitol Bldg 1, Room W100
Charleston, WV 25305
304-558-2257
Toll free: 1-888-368-9507
Toll free: 1-888-509-6567  
   (Fraud Complaint)
(Enforcement/Registration/CRD Req.)
Fax: 304-558-4211
E-mail: securities@wvsao.gov
www.wvsao.gov/securities

Wisconsin
Division of Securities
Department of Financial Institutions
PO Box 1768
345 W. Washington Ave., 4th Floor 
(Zip: 53703)
Madison, WI  53701-1768
608-266-1064
Toll free: 1-800-472-4325 (WI)
TTY: 608-266-8818
Fax: 608-264-7979
www.wdfi.org

Wyoming
Compliance Division
Office of the Secretary of State
200 West 24th St.
State Capitol Bldg.
Cheyenne, WY 82002-0020
307-777-7370
Fax: 307-777-7640
E-mail: compliance@state.wy.us
soswy.state.wy.us
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Alabama
Public Service Commission
PO Box 304260
100 North Union St., Suite 850
Montgomery, AL 36130
334-242-5218
Toll free: 1-800-392-8050 (AL) 
   (Complaint Hotline)
Fax: 334-242-0727
www.psc.state.al.us

Alaska
Regulatory Commission of Alaska
701 West 8th Ave., Suite 300
Anchorage, AK 99501-3469
907-276-6222
Toll free: 1-800-390-2782
TTY: 907-276-4533
Fax: 907-276-0160
E-mail: rca.mail@alaska.gov
rca.alaska.gov

Arizona
Utilities Division
Arizona Corporation Commission
1200 West Washington St.
Phoenix, AZ 85007-2996
602-542-4251
Toll free: 1-800-222-7000 (AZ)
Fax: 602-542-2129
E-mail: mailmaster@azcc.gov
www.cc.state.az.us

Arkansas
Public Service Commission
1000 Center St.
PO Box 400
Little Rock, AR 72203-0400
501-682-2051
501-682-1718 (Complaints)
Toll free: 1-800-482-1164  
   (AR - Complaints)
TTY: 1-800-682-2898 (Toll free)
Fax: 501-682-5731
www.arkansas.gov/psc

California
Public Utilities Commission
505 Van Ness Ave., Room 5218
San Francisco, CA 94102
415-703-2782
Toll free: 1-800-649-7570  
   (CA – Utility Complaints)
TTY: 415-703-2032
Fax: 415-703-1758
www.cpuc.ca.gov

Colorado
Public Utilities Commission
1560 Broadway, Suite 250
Denver, CO 80202
303-894-2070
Toll free: 1-800-456-0858 (CO)
TTY: 303-894-2512
Fax: 303-894-2532
E-mail:	PUConsumer.Complaints@ 
	 dora.state.co.us
www.dora.state.co.us/puc

Connecticut
Department of Public  
Utility Control
Ten Franklin Square
New Britain, CT 06051
860-827-1553
Toll free: 1-800-382-4586 (CT)
TTY: 860-827-2837
Fax: 860-827-2613
www.state.ct.us/dpuc

Delaware
Public Service Commission
861 Silver Lake Blvd.
Cannon Bldg., Suite 100
Dover, DE 19904
302-736-7500
Toll free: 1-800-282-8574 (DE)
TTY: 302-736-7500
Fax: 302-739-4849

District of Columbia
DC Public Service Commission
1333 H St., NW
Suite 200, West Tower
Washington, DC 20005
202-626-5100 (Consumer  
   Services Division)
Fax: 202-393-1389
E-mail: support@dcpsc.org
www.dcpsc.org

Florida
Florida Public Service 
Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850
850-413-6330
Toll free: 1-800-342-3552 (FL)
TTY: 1-800-955-8771
Fax: 800-511-0809
E-mail: contact@psc.state.fl.us
www.floridapsc.com

Georgia
Public Service Commission
244 Washington St., First Floor
Atlanta, GA 30334
404-656-4501
Toll free: 1-800-282-5813 (GA)
Fax: 404-656-2341
E-mail: gapsc@psc.state.ga.us
www.psc.state.ga.us

Hawaii
Public Utilities Commission
465 South King St., Room 103
Honolulu, HI 96813
808-586-2020
Fax: 808-586-2066
E-mail: Hawaii.PUC@hawaii.gov
www.hawaii.gov/budget/puc

State utility commissions regulate services and rates for gas, electricity and telephones within your 
state. In some states, the utility commissions regulate other services such as water, transportation,  
and the moving of household goods. Rates for utilities and services provided between states are 
regulated by the federal government. 

Many utility commissions handle consumer complaints. Sometimes, if a number of complaints are 
received about the same utility matter, they will conduct investigations.
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Idaho
Public Utilities Commission
PO Box 83720
472 W. Washington (Zip: 83702-5918)
Boise, ID 83720-0074
208-334-0300
Toll free: 1-800-432-0369 (ID)  
   (Complaint Line)
Toll free: 1-800-337-1363 (Voice/TDD)
TTY: 1-800-377-3529
Fax: 208-334-3762
www.puc.idaho.gov

Illinois
Commerce Commission
527 East Capitol Ave.
Springfield, IL 62701
217-785-7456
Toll free: 1-800-524-0795 (IL)
TTY: 1-800-858-9277 (Toll free)
Fax: 217-782-1042
www.icc.illinois.gov 

Indiana
Utility Regulatory Commission
Consumer Affairs Division
101 West Washington St., Suite 1500E
Indianapolis, IN 46204
317-232-2712
Toll free: 1-800-851-4268 (IN)
TTY: 317-232-8556
Fax: 317-233-2410
E-mail: info@urc.IN.gov
www.IN.gov/iurc

Iowa
Utilities Board
350 Maple St.
Des Moines, IA 50319-0069
515-281-3839
Toll free: 1-877-565-4450 (IA)
Fax: 515-281-5329
E-mail: iubcustomer@iub.state.ia.us
www.state.ia.us/iub

Kansas
Corporation Commission
1500 SW Arrowhead Rd.
Topeka, KS 66604-4027
785-271-3100
Toll free: 1-800-662-0027 (KS)
Fax: 785-271--3354
E-mail: public.affairs@kcc.state.ks.us
www.kcc.state.ks.us

Kentucky
Public Service Commission
PO Box 615
211 Sower Blvd.
Frankfort, KY 40602
502-564-3940
Toll free: 1-800-772-4636  
   (KY - Complaints)
TTY: 1-800-648-6056
Fax: 502-564-3460
www.psc.state.ky.gov

Louisiana
Public Service Commission
602 North Fifth St., Galvez Bldg.  
12th Floor
PO Box 91154
Baton Rouge, LA 70821-9154
225-342-4404
Toll free: 1-800-256-2397 (LA)
Fax: 225-342-2831
www.lpsc.org

Maine
Public Utilities Commission
242 State St.
Augusta, ME 04333-0018
207-287-3831
Toll free: 1-800-452-4699 (ME)
TTY: 1-800-437-1220
Fax: 207-287-1039
E-mail: maine.puc@maine.gov
www.state.me.us/mpuc/

Maryland
Public Service Commission
Six St. Paul St., 16th Floor
Baltimore, MD 21202-6806
410-767-8000
Toll free: 1-800-492-0474
TTY: 1-800-735-2258
Fax: 410-333-6495
E-mail: mpsc@psc.state.md.us
www.psc.state.md.us/psc/

Massachusetts
Dept. of Telecommunications  
and Energy
Two South Station, 4th Floor
Boston, MA 02110
617-305-3580
Toll free: 1-800-392-6066  
   (Consumer Division)
TTY: 1-800-974-6006 (Toll free)
Fax: 617-478-2590
www.mass.gov/dpu

Michigan
Public Service Commission
PO Box 30221
6545 Mercantile Way, Suite 7 (Zip:  
   48911)
Lansing, MI 48909
517-241-6180
Toll free: 1-800-292-9555 (MI)
 Fax: 517-241-6181
E-mail:	mpsc_commissioners@ 
	 michigan.gov
 www.michigan.gov/mpsc

Minnesota
Public Utilities Commission
121 Seventh Place East, Suite 350
St. Paul, MN 55101-2147
651-296-0406
Toll free: 1-800-657-3782
Fax: 651-297-7073
E-mail: consumer.puc@state.mn.us
www.puc.state.mn.us

Mississippi
Public Service Commission
501 North West St.
Woolfolk Building
Jackson, MS 39201
601-961-5440 (Southern District)
601-961-5430 (Central District)
601-961-5450  
   (Chairman & Northern District)
Toll free: 1-800-356-6429  
   (Southern District)
Toll free: 1-800-356-6430  
   (Central District)
Toll free: 1-800-356-6428  
   (Chairman & Northern District)
Fax: 601-961-5464 (Chairman  
   & Northern District) 
   601-961-5842(Southern)
   601-961-5824(Central)
www.psc.state.ms.us

Missouri
Public Service Commission
PO Box 360
200 Madison St.
Jefferson City, MO 65102
573-751-3234
Toll free: 1-800-392-4211 (MO)
TTY: 711 (MO Only)
Fax: 573-526-1500
www.psc.mo.gov
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Montana
Public Service Commission
PO Box 202601
1701 Prospect Ave.
Helena, MT 59620-2601
406-444-6199
Toll free: 1-800-646-6150 (MT)
TTY: 406-444-6199
Fax: 406-444-7618
www.psc.mt.gov

Nebraska
Public Service Commission
PO Box 94927 (Zip: 68508-4927)
1200 North St., Suite 300
Lincoln, NE 68509
402-471-3101
Toll free: 1-800-526-0017 (NE)
TTY: 402-471-0213
Fax: 402-471-0254
E-mail: cheryl.elton@nebraska.gov
www.psc.state.ne.us

Nevada
Public Utilities Commission
1150 East William St.
Carson City, NV 89701
775-684-6101
702-486-2600 (Las Vegas)
Toll free: 1-800-992-0900, ext. 46100  
   (NV)
Fax: 775-684-6110
pucweb1.state.nv.us/pucn

New Hampshire
Public Utilities Commission
21 South Fruit St., Suite 10
Concord, NH 03301-2429
603-271-2431
Toll free: 1-800-852-3793 (NH)
TTY: 1-800-735-2964 (NH)
Fax: 603-271-3878
E-mail: puc@puc.nh.gov
www.puc.state.nh.us

New Jersey
Board of Public Utilities
Two Gateway Center
Newark, NJ 07102
973-648-2026
Toll free: 1-800-624-0241 (NJ)
Fax: 973-648-4195
www.bpu.state.nj.us

New Mexico
Utilities Division
Public Regulation Commission
Consumer Relations Division
PO Box 1269
224 E. Palace Ave. (Zip: 87501)
Santa Fe, NM 87504-1269
505-827-6941
Toll free: 1-800-663-9782 (NM)
Toll free: 1-800-947-4722 (NM)
TTY: 505-827-6911
Fax: 505-827-6973
E-mail: barbara.a.rael@state.nm.us
www.nmprc.state.nm.us

New York
Public Service Commission
Office of Consumer Service
Three Empire State Plaza
Albany, NY 12223-1350
518-474-3280
Toll free: 1-800-342-3377  
   (NY – Complaints – Gas/Electric/ 
   Telephone)
Toll free: 1-888-275-7721 (PSC 
Competition Information)
Toll free: 1-866-476-7697  
   (Green Power Information)
Fax: 518-474-1691
E-mail:	ronald_cerniglia@ 
	 dps.state.ny.us
www.askpsc.com

North Carolina
NC Utilities Commission –  
Public Staff
Consumer Services
4326 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-4326
919-733-9277
Toll free: 1-866-380-9816
Fax: 919-733-4744
E-mail:	consumer.services@ 
	 ncmail.net
www.ncuc.commerce.state.nc.us

North Dakota
Public Service Commission
12th Floor
600 East Blvd. Ave., Dept 408
Bismarck, ND 58505-0480
701-328-2400
TTY: 1-800-366-6888 (ND)
Fax: 701-328-2410
E-mail: ndpsc@nd.gov
www.psc.state.nd.us

Ohio
Public Utilities Commission
180 East Broad St.
Columbus, OH 43215-3793
614-466-3292
Toll free: 1-800-686-7826 (OH)
TTY: 1-800-686-1570 (OH)
Fax: 614-752-8351
www.puco.ohio.gov

Oklahoma
Corporation Commission
PO Box 52000
Oklahoma City, OK 73152-2000
405-521-2211
Toll free: 1-800-522-8154 (OK)
TTY: 405-521-3513
Fax: 405-521-2087
www.occeweb.com

Oregon
Public Utility Commission
Consumer Services Division
PO Box 2148
550 Capitol St., NE, Suite 215  
   (Zip: 97301-2551)
Salem, OR 97308-2148
503-378-6600
Toll free: 1-800-522-2404  
   (OR – Consumer Services)
TTY: 1-800-648-3458 (OR)
Fax: 503-378-5743
E-mail: puc.consumer@state.or.us
www.puc.state.or.us

Pennsylvania
Public Utility Commission
PO Box 3265
400 North St. (Zip: 17120)
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265
717-783-7349
Toll free: 1-800-782-1110 (PA)
 Fax: 717-787-5813
 www.puc.state.pa.us

Puerto Rico
Public Service Commission
Hato Rey Station
PO Box 190870
San Juan, PR 00919-0870
787-756-1919
Fax: 787-756-8086
www.naruc.org
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Rhode Island
Public Utilities Commission
89 Jefferson Blvd.
Warwick, RI 02888
401-941-4500
TTY: 401-277-3500
Fax: 401-941-4885
www.ripuc.org

South Carolina
Consumer Services Division
Office of Regulatory Staff
1401 Main St., Suite 900
Columbia, SC 29201
803-737-5230
Toll free: 1-800-922-1531 (SC)
TTY: 803-737-5175  or  
   1-800-334-2217 (SC)
Fax: 803-737-4750
www.regulatorystaff.sc.gov

South Dakota
Public Utilities Commission
Consumer Affairs
500 East Capitol Ave.
Pierre, SD 57501-5070
605-773-3201
Toll free: 1-800-332-1782  
   (Consumer Affairs)
Fax: 1-866-757-6031
www.puc.sd.gov

Tennessee
Tennessee Regulatory Authority
460 James Robertson Pkwy.
Nashville, TN 37243-0505
615-741-2904
Toll free: 1-800-342-8359  
   (Consumer Services)
TTY: 1-888-276-0677 (Toll free)
Fax: 615-741-8953
www.state.tn.us/tra

Texas
Public Utility Commission
PO Box 13326
1701 North Congress Ave.
Austin, TX 78711-3326
512-936-7000
Toll free: 1-888-782-8477
TTY: 512-936-7136
Fax: 512-936-7003
E-mail: customer@puc.state.tx.us
www.puc.state.tx.us

Utah
Public Service Commission
160 East 300 South
Salt Lake City, UT 84111
801-530-6716
Toll free: 1-866-772-8824 (UT)
TTY: 801-530-6638
Fax: 801-530-6796
E-mail: psccal@utah.gov
www.psc.utah.gov

Vermont
Public Service Board
112 State St., 4th Floor
Montpelier, VT 05620-2701
802-828-2358
TTY: 1-800-253-0191 (VT)
Fax: 802-828-3351
E-mail: tsb.clerk@state.vt.us
www.state.vt.us/psb

Virginia
State Corporation Commission
PO Box 1197
1300 E. Main St. (Zip: 23219)
Richmond, VA 23218
804-371-9967
Toll free: 1-800-552-7945 (VA)
TTY: 804-371-9206
Fax: 804-371-9350
www.scc.virginia.gov

Washington
Utilities and Transportation 
Commission
PO Box 47250
1300 S Evergreen Park Dr., SW
Olympia, WA 98504
360-664-1160
TTY: 1-800-416-5289
Fax: 360-586-1150
www.utc.wa.gov

West Virginia
Public Service Commission
201 Brooks St.
Charleston, WV 25301
304-340-0300
Toll free: 1-800-344-5113 (WV)
Fax: 304-340-0325
www.psc.state.wv.us

Wisconsin
Public Service Commission
Consumer Affairs Unit
PO Box 7854 (Zip: 53707-7854)
610 North Whitney Way
Madison, WI 53707
608-266-2001
Toll free: 1-800-225-7729
TTY: 608-267-1479
Fax: 608-266-3957
psc.wi.gov

Wyoming
Public Service Commission
2515 Warren Ave., Suite 300
Cheyenne, WY 82002
307-777-7427
Toll free: 1-888-570-9905 (WY)
TTY: 307-777-7427
Fax: 307-777-5700
E-mail: wyoming_psc@state.wy.us
psc.state.wy.us
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AFSA Education  Foundation

919 Eighteenth St., NW
Washington, DC 20006
202-466-8611
Toll free: 888-400-7577
Fax: 202-223-0321
E-mail: info@afsaef.org
www.afsaef.org
The AFSAEF mission is to educate 
all consumers – young and old – 
about the benefits of responsible 
money management so they can 
make informed financial decisions, 
understand the credit process, and 
seek help if credit problem occur.
MoneySKILL® educates young 
adults on the personal finance 
concepts in the areas of income, 
expenses, assets, liabilities and risk 
management to empower them to 
make sound financial decisions.

American Arbitration 
Association

New York, NY 10019
Toll free: 1-800-778-7879
www.adr.org
This association is a not-for-
profit public service organization 
committed to the resolution of 
disputes through arbitration,
mediation, concilation and other 
voluntary procedures.

American Association of 
Homes and Services for  
the Aging

2519 Connecticut Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20008-1520
202-783-2242
Fax: 202-783-2255
E-mail: info@aahsa.org
www.aahsa.org
AAHSA is committed to advancing 
the vision of healthy, affordable, 

ethical aging services for America. 
The association represents 5,600
mission-driven, not-for-profit nursing 
homes, continuing care retirement 
communities, assisted living and 
senior housing facilities, and 
community service organizations.

American Bankers 
Association

1120 Connecticut Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20036
Toll free: 1-800-226-5377
Fax: 202-663-7543
www.aba.com
The American Bankers Association 
is the largest banking trade 
association in the country. It will 
provide consumer education 
materials upon request.

American Bar Association

740 15th St., NW
Washington DC, 20005
321 N. Clark St.
Chicago, IL 60654
312-988-5000
202-662-1000
Fax: 312-988-5528
E-mail: askaba@abanet.org
www.abanet.org
The Bar Association publishes 
a directory of state and local 
alternative dispute resolution 
programs and provides consumer
information upon request.

American Council of Life 
Insurers

101 Constitution Ave. NW, Suite 700
Washington, DC 20001-2133
202-624-2000
Toll free: 1-800-942-4242  
   (Consumer Helpline)
Fax: 202-624-2319
www.acli.com
Trade association of over 500 
insurance companies that provide 
life insurance, pensions and 
annuities, long-term care, and
disability income insurance.

American Health Care 
Association

1201 L St., NW
Washington, DC 20005
202-842-4444
Toll free: 1-800-321-0343  
   (Bookstore Only)
Fax: 202-842-3860
www.ahca.org
Membership: state associations of 
long-term health care facilities and 
health related businesses.

American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants

220 Leigh Farm Rd.
Durham, NC 27707
919-402-4500
Toll free: 1-888-777-7077 (Ethics 
Hotline)
Fax: 919-402-4670
E-mail: ethics@aicpa.org
www.aicpa.org
Membership: State-certified 
accountants.

Companies that manufacture similar products or offer similar services often belong to an industry 
association. These associations help resolve problems between their member companies and 
consumers. Most also provide consumer information through publications and web sites. 

If you have a problem with a company and cannot resolve it by working directly with that firm, ask if the 
company is a member of an association. Then, check this section to see if the association is listed. 
If the association is not included here, your local library has reference materials to help you find the 
appropriate contact. 
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American Moving and Storage 
Association (AMSA)

1611 Duke St.
Alexandria, VA 22314
703-683-7410
Toll free: 1-888-849-AMSA
Fax: 703-683-7527
E-mail: info@moving.org
www.moving.org
The professional moving industry’s 
national trade association offers 
a wealth of information on its 
consumer website, including a 
new Mover Referral Service. It also 
sponsors an arbitration service 
(dispute settlement program), 
helping consumers resolve loss and 
damage claims on interstate moves.

American Society of Travel 
Agents, Inc.

1101 King St., Suite 200
Alexandria, VA 22314
703-739-2782
Fax: 703-684-8319
www.astanet.com
Membership: travel agents.

Better Hearing Institute (BHI)

1441 I St. NW, Suite 700
Washington, DC 20005
202-449-1100
Toll free: 1-800-327-9355
Fax: 202-216-9646
E-mail: mail@betterhearing.org
www.betterhearing.org
A nonprofit educational 
organization, BHI informs persons 
with impaired hearing and the 
general public about hearing 
loss and available help through 
medicine, surgery, amplification, 
and other rehabilitation.

Blue Cross and Blue Shield 
Association

Consumer Affairs
1310 G St., NW
Washington, DC 20005
202-626-4780
Fax: 202-626-4833
www.bluecares.com
Membership: local Blue Cross and 
Blue Shield plans in the United 
States, Canada and Jamaica.

Boat Owners Association of 
The United States, BOATU.S.

880 South Pickett St.
Alexandria, VA 22304-0730
703-823-9550
703-461-2856
Fax: 703-461-4674
E-mail:	consumerprotection@ 
	 boatus.com
www.boatus.com
my.boatus.com/consumer/
database.aspx, Consumer 
Complaint Database
The Consumer Protection Bureau 
at BoatU.S. mediates disputes 
between boat owners and the 
marine industry. They maintain 
the only database of consumer 
complaints involving boats, 
marine engines and boat-related 
businesses. BoatU.S. also works 
closely with the U.S. Coast Guard 
to monitor safety defect problems.

Cemetery Consumer Service 
Council

PO Box 2028
Reston, VA 20195-0028
703-391-8407
Toll free: 1-800-645-7700
Fax: 703-391-8416
www.iccfa.com
The Cemetery Consumer Service 
Council is an industry-sponsored 
dispute resolution program.  
Consumer information is available.

Children’s Advertising  
Review Unit (CARU)

Council of Better Business  
Bureaus, Inc.
70 West 36th St., 12th Floor
New York, NY 10018
212-947-5137
Toll free: 866-334-6272, ext.111
E-mail: caru@caru.bbb.org
www.caru.org
CARU handles consumer 
complaints about truth and 
accuracy of advertising directed to 
children under 12 years of age.

Consumer Electronics  
Association (CEA)

1919 S. Eads St.
Arlington, VA 22202
703-907-7600
Toll free: 1-866-858-1555
Fax: 703-907-7675
E-mail: cea@ce.org
www.ce.org
CEA is the preeminent trade 
association representing more than 
2,000 corporate members involved 
in the design, development, 
manufacturing, distribution and 
integration of audio, video, mobile 
electronics, wireless and landline 
communications, information 
technology, home networking, 
multimedia and accessory 
products.

Credit Union National 
Association (CUNA)

5710 Mineral Point Rd. (Zip: 53705)
PO Box 431
Madison, WI 53701
608-231-4308
Toll free: 1-800-356-9655
Fax: 608-232-8240
www.cuna.org
CUNA serves more than 90% of 
credit unions through credit union 
leagues in all 50 states and the 
District of Columbia. Credit unions 
are cooperative non-profit financial 
institutions owned and controlled 
by members.
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Direct Marketing Association 
(DMA)

Department of Corporate 
Responsibility
1615 L St., NW, Ste. 1100
Washington, DC 20036-5624
202-955-5030
Fax: 202-955-0085
E-mail: consumer@the-dma.org
www.DMAchoice.org
DMA is the largest and oldest 
trade association for organizations 
(both commercial and nonprofit) 
involved in direct marketing. Its 
members include organizations that 
market goods and services directly 
to consumers using direct mail, 
catalogs, the Internet, telemarketing, 
magazines, newspaper and TV 
ads. DMA’s consumer website 
offers consumers options (free of 
charge) to better manage their 
mail. In addition to name-removal 
and modification services, DMA 
offers consumer education on 
subjects such as shopping safely 
and securely online, reviewing 
sweepstakes offers, and avoiding ID 
theft.

Direct Selling Association 
(DSA)

1667 K St., NW, Suite 1100
Washington, DC 20006
202-452-8866
Fax: 202-452-9010
E-mail: info@dsa.org
www.dsa.org
Membership: companies that 
manufacture and distribute 
consumer products person-
to-person and through home-
party plans using independent 
salespeople. All members comply 
with the DSA Code of Ethics.

Distance Education and 
Training Council

1601 18th St., NW, Suite 2
Washington, DC 20009
202-234-5100
Fax: 202-332-1386
E-mail: rob@detc.org
www.detc.org
Membership: Home study 
(correspondence) schools.

Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority (FINRA)

One Liberty Plaza
165 Broadway, 27th Floor
New York, NY 10006
212-858-4400
Toll free: 1-800-289-9999 (Broker  
   Check Hotline)
Fax: 212-858-4429
www.finra.org/
arbitrationmediation
FINRA operates the largest dispute 
resolution forum in the securities 
industry for disputes between 
investors and securities firms.

Financial Planning 
Association (FPA)

Offices in Denver and Washington
4100 E. Mississippi Ave., Suite 400
Denver, CO 80246-3053
Toll free: 1-800-647-6340
Fax: 303-759-0749
E-mail: fpa@fpanet.org
www.FPAforFinancialPlanning.
org
The Financial Planning Association 
is a leadership and advocacy 
organization connecting those 
who provide the services with 
consumers they serve. This 
organization is a resource for the 
public to find educational resources 
and a financial planner who will 
deliver advice using an ethical, 
objective, client-centered process.

Food Marketing Institute (FMI)

2345 Crystal Drive, Suite 800
Arlington, VA 22202
202-452-8444
Fax: 202-429-4519
www.fmi.org
FMI conducts programs in 
research, education, industry 
relations and public affairs on 
behalf of grocery retailers and 
wholesalers.

Grocery Manufacturers 
Association

1350 I St. NW, Suite 300
Washington, DC 20005
202-639-5900
Toll free: 1-800-355-0983
Fax: 202-639-5932
www.gmaonline.org
Membership: Commercial packers 
of food products such as fruit, 
vegetables, meat, poultry, seafood, 
and canned, frozen,
dehydrated, pickled and other 
preserved food items.

Hearing Industries 
Association

14441 I St. NW, Suite 700
Washington, DC 20005
202-449-1090
Fax: 202-216-9646
E-mail: mspangler@bostrom.com
www.hearing.org
Membership: companies engaged 
in the manufacture and/or sale of 
hearing aids, their components, 
parts, and related products and 
services.

HOPE NOW Alliance

1001 Pennsylvania Ave, NW,  
7th Floor
Washington, DC 20004
Toll free: 1-888-995-4673
www.hopenow.com
HOPE NOW is an alliance 
between counselors, servicers, 
investors, and other mortgage 
market participants. This alliance 
will maximize outreach efforts to 
homeowners in distress to help 
them stay in their homes.
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Household Goods Forwarders 
Association of America, Inc.

5904 Richmond Highway,
Suite 404
Alexandria, VA 22303
703-317-9950
Fax: 703-317-9960
E-mail: info@hhgfaa.org
www.hhgfaa.org
The Household Goods Forwarders 
Association of America, Inc., 
represents movers and forwarders 
who handle commercial, 
government and military shipments 
of household goods.

Insurance Information 
Institute

110 William St., 24th Floor
New York, NY 10038
212-346-5500
Toll free: 1-800-331-9146
E-mail: jeannes@iii.org
www.iii.org
The National Insurance Consumer 
Helpline is a resource for consumers 
with automobile, homeowners 
and life insurance questions. The 
Helpline is open Monday through 
Friday from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m., eastern 
time. Spanish-speaking operators 
are also available.

Mortgage Bankers Association 
of America

1331 L St., NW
Washington, DC 20005
202-557-2700
www.mbaa.org
Membership: mortgage banking 
firms, commercial banks, life 
insurance companies, title 
companies, and savings and loan 
associations.

National Association of  
Home Builders

Member Service Center
1201 15th St., NW
Washington, DC 20005
202-266-8200
Toll free: 1-800-368-5242  
   (Outside Metro DC)
Fax: 202-266-8400
E-mail: info@nahb.com
www.nahb.org
Membership: home and 
commercial builders.

National Association of 
Insurance Commissioners 
(NAIC)

Executive Headquarters
2301 McGee St., #800
Kansas City, MO 64108
816-842-3600
Toll free: 1-866-470-6242
Fax: 816-783-8175
E-mail: reslib@naic.org
www.naic.org, 
www.InsureUonline.org, 
Consumer insurance information 
The National Association of 
Insurance Commissioners is the 
organization of insurance regulators 
from the 50 states, the District of 
Columbia and five U.S. territories. 
The organization helps insurance 
regulators to protect and educate 
consumers by providing credible, 
unbiased insurance information. 
Consumers can get shopper’s 
guides, as well as insurance tips 
and other information.

National Association of 
Professional Insurance 
Agents

400 North Washington St.
Alexandria, VA 22314
703-836-9340
Fax: 703-836-1279
E-mail: piainfo@pianet.org
www.PIANET.com
This association provides 
consumers practical advice on 
personal insurance buying through 
its national outreach program.

National Association of 
Realtors®

430 North Michigan Ave.
Chicago, IL 60611-4087
312-329-8200
Toll free: 1-800-874-6500
Fax: 312-329-5960
www.realtor.org
NAR’s website offers property ads, 
home buying and selling tips, real 
estate news, information about 
using a realtor® and more.

National Association of 
Securities Dealers

Office of Dispute Resolution
One Liberty Plaza
165 Broadway, 27th Floor
New York, NY 10006
212-858-4400
Toll free: 1-800-289-9999 (Broker 
Check Hotline)
Fax: 301-527-4873
E-mail: ciletters@nasd.com
www.nasdadr.com
NASD offers third-party dispute 
resolution forum for disputes 
between investors and securities 
firms.

National Foundation for Credit 
Counseling (NFCC)

801 Roeder Rd., Suite 900
Silver Spring, MD 20910
Toll free: 1-800-388-2227
Fax: 301-589-8256
www.nfcc.org
NFCC is the nation’s oldest and 
largest network of non-profit 
credit counseling agencies. 
Many of our agencies are known 
locally as Consumer Credit 
Counseling Service. The mission 
of all NFCC agencies is to set 
the national standard for quality 
credit counseling, debt reduction 
services and education for financial 
wellness.
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National Funeral Directors 
Association

13625 Bishop’s Drive
Brookfield, WI 53005-6607
262-789-1880
Toll free: 1-800-228-6332
E-mail: nfda@nfda.org
www.nfda.org
NFDA offers a third party dispute 
resolution program for complaints 
regarding funeral homes.

National Futures Association

300 South Riverside Plaza,  
Suite 1800
Chicago, IL 60606
312-781-1300
Toll free: 1-800-621-3570
Fax: 312-781-1467
E-mail: information@nfa.futures.org
www.nfa.futures.org
National Futures Association is 
the industrywide self-regulatory 
organization for the U.S. futures 
industry. NFA’s mission is to 
provide innovative and efficient 
regulatory programs and services 
that safeguard the integrity of the 
derivatives markets. Consumers 
should contact NFA regarding any 
firm or individual who solicits them 
for investments in futures, options 
on futures and foreign currency.

North American Consumer 
Protection Investigators

Attn: Anna Huddleston-Aycock
Pinellas County Dept. of Justice & 
Consumer Services
15251 Roosevelt Blvd., Suite 209
Clearwater, FL 33760
727-464-6200
Fax: 727-464-6129
E-mail: ahuddles@co.pinellas.fl.us
www.nacpi.org
NACPI provides training and 
support for consumer protection 
investigators in government 
agencies at all levels. NACPI does 
not investigate individual consumer 
complaints but helps investigators 
share information of mutual 
concern.

North American Securities 
Administrators Association, 
Inc. (NASAA)

Washington, DC 20002
202-737-0900
Fax: 202-783-3571
E-mail: info@nasaa.org
www.nasaa.org
NASAA is an international 
organization devoted to investor 
protection. NASAA is the voice 
of the 50 state securities agencies 
responsible for the grass-roots 
investor protection, investor 
education and efficient capital 
formation.

Soap and Detergent 
Association

1500 K St., NW, Suite 300
Washington, DC 20005
202-347-2900
Fax: 202-347-4110
www.cleaning101.com
The Soap and Detergent 
Association is the premier 
nonprofit trade association 
dedicated to educating the public 
about the relationship between 
good hygiene practices and good 
health. SDA offers free/low cost 
practical information on hand 
hygiene, laundry, dish and surface 
care, food safety, poison prevention 
and cleaning to control allergies 
and asthma.

Tire Industry Association

Bowie, MD 20716-1883
301-430-7280
Toll free: 1-800-876-8372
Fax: 301-430-7283
E-mail: info@tireindustry.org
www.tireindustry.org
Membership: independent tire 
dealers and retreaders.

Toy Industry Association Inc.

New York, NY 10010
212-675-1141
Fax: 212-633-1429
E-mail: info@toyassociation.org
www.toy-tia.org
Membership: North American  
toy manufacturers.

United States Tour  
Operators Association

275 Madison Ave., Suite 2014
New York, NY 10016
212-599-6599
Fax: 212-599-6744
E-mail: information@ustoa.com
www.ustoa.com
Membership: wholesale tour 
operators, common carriers, 
suppliers, and providers of travel 
services.
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Symbols
3-Day Cooling-Off Rule

home improvements and repairs  25
shopping from home  40

A
AARP  125
Accountants

American Institute of Certified  
Public Accountants  164

Adjustable rate mortgage  21
Administration for Children &  
Families  111
Advertising

Children’s Advertising  
Review Unit  165
National Advertising Review  
Council  167

AFSA Education  Foundation  164
Aging. See also Elderly persons

AARP  125
Administration on Aging  112
American Association of Homes  
and Services for the Aging  164
Assisted Living Federation of 
America. See also Elderly persons
Continuing Care Commission on 
Accreditation  20
Eldercare Locator  112
Medicare Prescription Drug  
Coverage  112
National Council on the Aging  128
Nursing Home Compare  20

AIDS Info Hotline  113
AIDS Prevention  113
Air quality

Indoor Air Quality Information  119
Air travel. See Travel
Alcohol regulation  117
Alliance Against Fraud  125
AMA. See American Medical Association
American Arbitration Association  164
American Association of Homes and 
Services for the Aging  164
American Bankers Association  164
American Bar Association  164
American Board of Medical  
Specialties  19

American Consumer Credit  
Counseling  13
American Council of Life Insurers  26, 164
American Health Care Association  164
American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants  164
American Medical Association  19
American Moving and Storage 
Association (AMSA)  165
American Society of Travel  
Agents, Inc.  165
Americans with Disabilities Act  115
Appliances

warranties  1
Arbitration

American Arbitration Association  164
dispute resolution  53

Architectural and Transportation Barriers 
Compliance Board  108
Archives

National Archives and Records 
Administration  122

ARMs. See Adjustable rate mortagages
Assisted living facilities

American Association of Homes and 
Services for the Aging  164
Assisted Living Federation of 
America  20
information sources  20

ATM cards  2, 38
Attorney

choosing  53
resources  53

Auctions
federal surplus  122

Automobiles. See Cars

B
Baggage

delayed or damaged  44
lost  44

Bankruptcy. See also Credit reports
personal  14

Banks & Banking. See also Credit; Loans
ATM/debit cards  2
Comptroller of the Currency  118
deposit insurance  4
Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation  121

Federal Reserve System  121
fraud  2
regulatory agencies  4
savings and checking accounts  3
state banking authorities  147

BBBs. See Better Business Bureaus
Better Business Bureaus  65–69

BBB Auto Line  64
BBB Military Line  65
BBB OnLine  65
consumer services  65
credit counseling  14
description of the service  65
travel agencies  43

Better Hearing Institute (BHI)  165
Blind persons

services and resources for  57
Blue Cross and Blue Shield  
Association  165
Boating

U.S. Coast Guard  58
Boat Owners Association of The United 
States, BOATU.S.  165
Bonds. See Investing
Brokers

credit and sublease  7
double dipping  22
investment  35
mortgage  22

Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration 
Services  114
Buying a home. See Housing

C
Call for Action, Inc.  52
Cancer

National Cancer Institute  113
Career College Association (CCA)  165
Cars

auto insurance  27
BBB Auto Line  64
buying a used car  5
consumer guide to auto leasing  7
crash test information  6
credit brokers  7
curb stoning  7
dealer vs private party purchase  6
dispute resolution  61
extended warranties  6
financing  5

This alphabetical index will help you find the right organization to contact for information or for assistance with 
your complaint. First, look for the specific topic, for example, Cars. Under this topic there will be one or more  
contacts followed by the Handbook page number(s). Sometimes you will be directed to “See” another entry 
for information and a list of contacts. “See also” references direct you to other topics that might be related to 
your problem and may help you locate the right contact. For company names see the alphabetical listings under 
“Corporate Consumer Contacts” and “Automotive Manufacturers and Dispute Resolution Resources.”
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fuel economy  6
general information  5
leasing  7
lemon laws  7
manufacturer listing  61
National Highway Traffic  
Safety Administration  6, 119
rebates  5
recalls  8
renting  8
repairs  9
repossessions  9
safety recalls  7
sublease brokers  7
tires  6
title  7
vehicle history  6
warranties  6

Cell phones. See also Phones
choosing a plan  37
questions to ask  37

Cemeteries. See also Funerals
Cemetery Consumer Service  
Council  165
National Cemetery Administration  119
National Funeral Directors 
Association  168
Veterans Cemeteries  50

Cemetery Consumer Service Council  165
Center for Auto Safety  6
Center For The Study of Services  56
Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention  18, 112

fertility clinic success rates  19
health-related travel information  46
STD Hotline  112

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid 
Services  112
Certificates of Deposit  3
Certified Financial Planner Board of 
Standards  126
CFTC. See Commodity Futures Trading 
Commission
Checkbook Magazine  125
Checking Accounts  3
Checks & checking accounts  3

unsolicited  4
Children

Administration for Children & 
Families  111
baby equip. safety issues  54
Children’s Advertising Review Unit  165
Children’s Online Privacy Protection 
Act  39
health insurance for  27
online privacy protection  32
peddling items door-to-door  41

Children’s Advertising  
Review Unit (CARU)  165
Child support  113
Citizenship

Bureau of Citizenship and 
Immigration Services  114

Civil Rights  108
COBRA. See Consolidated Omnibus 
Budget Reconciliation Act
Colleges and universities

Career College Association  165
Federal Student Aid Information 
Center  111

Commissaries. See Military
Commodity Futures Trading 
Commission  35, 108
Complaints

Better Business Bureaus  65–69
Call for Action  52
contact the seller  51
credit  11
debt collection  13
dispute resolution programs  53
federal government agencies  108
filing complaints  51
help from outside organizations  51
legal help  53
medical services  19
reporting fraud  54
safety hazards  54
sales call  43
small claims court  53, 55
state banking authorities  147
state consumer protection  130
state insurance regulators  151
state securities admin.  156
state utility commissions  160
telephone service  36
written  51

Comptroller of the Currency  118
Conciliation, for dispute resolution  53
Consolidated Omnibus Budget 
Reconciliation Act  27
Consumer Action

credit card compare  11
Consumer Credit Counseling Service  13
Consumer Electronics  Association 
(CEA)  165
Consumer Federation of America  126
Consumer Information Catalog  121
Consumer Leasing Act  7
consumer offices  130
Consumer Product Safety Commission  108
Consumer Reports  34, 126

car safety  8
Consumer rights

credit denial  12

illegal creditor questions, policies  9
installment loans  14
out of control debt  13
payday loans  14
resolving credit problems  11
tax refund loans  14

Consumers Union  8, 56, 126
Consumer World  56
Contests

guidelines  43
Cooling-off period  40
Cooperative State Research, Education, 
and Extension Service  109
Copyright/digital ownership. See Internet
Corporate consumer contacts  70
Counseling Services

housing counseling  21
out-of-control debt  13

Cramming  36
Credit. See also Loans

bankruptcy  14
credit reports and scores  11
dealing with debt problems  12
Equal Credit Opportunity Act  9
fair credit reporting act  12
free credit reports  11
National Consumer Law Center  10

Credit brokers  7
Credit bureaus

credit reports and scores  11
Equifax  11
Experian  11
FICO score  11
free annual credit report  11
TransUnion  11

Credit cards  10. See also Prepaid cards
Annual Percentage Rate  10
comparing  11
comparing cards  11
complaints  11
consumer rights  10
disclosure act  11
e-mailing credit card numbers  32
fees  10
finance charges  10
grace period  10
insurance  9
interest rate  10
lost and stolen  10
offers to skip a payment  12
overseas conversion fees  45
paying for home improvement  
repairs  25
paying for travel  44
payment skipping offers  12
PIN numbers  38
teaser rates  12

Credit repair  12
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Credit Repair Organizations Act  12
Credit reports and scores

FICO score  11
free annual credit report  11
major credit bureaus  11
negative information  12

Credit Union National Association 
(CUNA)  165
Credit unions

counseling services  13
Credit Union National  
Association  165

Credit Unions  4
CSREES. See Cooperative State 
Research, Education, and Extension 
Service
Customs  114

D
Deaf and hearing impaired persons

Better Hearing Institute  165
Hearing Industries Association  166
Hearing Loss Association of  
America  127
relay services  57
TTY service  57

Debit cards
liability  2
PIN numbers  2

Debit Cards  2
Debt. See also Credit, Loans

Bureau of the Public Debt. See 
also Credit; Loans
debt management assistance  13
out of control debt  13

Dieting. See Weight Loss
Direct Marketing Association  166

Deceased Do Not Contact List  166
Do Not Contact Service for 
Caretakers  166
E-Mail Preference Service  166
Mail Preference Service  166
remove your name from telemarketing 
lists  41, 166

Direct Selling Association (DSA)  166
Disability Insurance  27
Disability, persons with  57

Americans with Disabilities Act  115
National Council on Disability  57, 122
National Disability Rights Network  57
National Library Service for the Blind 
and Physically Handicapped  57
Office of Disability Employment 
Policy  116
relay services  57
services and resources  57
The U.S. Department of Education  57
U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development  57

Discrimination
Americans with Disabilities Act  115
Commission on Civil Rights  108
housing  21
Women’s Bureau  116

Dispute Resolution Programs  53
legal help  53
recovery services  53

Distance Education
Distance Education and Training 
Council  166

Distance Education and Training  
Council  166
DMA. See Direct Marketing Association
DOC. See U.S. Department of Commerce
Doctors

choosing  19
specialists  19

Documentation. See Records and  
recordkeeping
DOD. See U.S. Department of Defense
DOE. See U.S. Department of Energy
DOJ. See U.S. Department of Justice
DOL. See U.S. Department of Labor
Do Not Call Registry  42
Door-to-door peddling, by youth  41
DOT. See U.S. Department of 
Transportation
Drug Enforcement Administration  116
DSA. See Direct Selling Association

E
Earthquakes

insurance for  28
Education  15

1-800-USA-LEARN  110
AFSA Education Foundation  164
diploma mills  15
Distance Education and Training  166
EDInfo Electronic Newsletter  110
ED Pubs  110
Educational Resources Information 
Center  110
federal student aid  15
Federal student aid  111
National Library of Education  110
No Child Left Behind  110
Office of Special Education and 
Rehabilitative Services  111
student loans  15

Eldercare Locator  20, 112
Elderly persons. See also Aging

Administration on Aging  112
American Association of Homes and 
Services for the Aging  20
Eldercare Locator  112
National Consumer Law Center  128
National Council on the Aging  128

Electric companies, choosing  47
Electronics

Consumer Electronics Assoc.  165
E-mail

availability  30
credit card numbers  32
E-Mail Preference Service  166
free addresses  32
Internet Service Provider  30
mass e-mails  32
phishing  32
spam  32

Employer Identification Numbers  118
Employment  16

agencies  16
employment advertising complaints  16
multi-level marketing  17
net-based business opportunities  17
U.S. Department of Labor  116
work at home companies  16

Energy. See Utilities
energystar  47
Energy Star Program  119

Environmental Protection Agency  119
EPA. See Environmental Protection 
Agency
Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission  120
Equifax  11
Espanol.gov. See GobiernoUSA.gov
Estate planning. See Wills
Experian  11
Extension Service  109

F
FAA. See Federal Aviation 
Administration
Fair Credit Reporting Act  12

credit information privacy  39
Fair Debt Collection Practices Act  12
FCIC. See Federal Citizen Information 
Center
FDA. See U.S. Food and Drug 
Administration
FDIC. See Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation
Federal Aviation Administration  118
Federal Citizen Information Center  121
Federal Communications Commission  120

pre-recorded voice messages  42
telephone service information  36

Federal Deposit Insurance  
Corporation  4, 121
Federal Emergency Management  
Agency  114

FEMA Disaster Assistance  114
Federal Government  108
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reporting fraud  54
Federal Maritime Commission  121
Federal Reserve System  121
Federal Trade Commission  121

3-Day Cooling-Off Rule  40
avoiding foreclosure  24
Buyers Guide for used cars  6
credit information  11
debt collection complaints  13
fraudulent weight loss claims  19
ID theft affidavit  38
reporting spam  33
telemarketing sales calls  43

FEMA. See Federal Emergency 
Management Agency
Fertility clinics, success rates  19
FICO score  11
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority

Dispute Resolution  166
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority 
(FINRA)  166
Financial planning

Certified Financial Planner Board of 
Standards  126

Financial Planning Association(FPA)  166
Fires

U.S. Fire Administration  114
FirstGov.gov. See USA.gov
Fitness

President’s Council on Physical 
Fitness and Sports  113

Floods
insurance for  28
National Flood Insurance  
Program  114

Flying. See Air Travel
Food

Center for Science in the Public 
Interest  125
federal dietary guidelines  18
Food Marketing Institute  166
food safety  18
government agencies dealing  
with  109, 112
Health Research Group  127
healthy food choices  18
resources  18
Seafood Inspection Program  109
shopping for  18

Food and Drug Administration. See U.S. 
Food and Drug Administration
Food Marketing Institute (FMI)  166
Foreclosure

avoiding  23
Hope Now Alliance  23

FPA. See Financial Planning Association
Fraud

Alliance Against Fraud  125
avoiding fraud  2
contests and sweepstakes  43
credit application  12
HHS-TIPS Fraud Hotline  113
HUD Inspector General’s Fraud 
Hotline  115
identity  38
insurance  26
investing  35
National Fraud Information Center/
Internet Fraud Watch  128
online fraud prevention  31
reporting  54
Social Security  123
stopping fraud  2
weight loss claims  19

Fuel economy of cars  6
Funerals. See also Cemeteries

Cemetery Consumer Service 
Council  165
Funeral Consumers Alliance  127
Funeral Rule  50
National Funeral Directors 
Association  168
planning  49
veterans cemeteries  50

G
General Services Administration  121

consumer services information  56
Federal Citizen Information  
Center  56

GobiernoUSA  56
Government Agencies  108
Grocery Manufacturers Association  166
GSA. See General Services 
Administration

H
Health

American Council on Science and 
Health  125
health-related travel information  46
Health Research Group  127
National Cancer Institute  113
National Health Information  
Center  113
National Institutes of Health  112

Healthcare
American Health Care Assoc.  164
choosing a doctor  19
fertility clinics success rates  19
filing a complaint  19
heart-bypass surgery data  19
Medicare Prescription Drug 
Coverage  21
prescription drugs  20
privacy issues  39

Healthcare facilities
assisted living  20

choosing  20
nursing home  20

Healthcare Plans  27
Health insurance

Blue Cross and Blue Shield 
Association  165
COBRA coverage  27
HMOs and PPOs  28
questions to ask  28

Health Insurance  27
Health Maintenance Organizations  28

National Committee for Quality 
Assurance  28

Health Privacy Project  39
Hearing Industries Association  166
Hearing loss. See Deaf and hearing 
impaired persons
Heart-bypass surgery data  19
HHS. See U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services
Higher education. See also Education

Accrediting Council for Independent 
Colleges and Schools. See 
also Education
Career College Association  165
Distance Education and Training 
Council  166
state savings programs  15
student loans  15

HIV/AIDS Prevention  113
Home Equity Loans

mortgages  21
Home Improvement

Home Improvement Branch  115
Homeowner/Renter’s Insurance  28
Homeownership. See Home equity loans; 
Housing; Mortgages
Hope for Homeowners  24
HOPE NOW Alliance  166
Hospitals

accreditation  20
consumer complaints  20

Hotlines
AIDS Info  113
Auto safety  64
Call for Action  52
Consumer Product Safety 
Commission  108
EPA’s Fraud, Waste and Abuse  120
Food Information and Seafood  18
Inspector General’s Fraud Hotline  115
insurance fraud  26
Meat and Poultry  18
Safe Drinking Water  48, 120
STD Hotline  112
Toxic Substances Control Act 
Assistance  120
Vehicle Safety Hotline  119
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Household Goods Forwarders 
Association of America, Inc.  167
Housing. See also Mortgages; U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban 
Development; See also Mortgages

avoiding foreclosure  23
buying a home  21
closing costs and escrow accounts  22
counseling  23
Federal Housing Administration  114
home improvement and repairs  24
HUD Housing Counseling 
Clearinghouse  10
interest rates  21
leasing  25
manufactured housing  115
National Association of  
Home Builders  167
National Association of Realtors  167
refinancing  23
renting  25

HUD. See U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development

I
Identity theft  37

insurance  38
preventing  37
reporting  38

IIHS. See Insurance Institute for Highway 
Safety
Illness. See Healthcare
Immigration Services  114
InCharge Institute of America  13
Insurance  26

American Council of Life Insurers  164
auto insurance  27
Coalition Against Insurance Fraud  126
COBRA  27
credit insurance  9
deductible  28
disability  27
earthquake  28
financial stability of companies  26
flood  28
fraud  26
general information sources  26
health  27
HMO  28
homeowner/renter’s  28
identity theft  29, 38
Insurance Information Institute  167
international healthcare  30
liability  30
life  29
long-term care  29
Medicare  21
National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners  167

National Association of Professional 
Insurance Agents  167
PPO  28
private mortgage insurance  21
travel  29
umbrella insurance  30

Insurance Information Institute  167
Interest rates

car loans  5
credit cards  10
installment loans  14
mortgages  21
savings and checking accounts  3

Internal Revenue Service  118
e-file  118
Employer Identification Number  12

International Association of Lemon Law 
Administrators  64
Internet. See also Websites

car buying  5
choosing service providers  30
consumer ratings for online stores  31
Copyright  31
e-mail  30
IRS e-file  118
online auctions and sellers  31
online file sharing  30
online pharmacy  20
online privacy protection  31
online trading  34
phishing  32
safer computing  32
social networking  31
spam  32

Internet Service Providers
choosing  30
technical support  30

Investing  33
Certified Financial Planner Board  
of Standards  126
complaints  34
federal government agencies  
dealing with  108
Financial brokers and advisors  35
Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority  166
fraud  35
Mutual funds  33
National Association of Securities 
Dealers  167
National Futures Association  168
North American Securities 
Administrators Association  168
online trading  34
ratings  34
risk  33
State Securities Admin.  156
types  34

ISPs. See Internet Service Providers

J
Jobs. See Employment
Joint Commission on Accreditation of 
Healthcare Organizations  20
Jump$tart Coalition for Personal 
Financial Literacy  127

K
Kelly Blue Book  5
Kids. See Children
Kiplinger’s Personal Finance Magazine  34

L
Land

Bureau of Land Management  117
interstate land sales  115

Lawyer Referral Service  53
Leasing. See Cars; Housing
Legal aid offices  54
Legal issues

American Bar Association  164
HALT: An Organization of Americans 
for Legal Reform  127
National Consumer Law Cente  128
National Consumer Law Ctr.  10

Legal Services Corporation  54
Lemon Laws  7
Libraries

for the blind  57
general consumer info. sources  56

Life insurance  29
Loans. See also Credit; Debt

cars  5
installment loans  14
payday loans  14
student loans  15
tax refund loans  14

Long-distance service. See phones
Long-term care. See also Nursing homes

American Health Care Assoc.. See 
also Nursing homes
Families USA  127
insurance coverage information  29

Lost Bags  44
LSC. See Legal Services Corportation

M
Mail

U.S. Postal Service  124
Manufactured housing  115
Mayo Clinic  19
Media

help with complaints about products 
or services  52

Mediation, for dispute resolution  53
Medicaid

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid 
Services  112
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Medical Information Bureau
requesting your file from  39

Medical Library Association
healthcare information  19

Medicare  21
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid 
Services  112
information resources  21

MedlinePlus  19
Mental health

Mental Help Net  19
National Institute of Mental Health  113

Military  57
Air Force Family Matters Office  57
Army Family and Morale, Welfare and 
Recreation Command  58
BBB Military Line  58
commissaries and exchanges  59
family centers  57
Marine Corps Community Serv.  57
Military HomeFront  58
Military OneSource  59
Military Sentinel  58
Navy Family Assistance  58
U.S. Coast Guard  58

Money Management International  13
Money market accounts  3
Moody’s Investors Services

insurance ratings  26
investment ratings  34

Mortgage Bankers Association of 
America  167
Mortgages. See also Home equity loans; 
Housing

adjustable rate  21
double dipping  22
Home Mortgage Insurance  
Division  115
Mortgage Bankers Association  23
Mortgage Bankers Association of 
America. See also Home Equity 
Loans; Housing
mortgage refinancing  23
reverse mortgages  22

Motor Trend
new car ratings  5

Moving  23
American Moving and Storage 
Association  165
complaints, moving companies  24
Federal Motor Carrier Safety 
Administration  118
Household Goods Commercial 
Complaints  118
Household Goods Forwarders 
Association of America  167

Mutual funds  33. See Investing
My Health Privacy  39

Myvesta  13

N
NACAA. See National Association of 
Consumer Agency Administrators
NASD. See National Association of 
Securities Dealers; See Financial 
Industry Regulatory Authority
National Archives and Records 
Administration  122
National Association of Consumer 
Agency Administrators  128
National Association of Home  
Builders  167
National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners (NAIC)  167
National Association of Professional 
Insurance Agents  167
National Association of Realtors  167
National Association of Securities 
Dealers  167. See Financial Industry 
Regulatory Authority
National Automobile Dealers 
Association  64

used car guide  5
National Cancer Institute  113
National Cemetery Administration  119
National Coalition for Consumer 
Education  128
National Committee for Quality 
Assurance  28
National Community Reinvestment 
Coalition  128
National Consumer Law Center  128
National Consumer Protection Technical 
Resource Center  128
National Consumers League  128
National Council on Disability  122
National Council on the Aging  128
National Credit Union Admin.  122
National Do Not Call Registry  42
National Flood Insurance Program  114
National Foundation for Credit 
Counseling (NFCC)  167
National Funeral Directors  
Association  168
National Futures Association  168
National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration  119

recalls  7
reporting safety hazards  54
service bulletin database  6
vehicle crash-test information  8

National Institute for Automotive 
Service Excellence  64
National Institutes of Health  112

National Insurance Crime Bureau Fraud 
Hotline  26
National Labor Relations Board  122
National Legal Aid and Defender 
Association  54
National Library Service for the Blind and 
Physically Handicapped  57
National Park Service  117
National Runaway Switchboard  112
Native Americans

Bureau of Indian Affairs  117
Natural gas companies

choosing  47
NCD. See National Council on Disability
NCLC. See National Consumer Law 
Center
NHTSA. See National Highway Traffic 
Safety Administration
NIMH. See National Institute of  
Mental Health
NLRB. See National Labor Relations 
Board
NLS. See National Library Service for the 
Blind and Physically Handicapped
North American Consumer Protection 
Investigators  168
North American Securities 
Administrators Association, Inc. 
(NASAA)  168
Nursing homes. See also Long-term care; 
Aging

American Association of Homes  
and Services for the Aging  164
information sources  20
long-term care insurance  29
Nursing Home Compare  20

Nutrition  18
Center for Science in the Public 
Interest  125
federal dietary guidelines  18
Food and Nutrition Service  109
food safety  18
weight loss  18

Nutrition Action Healthletter  125
Nutrition Source  18

O
Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration  116
Office of Special Education and 
Rehabilitative Services  111
Online Auctions and Sellers  31
Online Fraud Prevention  31
OSHA. See Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration; See Occupation 
Safety and Health Administration
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P
Passports  45

National Passport Information  
Center  117
requirements  46

Patents and trademarks  109
Payroll cards  3
Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation  123
Pensions

Employee Benefits Security 
Administration  116
Pension Benefit Guaranty 
Corporation  123

Persons with disabilities
American Orthotic and Prosthetic 
Association  165
Architectural and Transportation 
Barriers Compliance Board  108
National Council on Disability  122
Office of Disability Employment 
Policy  116
services and resources for consumers 
with disabilities  57

Pesticides
National Pesticide Information 
Center  120

Pharmacies. See Prescription drugs
National Association of Boards  
of Pharmacy  20
online pharmacies  20

Phishing  32
Phones  35. See Cars; Housing

cell phones  37
cramming  36
deaf or hard of hearing persons  57
general consumer information  36
pay-as-you-go plans  37
prepaid calling cards  36
slamming  36
voice over internet protocol  37

Photo Marketing Association  168
Physicians. See Doctors
PIN numbers

ATM/debit cards  2
identity theft  38

Planes. See Travel
PPOs

Preferred Provider Organizations  28
Preferred provider organizations  28
Prepaid cards  3
Prescription drugs. See also Illegal drugs

general drug information  21
medicare drug plan  21
online pharmacy  20
reporting safety hazards  20
side effects  21

President’s Council on Physical Fitness 
and Sports  113
Privacy. See also Identity theft

children  39
financial  39
general consumer information  38
medical  39
online  39

Private mortgage insurance  21
Prizes

telemarketing  43
travel  43

Product safety  1
Public Citizen, Inc.  128
Purchases, general tips  1

Q
Quotes

cars  5
contractors  25
general buying tips  1
insurance  26

R
Railroad Retirement Board  123
RCRA. See Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act
Real estate

agents  21
Real Estate Settlement Procedures 
Act  22, 115
Surplus Federal Property Sales  122

Recalls  1
Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic  57
Records and recordkeeping. See 
also National Archives and Records 
Administration

car repairs  9
complaints  51
credit reports  11
damaged baggage  44
home improvement and repairs  24
identify theft  38
lost baggage  44
negative credit information in your 
credit report  12

Rental cars  8
Renter’s Insurance  28
Renting

landlords  26
Ten Tips  25

Repairs
cars  9
home improvement  24

Repossession of cars  9
Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act  120
RESPA. See Real estate

Revenue Service
investments  34

RFB&D. See Recording for the  
Blind & Dyslexic
Runaway children  112
RV Consumer Group  64

S
Safe Drinking Water Hotline  120
Safety issues

automobile recalls  7
cars  6
drinking water  48
drugs  54
Federal Motor Carrier Safety 
Administration  118
food safety  18
Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration  116
product safety recalls  1
reporting safety hazards  54
travel  46
vehicle crash test information  8

Sales calls  43
Savings accounts  3
SBA. See Small Business Administration
SEC. See U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission
Service contracts, questions to ask  1
Sexually transmitted disease (STD) 
hotline  112
Shopping from home  40

3-day cooling-off rule  40
consumer rights  40
general tips  40
online auctions and sellers  41
your rights  40
youth peddling  41

Slamming  36
Small Business Administration  123
Small claims court  53

dispute resolution  53
file a case  53

Soap and Detergent Association  168
Social Security Administration  123
Social Security numbers

identity theft  37
Society of Consumer Affairs 
Professionals in Business (SOCAP)  129
Software

copyright  31
Internet service providers  30
spam-blocking  33

Spam  32
Special education

Office of Special Education and 
Rehabilitative Services  111
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Standard & Poor’s
insurance company ratings  26
investment ratings  34

States
banking authorities  147
BBB  65–69
car safety inspection  9
consumer protection offices  130
health insurance for children  27
insurance regulators  151
lemon laws  8
physician licensing  19
securities administrators  156
travel agent  44
utility commission  160

STDs. See Sexually Transmitted Disease 
(STD) hotline
Stocks. See Investing
Student  15

Federal Student Aid  15
Financial Aid  15
Financial Scams  16
Paying for College  15

Student Financial Aid
Federal Student Aid Information 
Center  111

Sublease Brokers  7
Suitcases. See Baggage
Surplus Federal Property Sales  122

T
Taxes

tax refund loans  14
Teacher resources  56
Telecommunications Research and 
Action Center  36
Telemarketing

Alliance Against Fraud  125
Direct Marketing Association  166
Do Not Call Registry  42
general consumer information  41
pre-recorded voice messages  42
removing your name from  
telemarketing lists  41
sales calls  43
vishing  42

Telephone. See Phones
Telephone relay services for deaf and 
hearing impaired persons  57
Television. See TV
Term life insurance  29
Thomas Register of American 
Manufacturers  51
Timeshare Scams  46
Tips, general buying tips  1

general consumer tips  a
using the handbook  a

Tire Industry Association  168

Tires  6
Tobacco regulation  117
Toy Industry Association Inc.  168
Toys

reporting safety hazards  54
Toy Industry Association  168

Trade and Professional Associations  164
Trademarks  109
Transportation Security Administration  114
TransUnion  11
Travel

AIR Consumer Protection Division  
of the FAA  118
air travel problems  44
conversion fees  45
delayed and cancelled flights  44
delayed or damaged baggage  44
lost bags  44
overbooked flights  45
pack smart  45
passports  45
pay by credit card  44
prohibited items  45
resolving air travel problems  44
safety  46
The Federation of American 
Consumers and Travelers  127
United States Tour Operators 
Association  168

Travel agents
American Society of Travel Agents  44
licensing of  44
professional association member-
ships  44

TV
cable/satellite  47
digital television  47

U
United States Coast Guard  114
United States Tour  
Operators Association  168
Universal life insurance  29
Used Cars  5
USA.gov  56
U.S. Air Force  57
U.S. Army  58
U.S. Coast Guard  58
U.S. Consumer Product Safety 
Commission  108
USDA. See U.S. Department of 
Agriculture
U.S. Department of Agriculture  108

Cooperative State Research, 
Education, and Extension Service  109
food shopping, safety, and nutrition 
information  18
Information Line USDA  109

Meat and Poultry Hotline  18
U.S. Department of Commerce  109

reporting safety hazards  54
weights and measures  109

U.S. Department of Defense  110
U.S. Department of Education  110
U.S. Department of Energy  111
U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services  111
U.S. Department of Homeland  
Security  114
U.S. Department of Housing and  
Urban Development  114

Affordable Housing Programs  115
fair housing  21
Federal Housing Administration  114
housing counseling  21, 23
Office of Fair Housing and Equal 
Opportunity  115

U.S. Department of Justice  115
U.S. Department of Labor  116
U.S. Department of State  117

Passport Information  117
Visa Services  117

U.S. Department of the Interior  117
U.S. Department of the Treasury  117
U.S. Department of Transportation  118

Vehicle Safety Hotline  119
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs  119
U.S. Food and Drug Administration  112

food shopping, safety, and nutrition 
information  18
prescription drug information  21
reporting safety hazards  20

U.S. Marine Corps  57
U.S. Navy  58
U.S. Postal Inspection Service  124

reporting fraud  54
U.S. Postal Service  124

mail that looks like a bill  42
mail that looks like it is from  
a government agency  42

U.S. Savings bonds  33
U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission  123
U.S. Treasury securities  33
Utilities

electricity  47
energy efficiency information  47
Energy Star Program  119
natural gas  47
state utility commissions  160
water  48

V
VA. See US Department of Veterans 
Affairs
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Vacations. See Travel
Vehicles. See Cars
Veterans

benefits information  119
burial information  119
health  119
U.S. Department of Veterans  
Affairs  119
Veteran’s Employment and  
Training Service  116

Veterans Administration. See U.S. 
Department of Veterans Affairs
Visas  117

W
Warranties

extended  5
limited  6
manufacturer  6
powertrain  6
repairs  9
secret  7

Water
Safe Drinking Water Hotline  120

Websites. See also Internet; specific 
organizations and federal government 
agencies

BBBOnLine  31, 65
company websites  31
credit counseling  13
healthcare information  19
medical privacy  39
online version of the handbook  a
personal  30
phone charges and fraud info  36
safety recalls  1, 7

Weight Loss. See also surgery risks
general guidelines  18
surgery risks  19

Weiss ratings
insurance company ratings  26
investment ratings  34

Whole life insurance  29
Wills  48

living will  48
Wireless service. See Cell phones
Women’s Bureau  116
Workers’ compensation  54

Y
Youth Peddling  41




